
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 18 June 2013 
6.00 pm 

Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Steve Jordan, John Rawson, Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, 

Andrew McKinlay, Jon Walklett and Roger Whyborn 
 

Agenda  
    
  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    
1.   APOLOGIES  
    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    
3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

Minutes of the meeting held on 21 May 2013 
(Pages 
1 - 4) 

    
4.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
    
  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    
5.   ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
(Pages 
5 - 48) 

    
6.   CHELTENHAM PLAN - SCOPE CONSULTATION (Pages 



    

 
2 
 

Report of the Leader 49 - 66) 
    
7.   CHELTENHAM PLAN - REVISED STATEMENT OF 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
Report of the Leader 

(Pages 
67 - 
102) 

    
8.   COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY - 

COMMENCEMENT OF PREPARATION OF DRAFT 
CHARGING SCHEDULE 
Report of the Leader 

(Pages 
103 - 
112) 

    
9.   FOOD SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
113 - 
132) 

    
10.   HEALTH AND SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
133 - 
144) 

    
11.   HOUSING OPTIONS 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety  
(Pages 
145 - 
168) 

    
12.   APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES - THIRD SECTOR 

SERVICES 
A report of the Leader  

(Pages 
169 - 
172) 

    
  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
  • Leader and Cabinet Members  
    

13.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  
    
  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND 

OFFICERS  
 

  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  
    
  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 

 

    
  SECTION 9: BRIEFING NOTES   
  Briefing notes are circulated for information with the Cabinet 

papers but are not on the agenda 
 

    
 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on. Tuesday, 18 June 2013 
 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 21st May, 2013 
6.00  - 6.15 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet 
Member Finance), Rowena Hay (Cabinet Member Sport and 
Culture), Peter Jeffries (Cabinet Member Housing and Safety), 
Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Built Environment), 
Jon Walklett (Cabinet Member Corporate Services) and 
Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability) 
 

Also in attendance:  Councillor Diggory Seacome 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
There were no apologies. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2013 were approved and 
signed as a correct record subject to the following amendments : 
 
Agenda Item 6-third paragraph: He said that whilst Cheltenham did not have a 
greater problem than other places, a problem did exist and it was therefore 
appropriate to ask the relevant bodies to examine the report and this would then 
be fed back to Cabinet. 
 
Agenda Item 7- fifth paragraph: He explained that being a full member of the 
Board would restrict what the member could do, but the issue should be 
explored further. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
There were no public or member questions or petitions. 
 

5. PROPOSAL TO ADOPT A LATE NIGHT LEVY 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the report and explained 
that Part 2 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced a 
new discretionary power for Licensing Authorities to introduce a late night levy. 
This levy can be charged to persons who are licensed to sell alcohol between 
midnight and 6 am as a means of raising a contribution towards the costs of 
policing the late-night economy. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 18 June 2013 
 

 
The Cabinet Member explained that should the proposal to adopt the levy be 
approved, the Council would then be required to consult on its proposal with 
residents, the Police and Crime Commissioner, the Chief Constable and all 
premises licensed and club premises certificate holders whose authorisations 
permit the supply of alcohol during the late night supply period. It is 
recommended that a 12 week consultation be undertaken after which Cabinet 
would assess the consultation responses. The final decision to introduce the 
levy will be made by Full Council. If approved, the levy would be introduced 
across the whole licensed areas to those premises operating between midnight 
and 6 am. This would mean 135 premises in Cheltenham. Cheltenham Borough 
Council would be entitled to retain up to 30% of the net income whilst the 
remaining 70% must be paid to the Gloucestershire Police and Crime 
Commissioner. However, it was proposed that in order to use the levy in the 
most efficient and cost effective manner, rather than see the levy revenue split 
between two separate programmes, the intention would be to reach agreement 
with the Police and Crime Commissioner to develop a single programme 
delivered in partnership between the Council and the Police in line with 
guidance.  
 
It was not currently proposed to apply any exemptions as the view was that this 
would involve an administrative cost. The Council may however decide to apply 
a 30 % reduction for premises that participated in business led best practice 
schemes. 
 
The Cabinet Member tabled a note which provided an indication of items that 
the levy could fund which included taxi marshalling, Operation Scorpion, 
Funding for Night Safe, Supporting joint police/licensing/environmental health 
operations, expanding/maintaining CCTV, promoting best practice schemes, 
funding for research around the late night economy and supporting current 
initiatives.  
 
The Cabinet Member then clarified that the word “Council” in the second 
resolution of the recommendations should be amended to read “authority” for 
clarification. This amendment was supported by members. 
 
In response to a question the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety clarified that 
the implementation date would be 1 April 2014. He also clarified that should a 
particular case be made for an exemption under the scheme, this would be 
considered. 
 
Members supported the proposal which would contribute to the cost of policing 
the late night economy in the town. It would also enable the police and the 
council to work in a creative way to tackle problems which arise. The list of 
items that the levy could pay for was useful and would form part of the 
consultation document. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To adopt a Late Night Levy in Cheltenham; 
2. That the authority should consult on proposals for the introduction of a 

levy;  

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 18 June 2013 
 

3. That the draft consultation document attached at Appendix 2 be 
approved; 

4. That authority be delegated to the Executive Director to undertake the 
necessary consultation; and 

5. That the arrangements for the operation of a late night levy with a target 
date for implementation of 1 April 2014 be noted. 

 
6. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

There were no updates from Members. 
 

7. CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF 
CABINET 
The Leader of the Council informed Cabinet that he had taken a decision with 
regard to three revised applications under the Community Pride Scheme, 
namely to award Cheltenham in Bloom £1,500 to purchase and install 
interpretation boards in the Italian Gardens in Sandford Park, to award £1,500 
to FOLK (Friends of Leckhampton Hill and Charlton Kings Common) to 
purchase and install interpretation boards to help visitors appreciate the Iron 
Age hillfort on top of Leckhampton Hill and to award £3,500 to the Friends of the 
Honeybourne Line to help them make improvements to the Queens Road 
entrance to the Honeybourne Line. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Chairman 

 

Page 3



Page 4
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 1 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2012 

Review of the council’s performance at end of 2012-13 
 

Accountable member Councillor Jon Walklett, Cabinet Member Corporate Services  
Accountable officer Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The report takes information and data from our performance management 

system to enable Cabinet to review the corporate performance of the 
organisation at the end of the financial year 2012-13 in order that Council 
can agree the report at its meeting on 24th June 2013 

Recommendations Cabinet to endorse the review of performance in 2012-13 ahead of the 
report going to Council on 24 June 2013. 

 
Financial implications None as a result of this report 

 
Legal implications None as a result of this report 

 
HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None as a result of this report 

Key risks The business planning process helps the council manage risk in a number 
of areas, but particularly through creating a strategic framework for the 
management of projects and initiatives. 
If we do not respond to performance information, then we may not direct 
change and improvement in a positive direction. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

This report sets out performance information relating to the delivery of 
corporate priorities in 2012-13. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None identified as a result of this report 

Agenda Item 5
Page 5



 

   

Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 2 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

1. Background 
1.1 The council agreed its corporate strategy action plan 2012-13 in March 2012. The action plan set 

out our 5 objectives and 10 outcomes and a range of milestones and indicators to measure 
performance in 2012-13. 

1.2 The performance report takes information and data from our performance management system to 
provide Cabinet with an overview of how the council performed last year. There are three 
performance appendices – Appendix 2 is an overview of performance against the 10 outcomes in 
terms of what went well and what didn’t go so well. Appendix 3 provides a more detailed picture of 
the progress made against the corporate strategy milestones and indicators. Appendix 4 lists out 
how Cheltenham Borough Homes has contributed to the delivery of the council’s outcomes.  

2. 2012-13 Performance Overview 
2.1 Corporate Strategy milestones 

2.2 In the 2012-13 action plan, we identified 78 milestones to track our progress. Out of these: 
• 56 (72%) of milestones were completed at the end of the year. 
• 16 milestones are classed as being amber as there are plans for their completion within a 

reasonable timeframe. 
• 6 milestones are red and will not be achieved within a reasonable timeframe. 

 The six red milestones are: 
Milestones owner Progress 

Completion of Joint Core Strategy 
(JCS) public consultation on preferred 
option. 

Mike Redman 

Further work is currently being undertaken by 
consultants Cambridge Centre for Planning and 
Research to be reported to Member Steering Group 
in May 2013. This will assist in reviewing the 
Objectively Assessed Need in light of projections 
arising from 2011 Census. 
To ignore the release of this data could make the 
JCS unsound. This additional work has impacted 
upon the JCS programme, pushing the public 
consultation back to September 2013. This delay has 
been agreed by JCS Cross-Boundary Programme 
Board. 

Consideration of JCS preferred option 
by Council for purposes of public 
consultation. 

Mike Redman 

The preferred option will not now be considered by 
the partner councils until September 2013, following 
additional evidential work commissioned by the 
Cambridge Centre for Housing and Planning 
Research looking at economic requirements. This 
process will need to agree both the objectively 
assessed need for development (including that 
required to support the economy) and the strategic 
locations for growth within the JCS area.  

Consideration of revisions to JCS in 
light of 2011/12 public consultation by 
CBC planning working group 

Mike Redman 
A timetable for the Cheltenham Plan has now been 
established, together with revised milestones for the 
JCS which will reach the preferred option stage in 
September 2013, with planned adoption after public 
examination following sequentially in 2014. 

Page 6



 

   

Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 3 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Community governance review of 
parish council boundaries – agree terms 
of reference 

Richard Gibson A decision was made by council to not proceed with 
the review as planned - will now be postponed to tie 
in with parish elections in 2018 

Community governance review – 
Undertake consultation Richard Gibson as above 

Community governance review – 
Report to council recommending future 
parish council boundaries 

Richard Gibson as above 

 
2.3 Performance indicators  

 In the 2012-13 action plan, we identified 52 key indicators to track our progress. Out of these: 
• 32 were indicators which CBC is directly accountable for and targets have been set.  
• 12 were indicators which CBC is directly accountable for and no targets have been set 
• 8 were community-based indicators for economic development and community safety 
 

 Out of the 32 CBC indicators with targets: 
• 26 (81%) were met; 
• 3 (9%) are currently red, meaning that they did not meet targets; 
• 3 (9%) have not yet been updated; 
 
The three red indicators are: 

Indicator Status 
end of 
year target 

Actual  
Commentary 

Amount of household 
waste reused, recycled 
and composted 
(quarterly) 

 48% 45.14% 

Whilst the total amount of waste recycled improved 
by 100 tonnes during 2012/13, the amounts of 
garden waste collected were below that estimated, 
which is assumed to be because of the wet summer. 
This shortfall together with an increase of 1,000 
tonnes of general waste collected compared to the 
previous year as a result of the continued collection 
of side waste in a number of areas within 
Cheltenham and the large amounts of waste 
produced after the snowfall, has impacted on the 
total percentage calculations and associated 
measured performance. 
 
The ‘no side waste’ and ‘closed bin lid’ policy 
enforcement began being introduced on a phased 
approach in July 2012 and had a positive effect in 
reducing the total amounts of general waste 
collected. Whilst it is not possible to provide an 
accurate estimation, the total increase in general 
waste would have undoubtedly been higher if this 
initiative hadn’t been launched, which would have 
had more of a negative impact on performance. 

Attendance on the Re-
Active programme 
(quarterly & cumulative)  12000 9,417 

Attendances registered through the reactive 
concessions schemes were affected by reduced 
referral numbers from health partners and changes 
in pricing which had caused some confusion for 
some of the clients and a degree of migration onto 
other concession schemes. 
 
 

Page 7



 

   

Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 4 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

The shortfalls seen in the first part of the year were 
not mirrored in second half of the year and low initial 
numbers skewed the result across the year.  The 
year closed with 9417 attendance recorded against 
a target of 10350. 
 
It is noteworthy that the attendances at the centre 
generally were ahead on previous years and against 
target achieving 304,000 versus a target of 302,000. 
 
In summary trends and actual attendances show a 
strong growth and uptake in the concession 
schemes on offer despite the small changes in one 
of two products. 

Number of reactive 
concession referrals 
(quarterly & cumulative)  350 281 

These link directly to the indicator above 
(attendances on the Reactive programme). 
Significant shortfalls in the first 6 months of the year 
ensured that the target would not be met.  Reduced 
NHS services linked to mental health and alternative 
schemes in combination with lower referrals, pricing 
changes resulted in a 33% shortfall Apr - 
Sep.  Actions over pricing, product and work with 
remaining NHS partners saw recovery in the second 
part of the year with referrals returning to target 
levels.  Sadly the cold weather in March saw the 
numbers in that single month fall very short skewing 
the 2nd half of the year.  Overall the year saw 281 
referrals to reactive concession cards against a 
target of 383. 
 
All concessions registered started in March 2012 at 
3003 and by March 2013 had grown to 3100. 
 
Wider membership also grew from 1189 to 1621 
members - a growth of over 36%. 

 
 

3. Consultation and feedback 
3.1 The draft performance report was presented to the council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

16th May 2013. Matters of interest included the Joint Core Strategy and the Parish Council 
boundary review where milestones were not met and the waste and recycling performance 
indicator which was below target. The committee was satisfied that appropriate mechanisms were 
in place to enable the effective scrutiny of future performance on these three matters.  

3.2 Other performance matters raised included progress on meeting the carbon emissions reduction 
target, provision of activities for young people and the future approach to neighbourhood 
management. Again the committee was satisfied that elected members had opportunities to 
contribute to the council’s approach to the first two matters and would consider looking at 
neighbourhood management at a future meeting.  

 
  

Page 8



 

   

Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 5 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Report author Contact officer:  
Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement Manager. 
01242 235 354 
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Review of outcomes 2012-13 
3. Corporate Performance 2012-13 
4. CBH contributions to CBC Corporate Plan 2012-13 

Background information 2012-13 Corporate Strategy action plan, Report to Council, 28th March 
2012 

 

Page 9



 

   
Cabinet 18 June 2013 Page 6 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CD5a If the division does not 
use performance 
information and feedback 
from customers, 
communities and elected 
members to effectively 
monitor the delivery of 
commissioned services in 
stage 4 of the 
commissioning cycle, then 
we will not be able to use 
this information to inform 
future commissioning 
exercises. 

Jane 
Griffiths 

March 
2013 

2 3 6 reduce Development of 
consistent performance 
management reporting 
for commissioned 
services 
 
Build into the Futures 
Council programme  
 

31-Mar-
14 

Rachel 
McKinnon 

on 
commissioning 
division risk 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 10



Re
vi

ew
 o

f o
ut

co
m

es
 2

01
2-

13
 

 O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

ha
s a

 cl
ea

n a
nd

 w
ell

-
ma

int
ain

ed
 en

vir
on

me
nt.

 
 

Du
rin

g 2
01

2/1
3 t

he
 co

un
cil 

sta
rte

d t
o e

nfo
rce

 its
 no

 si
de

 
wa

ste
 an

d c
los

ed
 lid

 po
licy

 on
 a 

ph
as

ed
 ba

sis
 to

 en
co

ura
ge

 
mo

re 
rec

yc
lin

g, 
red

uc
e t

he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
bla

ck
 ba

gs
 on

 
pa

ve
me

nts
 an

d r
ed

uc
e t

he
 am

ou
nt 

of 
wa

ste
 to

 
lan

dfi
ll. 

 O
ffic

ers
 ar

e w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o a
re 

fin
din

g 
it d

iffi
cu

lt t
o m

an
ag

e t
he

ir w
as

te 
an

d e
nc

ou
rag

ing
 th

em
 to

 
us

e t
he

 re
cy

clin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 w

hic
h a

re 
av

ail
ab

le.
 

Ca
bin

et 
in 

De
ce

mb
er 

ap
pro

ve
d t

he
 w

as
te 

po
licy

 w
hic

h s
ets

 
ou

t th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
po

lici
es

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 w

as
te 

an
d 

rec
yc

lin
g. 

 A 
sim

ila
r p

oli
cy

 w
ill b

e d
raw

n u
p f

or 
str

ee
t 

cle
an

sin
g. 

 Th
e n

um
be

r o
f s

ub
sc

rib
ers

 to
 th

e g
ard

en
 w

as
te 

sc
he

me
 is

 
co

nti
nu

ing
 to

 in
cre

as
e. 

 Ub
ico

 w
as

 es
tab

lish
ed

 on
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
12

 an
d a

re 
de

live
rin

g 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
CB

C.
  G

oo
d w

ork
ing

 re
lat

ion
sh

ips
 ha

ve
 

be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 co

mp
an

y a
nd

 th
e c

ou
nc

il t
o 

en
su

re 
tha

t th
e o

utc
om

es
 ca

n b
e a

ch
iev

ed
.   

 Du
rin

g t
he

 w
et 

we
ath

er 
an

d f
loo

din
g t

he
re 

wa
s a

 fo
cu

s f
rom

 
str

ee
t c

lea
nin

g o
n e

ns
uin

g w
he

re 
po

ss
ibl

e g
utt

ers
 an

d 
dra

ins
 w

ere
 ke

pt 
cle

ar.
 

 Ca
bin

et 
ha

s a
gre

ed
 to

 jo
in 

the
 jo

int
 w

as
te 

co
mm

itte
e f

rom
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
13

 w
hic

h w
ill p

rov
ide

 an
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o s
ha

re 
ide

as
 

an
d b

es
t p

rac
tic

e a
nd

 de
ve

lop
 se

rvi
ce

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
. 

 Th
e s

cru
tin

y c
om

mi
tte

e h
av

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e 
im

pa
cts

 of
 ba

d w
ea

the
r o

n t
he

 gr
as

s v
erg

es
 co

ntr
ac

t a
nd

 
als

o t
he

 im
pa

ct 
of 

sn
ow

 on
 w

as
te 

an
d r

ec
yc

lin
g a

nd
 

ide
nti

fie
d a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ac
tio

ns
 w

hic
h h

av
e b

ee
n a

pp
rov

ed
 

by
 ca

bin
et.

 
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il a

nd
 U

bic
o h

av
e c

on
tin

ue
d t

o w
ork

 w
ith

 
res

ide
nts

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 lit

ter
 pi

ck
s, 

sp
ec

ial
 st

ree
t c

lea
nin

g 
an

d m
ain

ten
an

ce
 of

 pa
rks

 an
d g

ard
en

s t
hro

ug
h f

rie
nd

s 
gro

up
s. 

  

Th
e w

et 
we

ath
er 

ov
er 

the
 su

mm
er 

im
pa

cte
d o

n t
he

 gr
ow

ing
 

se
as

on
 an

d a
lso

 on
 th

e w
ee

d c
on

tra
ct.

  T
he

 sn
ow

 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 
res

ult
ed

 in
 a 

dis
rup

tio
n t

o s
erv

ice
.  T

he
 w

ay
 in

 w
hic

h t
he

 co
un

cil 
de

alt
 w

ith
 th

e m
att

er 
ca

me
 un

de
r s

cru
tin

y a
nd

 su
gg

es
ted

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 ha
ve

 be
en

 pu
t in

 pl
ac

e f
oll

ow
ing

 a 
les

so
ns

 le
arn

t 
ex

erc
ise

. 
 So

 fa
r in

 th
os

e a
rea

s w
he

re 
the

 "n
o s

ide
 w

as
te"

 is
 be

ing
 

en
for

ce
d t

he
re 

ha
s b

ee
n l

ittl
e p

ub
lic 

rea
cti

on
 an

d m
os

t p
eo

ple
 

un
de

rst
an

d t
he

 ne
ed

 to
 re

cy
cle

.  I
t h

as
 ho

we
ve

r in
cre

as
ed

 th
e 

de
ma

nd
 fo

r re
cy

clin
g b

ins
.  T

he
re 

are
 ar

ea
s o

f th
e t

ow
n h

ow
ev

er 
wh

ere
 it 

ma
y b

e h
ard

er 
to 

im
ple

me
nt 

wh
ich

 is
 w

hy
 th

e s
ch

em
e i

s 
be

ing
 un

de
rta

ke
n i

n a
 ph

as
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h. 

 Th
e a

ctu
al 

tur
n-o

ut 
for

 Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ho

us
eh

old
 w

as
te 

reu
se

d, 
rec

yc
led

 an
d c

om
po

ste
d w

as
 45

.14
%,

 3%
 be

low
 th

e t
arg

et 
of 

48
%.

 Al
tho

ug
h t

he
 am

ou
nt 

of 
wa

ste
 fo

r re
cy

clin
g i

nc
rea

se
d b

y 
10

0 t
on

ne
s, 

the
re 

wa
s a

lso
 an

 in
cre

as
e o

f 1
,00

0 t
on

ne
s o

f 
ge

ne
ral

 w
as

te 
co

lle
cte

d w
hic

h i
mp

ac
ted

 on
 th

e p
erc

en
tag

e 
ca

lcu
lat

ion
s. 

  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 Page 11



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m’

s n
atu

ral
 an

d b
uil

t 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

is 
en

ha
nc

ed
 an

d 
pro

tec
ted

. 
 

Th
e P

rom
en

ad
e (

ea
st)

 fo
otw

ay
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

sc
he

me
 w

as
 

co
mp

let
ed

,w
ith

 ag
ree

d e
nh

an
ce

d m
ate

ria
ls 

(yo
rk 

sto
ne

) 
fun

de
d b

y C
BC

. T
he

 Pr
om

en
ad

e (
we

st)
 fo

otw
ay

 is
 no

w 
un

de
rw

ay
. 

 Fo
llo

win
g f

irs
t s

tag
e p

ub
lic 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 th
e J

oin
t C

ore
 

Str
ate

gy
 (J

CS
) a

nd
 in

 lig
ht 

of 
the

 ne
w 

Na
tio

na
l P

lan
nin

g 
Po

licy
 Fr

am
ew

ork
, a

 na
tio

na
lly 

res
pe

cte
d c

on
su

lta
nt 

wa
s 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 to

 re
vie

w 
the

 va
lid

ity
 of

 ad
vic

e o
n t

he
 

ob
jec

tiv
ely

 as
se

ss
ed

 ne
ed

 fo
r h

ou
sin

g w
ith

in 
the

 JC
S a

rea
. 

A r
ep

ort
 to

 C
ou

nc
il o

n t
his

 is
su

e w
as

 co
ns

ide
red

 on
 24

th 
Se

pte
mb

er 
an

d a
dd

itio
na

l w
ork

 re
qu

es
ted

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 

ho
us

eh
old

 fo
rm

ati
on

. A
n O

&S
 JC

S t
as

k g
rou

p w
as

 
es

tab
lish

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 th
is 

wo
rk 

for
wa

rd 
an

d r
ep

ort
 its

 fin
din

gs
 

to 
the

 JC
S M

em
be

r S
tee

rin
g g

rou
p (

MS
G)

. 
 Th

e O
&S

 JC
S t

as
k g

rou
p c

om
mi

ss
ion

ed
 w

ork
 on

 
ho

us
eh

old
 fo

rm
ati

on
 fro

m 
the

 C
am

bri
dg

e C
en

tre
 fo

r 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d P

lan
nin

g R
es

ea
rch

. It
s f

ind
ing

s w
ill b

e 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 O

&S
 in

 Ja
nu

ary
 an

d O
&S

 w
ill m

ak
e 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s t
o t

he
 JC

S M
SG

. 
 Th

e U
rba

n D
es

ign
 te

am
 su

pp
ort

ed
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

co
mm

un
ity

-
led

 st
ree

t-s
ca

pe
 pr

oje
cts

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 to
 th

e 
Ro

ad
 Bl

oc
k i

n M
ers

ey
 an

d A
vo

n R
oa

ds
 in

 W
ha

dd
on

 an
d 

the
 Ba

th 
Ro

ad
 pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 is
 ne

ari
ng

 co
mp

let
ion

. 
 

Fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g u

nd
ert

ak
en

 by
 co

ns
ult

an
ts 

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 C
en

tre
 fo

r P
lan

nin
g a

nd
 R

es
ea

rch
 to

 be
 re

po
rte

d t
o 

Me
mb

er 
Ste

eri
ng

 G
rou

p i
n M

ay
 20

13
. T

his
 w

ill a
ss

ist
 in

 
rev

iew
ing

 th
e O

bje
cti

ve
ly 

As
se

ss
ed

 N
ee

d i
n l

igh
t o

f p
roj

ec
tio

ns
 

ari
sin

g f
rom

 20
11

 C
en

su
s. 

To
 ig

no
re 

the
 re

lea
se

 of
 th

is 
da

ta 
co

uld
 m

ak
e t

he
 JC

S u
ns

ou
nd

. 
Th

is 
ad

dit
ion

al 
wo

rk 
ha

s i
mp

ac
ted

 up
on

 th
e J

CS
 pr

og
ram

me
, 

pu
sh

ing
 th

e p
ub

lic 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ba
ck

 to
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

13
. T

his
 

de
lay

 ha
s b

ee
n a

gre
ed

 by
 JC

S C
ros

s-B
ou

nd
ary

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
Bo

ard
. 

Ca
rbo

n e
mi

ss
ion

s a
re 

red
uc

ed
 an

d 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

is 
ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t to
 th

e 
im

pa
cts

 of
 cl

im
ate

 ch
an

ge
. 

 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il h
as

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 ne

w 
lig

hti
ng

 in
 R

eg
en

t 
Ar

ca
de

 ca
r p

ark
 w

hic
h w

ill s
av

e 2
00

,00
0k

g o
f C

O2
 as

 w
ell

 
ma

kin
g f

ina
nc

ial
 sa

vin
gs

. W
e a

re 
als

o p
rog

res
sin

g a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

IC
T r

ela
ted

 pr
oje

cts
 w

hic
h w

ill r
ed

uc
e o

ur 
ca

rbo
n 

em
iss

ion
s. 

 
Ca

bin
et 

in 
No

ve
mb

er 
co

ns
ide

red
 a 

rep
ort

 on
 th

e f
ea

sib
ility

 
of 

wh
eth

er 
the

 co
un

cil 
sh

ou
ld 

ad
op

t a
 ta

rge
t o

f 4
0%

 
red

uc
tio

n b
y 2

02
0. 

Ca
bin

et 
ag

ree
d t

o k
ee

p t
he

 cu
rre

nt 
ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n t

arg
et 

of 
30

% 
by

 20
15

, a
nd

 ap
pro

ve
d 

fur
the

r w
ork

 to
: 

• 
Ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ten
tia

l fo
r S

ma
rt m

ete
rin

g t
o r

ed
uc

es
 co

sts
 

• 
LE

D 
lig

hti
ng

 w
ill i

ns
tal

led
 in

 Se
pte

mb
er 

to 
the

 m
ain

 po
ol 

ha
ll a

t L
eis

ure
@

 
• 

Th
e i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
is 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 fa
cili

tat
e t

he
 in

sta
lla

tio
n o

f 
a p

ow
er 

pe
rfe

cto
r in

 M
ay

. 

Gi
ve

n t
he

 cu
rre

nt 
fin

an
cia

l s
itu

ati
on

 it 
is 

im
po

rta
nt 

tha
t p

roj
ec

ts 
wh

ich
 se

ek
 to

 re
du

ce
 ca

rbo
n e

mi
ss

ion
s a

re 
se

en
 as

 an
 “in

ve
st 

to 
sa

ve
” in

itia
tiv

e a
nd

 th
at 

cle
ar 

fin
an

cia
l a

nd
 en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
as

pe
cts

 ar
e d

em
on

str
ate

d w
he

n p
utt

ing
 fo

rw
ard

 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 

ca
se

s. 
 Th

e c
arb

on
 em

iss
ion

s f
igu

res
 ar

e n
ot 

ye
t a

va
ila

ble
 as

 no
t a

ll t
he

 
en

erg
y b

ills
 in

 ye
t. F

igu
res

 w
ill b

e c
alc

ula
ted

 an
d s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e 
an

nu
al 

em
iss

ion
s r

ep
ort

 
 

Page 12



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

ha
s a

 st
ron

g a
nd

 
su

sta
ina

ble
 ec

on
om

y 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il la

un
ch

ed
 th

e s
ec

on
d r

ou
nd

 of
 th

e P
rom

oti
ng

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Fu
nd

; a
 to

tal
 of

 £1
41

,50
0 w

as
 al

loc
ate

d t
o 2

2 
pro

jec
ts.

  
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

To
uri

sm
 w

ere
 su

cc
es

sfu
l in

 se
cu

rin
g a

 £2
5k

 
gra

nt 
fro

m 
the

 Pr
om

oti
ng

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Fu

nd
 fo

r th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

a n
ew

 to
uri

sm
 w

eb
sit

e -
 M

ark
eti

ng
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m.
  

 Pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 ha

s b
ee

n s
ec

ure
d f

or 
No

rth
 

Pla
ce

/Po
rtla

nd
 St

ree
t s

ite
 su

bje
ct 

to 
fin

ali
sa

tio
n o

f U
nil

ate
ral

 
Un

de
rta

kin
g. 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

ha
ve

 be
en

 ex
ch

an
ge

d w
ith

 th
e d

ea
l 

pla
nn

ed
 to

 be
 co

mp
let

ed
 in

 th
e s

um
me

r 
 Pla

nn
ing

 pe
rm

iss
ion

 fo
r P

ha
se

 2 
wo

rks
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e 
Br

ew
ery

 co
mp

lex
 w

ere
 ap

pro
ve

d i
n J

uly
 20

12
, s

ub
jec

t to
 a 

Se
cti

on
 10

6 a
gre

em
en

t to
 se

cu
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 pl
an

nin
g 

ob
lig

ati
on

s. 
 In 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
11

6 n
ew

 bu
sin

es
se

s s
tar

ted
 up

 in
 O

cto
be

r 
20

12
, 2

9 m
ore

 th
an

 th
e p

rev
iou

s m
on

th 
an

d 2
6 m

ore
 th

an
 

in 
Oc

tob
er 

20
11

. T
his

 eq
ua

tes
 to

 a 
rat

e o
f 1

5.5
 st

art
‐

up
s 

pe
r 1

0,0
00

 w
ork

ing
 ag

e i
nd

ivid
ua

ls.
 In

 te
rm

s o
f in

du
str

y t
he

 
mo

st 
sta

rt‐
up

s w
ere

 in
 th

e R
ea

l e
sta

te,
 pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 ac
tiv

itie
s s

ec
tor

. T
his

 re
fle

cts
 th

e 
pic

tur
e s

ee
n a

t C
ou

nty
 le

ve
l. 

 Sig
ns

 of
 ec

on
om

ic 
gro

wt
h c

on
tin

ue
 in

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 as

 m
an

y 
oth

er 
sh

op
s h

av
e r

ec
en

tly
 op

en
ed

 th
eir

 do
ors

, h
igh

lig
hti

ng
 

the
 to

wn
 is

 st
ill a

n a
ttra

cti
ve

 pl
ac

e f
or 

ret
ail

ers
 to

 in
ve

st 
in.

 
Ne

w 
arr

iva
ls 

inc
lud

ed
 U

S o
rga

nic
 an

d n
atu

ral
 fo

od
 re

tai
ler

 
W

ho
le 

Fo
od

s M
ark

et,
 w

hic
h t

his
 au

tum
n o

pe
ne

d o
nly

 it’
s 

se
co

nd
 U

K s
ho

p o
uts

ide
 Lo

nd
on

. P
itta

 Pl
ac

e, 
a h

ea
lth

y f
as

t 
foo

d a
lte

rna
tiv

e i
n t

he
 H

igh
 St

ree
t, b

ett
ing

 sh
op

 Pa
dd

y 
Po

we
r a

nd
 Th

e P
res

en
t P

eo
ple

 in
 th

e R
eg

en
t A

rca
de

. 
Th

ere
 ar

e a
lso

 Ex
pa

ns
ion

 pl
an

s f
or 

TK
 M

ax
x a

nd
 R

ive
r 

Isl
an

d, 
as

 w
ell

 as
 th

e a
rriv

al 
of 

H&
M 

an
d T

oy
s R

 U
s l

ate
r 

thi
s y

ea
r.  

    

Th
e u

ne
mp

loy
me

nt 
rat

e, 
at 

3.1
% 

rem
ain

s h
igh

er 
tha

n i
n 

Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 as
 a 

wh
ole

; th
ere

 ar
e t

hre
e w

ard
s w

hic
h a

re 
in 

the
 10

% 
wa

rds
 w

ith
 th

e h
igh

es
t c

lai
ma

nt 
rat

es
 in

 th
e c

ou
nty

; S
t. 

Ma
rks

 (5
.4%

), H
es

ter
s W

ay
 (6

.1%
) a

nd
 O

ak
ley

 (6
.4%

).  
 In 

ter
ms

 of
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 no
t in

 ed
uc

ati
on

, e
mp

loy
me

nt 
or 

tra
ini

ng
, C

he
lte

nh
am

 ha
s t

he
 hi

gh
es

t ra
te 

in 
the

 co
un

ty 
at 

5.1
%,

 
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r h

as
 a 

rat
e o

f 4
.6%

.  

Page 13



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Co

mm
un

itie
s f

ee
l s

afe
 an

d a
re 

sa
fe.

 
 

Ta
ck

lin
g a

cq
uis

itiv
e c

rim
e –

 a 
ris

e i
n d

om
es

tic
 bu

rgl
ari

es
 

pro
mp

ted
 a 

hu
ge

 am
ou

nt 
of 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ork

ing
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

thi
s r

ise
 ea

rlie
r th

is 
ye

ar;
 cr

im
e r

ate
s h

av
e n

ow
 de

cre
as

ed
; 

ov
er 

57
% 

de
cre

as
e s

inc
e l

as
t y

ea
r. 

 Re
du

cin
g a

lco
ho

l re
lat

ed
 vi

ole
nc

e (
RA

RV
) –

 C
BC

 ha
s 

rei
nv

igo
rat

ed
 th

e R
AR

V p
roj

ec
t in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e r
ise

s i
n 

vio
len

t c
rim

e a
ss

oc
iat

ed
 w

ith
 th

e n
igh

t ti
me

 ec
on

om
y. 

 Su
pp

ort
ing

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d m

an
ag

em
en

t –
 C

BC
 co

nti
nu

ed
 

to 
wo

rk 
wit

h c
om

mu
nit

ies
 th

rou
gh

 th
e 1

4 n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 
co

ord
ina

tio
n g

rou
ps

 to
 ta

ck
le 

the
 is

su
es

 of
 m

os
t im

po
rta

nc
e 

to 
the

m.
 

 Ta
ck

lin
g a

nti
-so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
s (

AS
B)

  –
 C

BC
 ha

s c
on

tin
ue

d 
to 

wo
rk 

in 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 ta
ck

le 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
via

 th
e 

AS
B s

tee
rin

g g
rou

p -
 AS

B r
ate

s a
re 

do
wn

 41
% 

fro
m 

las
t 

ye
ar.

 
 Sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 – 
CB

C 
he

lpe
d w

ork
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
Gl

ou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 Sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 Bo
ard

 (G
SC

B)
 

an
d t

he
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 Sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 Fo

rum
 to

 pr
om

ote
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e o

f s
afe

gu
ard

ing
. T

his
 in

clu
din

g h
os

tin
g a

 
se

mi
na

r o
n s

afe
gu

ard
ing

 in
 Fe

bru
ary

. 

Re
ce

nt 
ris

es
 in

 vi
ole

nt 
cri

me
 is

 be
ing

 m
on

ito
red

 an
d r

es
po

nd
ed

 
to 

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 de

ce
nt 

an
d 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
. 

 
A t

ota
l o

f 1
01

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us

ing
 co

mp
let

ion
s w

ere
 lo

gg
ed

 
in 

the
 ye

ar;
 th

is 
wa

s m
ad

e u
p o

f 2
7 s

ha
red

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

pro
pe

rtie
s, 

30
 So

cia
l re

nt 
pro

pe
rtie

s, 
18

 Af
for

da
ble

 re
nt 

pro
pe

rtie
s a

nd
 26

 Su
pp

ort
ed

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

. 
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

av
e a

do
pte

d a
 ho

us
ing

 an
d h

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 

str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h s

ets
 ou

t a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ou

tco
me

s a
s w

ell
 as

 a 
hig

h l
ev

el 
de

live
ry 

pla
n a

s t
o h

ow
 th

es
e o

utc
om

es
 w

ill b
e 

de
live

red
.  T

he
 st

rat
eg

y i
nc

lud
es

 th
e c

ou
nc

il's
 ho

us
ing

 
ren

ew
al 

po
lici

es
 fo

r p
riv

ate
 re

nte
d s

ec
tor

. 
 Th

e h
ou

sin
g o

pti
on

s s
erv

ice
 is

 be
ing

 re
vie

we
d t

o e
ns

ure
 

tha
t it

 is
 de

live
rin

g a
ga

ins
t th

e o
utc

om
es

 as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 st

rat
eg

y a
nd

 w
he

the
r th

e s
erv

ice
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e 

red
es

ign
ed

 to
 m

ee
t fu

tur
e n

ee
d a

nd
 de

ma
nd

s. 
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il c

on
tin

ue
s t

o w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e s

up
po

rtin
g p

eo
ple

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

hic
h l

oo
ks

 at
 ho

us
ing

 su
pp

ort
 ne

ed
s. 

Th
e d

em
an

d f
or 

ho
us

ing
 re

ma
ins

 hi
gh

 an
d w

elf
are

 re
for

ms
 w

ill 
on

ly 
inc

rea
se

 th
e p

res
su

re 
on

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us

ing
. 

 Th
e s

up
po

rtin
g p

eo
ple

 pr
og

ram
me

 ha
s a

 ch
all

en
gin

g 
de

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

mi
t w

hic
h c

ou
ld 

im
pa

ct 
on

 vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op

le.
 C

BC
 ha

s b
ee

n w
ork

ing
 vi

a t
he

 Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 m
itig

ate
 an

y p
ote

nti
al 

im
pa

cts
.  

Page 14



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il a

nd
 C

BH
 ha

ve
 id

en
tifi

ed
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 an

d f
un

din
g s

olu
tio

ns
 fo

r S
t P

au
ls 

ph
as

e 2
, 

Ca
ke

bri
dg

e P
lac

e a
nd

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ga

rag
e s

ite
s a

nd
 th

e 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 de

cis
ion

s h
av

e b
ee

n m
ad

e t
o e

na
ble

 th
is 

to 
pro

gre
ss

 in
 20

13
/14

. 
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 C
BH

 w
ere

 ab
le 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

ad
dit

ion
al 

res
ou

rce
s w

ith
in 

the
 H

ou
sin

g R
ev

en
ue

 Ac
co

un
t 

(H
RA

) to
 he

lp 
mi

tig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f w

elf
are

 re
for

m 
on

 
ten

an
ts 

an
d a

lso
 to

 pu
t in

 ad
dit

ion
al 

co
mm

un
ity

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re.

  T
he

 H
RA

 ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 us

ed
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 PV

 
pa

ne
ls 

in 
so

me
 pr

op
ert

ies
 w

hic
h w

ill h
elp

 re
du

ce
 th

e c
os

t o
f 

ele
ctr

ic 
for

 th
e t

en
an

ts.
 

 Th
e s

up
po

rtin
g p

eo
ple

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ha
s l

et 
ne

w 
co

ntr
ac

ts 
for

 
vu

lne
rab

le 
ad

ult
s w

ith
 co

mp
lex

 ne
ed

s w
hic

h h
as

 re
su

lte
d i

n 
ad

dit
ion

al 
pro

vis
ion

 in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 - p
rev

iou
sly

 al
l s

up
po

rt 
wa

s b
as

ed
 in

 G
lou

ce
ste

r. 
 Th

e c
ou

nc
il a

nd
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 ha

ve
 be

en
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
wh

o w
ill b

e a
ffe

cte
d b

y t
he

 w
elf

are
 re

for
ms

.  
 

Pe
op

le 
are

 ab
le 

to 
lea

d h
ea

lth
y 

life
sty

les
. 

 

Th
e S

po
rts

, P
lay

 an
d H

ea
lth

y L
ife

sty
les

 Te
am

 co
ord

ina
ted

 
a n

um
be

r o
f h

oli
da

y a
nd

 sp
ort

s p
rog

ram
me

s w
ith

 to
tal

 
att

en
da

nc
es

 of
 10

,75
0 f

or 
the

 ye
ar.

 Th
e S

um
me

r h
oli

da
y 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
20

12
 sa

w 
a r

ec
ord

 br
ea

kin
g S

um
me

r o
f 

Sp
ort

 pr
og

ram
me

 th
at 

att
rac

ted
 a 

tot
al 

of 
18

18
 at

ten
da

nc
es

. 
 In 

Ma
y t

he
 te

am
 co

-or
din

ate
d t

he
 on

ce
 in

 a 
life

tim
e O

lym
pic

 
To

rch
 R

ela
y c

ele
bra

tio
ns

 w
hic

h s
aw

 th
e O

lym
pic

 To
rch

 
ca

rrie
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 st
ree

ts 
of 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
on

 its
 w

ay
 to

 a 
ce

leb
rat

ion
 ev

en
t a

t C
he

lte
nh

am
 R

ac
ec

ou
rse

 w
hic

h 
fea

tur
ed

 a 
wid

er 
ran

ge
 of

 sp
ort

ing
 ac

tiv
itie

s a
nd

 ar
tis

tic
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
s f

rom
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y g

rou
ps

. It
 ha

s b
ee

n 
es

tim
ate

d t
ha

t a
s m

an
y a

s 3
0,0

00
 w

atc
he

d t
he

 To
rch

 R
ela

y 
pa

ss
 th

rou
gh

 th
e s

tre
ets

, w
ith

 a 
fur

the
r 2

5,0
00

 at
ten

din
g t

he
 

Ra
ce

co
urs

e e
ve

nt 
- a

ll o
f w

hic
h w

ill h
av

e b
ee

n i
ns

pir
ed

 by
 

the
 O

lym
pic

s 
    

In 
ter

ms
 of

 th
e a

cti
ve

 re
fer

ral
 pr

og
ram

me
, C

BC
 ha

s m
et 

wit
h t

he
 

ref
err

ing
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d t

he
 m

ain
 ca

us
e f

or 
the

 dr
op

 in
 re

fer
ral

s 
an

d s
ub

se
qu

en
t a

cti
vit

y h
as

 be
en

 a 
ch

an
ge

 in
 re

fer
rin

g 
pe

rso
nn

el 
fro

m 
2g

eth
er 

tru
st 

ha
s m

ov
ed

 de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
an

d 
reo

rga
nis

ati
on

 ha
s m

ea
nt 

a d
rop

 in
 re

fer
ral

s. 
 Th

e p
hy

sio
the

rap
y 

tea
ms

 ha
ve

 al
so

 un
de

rgo
ne

 si
gn

ific
an

t o
rga

nis
ati

on
al 

ch
an

ge
 

an
d h

av
e n

ow
 pu

t a
cti

on
s i

n p
lac

e t
o r

es
tar

t th
e r

efe
rra

l 
pro

ce
ss

es
. 

 In 
Fe

bru
ary

 an
d M

arc
h, 

ov
era

ll t
rad

ing
 w

as
 qu

iet
er 

tha
n h

op
ed

 in
 

so
me

 ar
ea

s o
f b

us
ine

ss
, fo

rw
ard

 en
qu

irie
s a

nd
 bo

ok
ing

s i
nto

 
ne

xt 
ye

ar 
we

re 
str

on
g, 

for
thc

om
ing

 m
ate

rni
ty 

lea
ve

 w
ill s

ee
 

inc
rea

se
d w

ait
ing

 tim
es

 fo
r re

fer
ral

 sc
he

me
s d

es
pit

e t
he

 ba
ck

fill 
su

pp
ort

 av
ail

ab
le.

 

Page 15



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Le

isu
re@

 ha
s s

ee
n c

on
tin

ue
d s

tro
ng

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 an

d 
so

me
 pr

og
res

s w
ith

 N
HS

 pa
rtn

ers
.  O

ve
ral

l fo
otf

all
s a

re 
hig

he
r th

an
 ta

rge
t in

clu
din

g t
ho

se
 ta

rge
t g

rou
ps

 in
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
. G

en
era

l M
em

be
rsh

ip 
lev

els
 co

nti
nu

e t
o r

ec
ov

er 
bo

os
ted

 by
 th

e s
um

me
r p

rom
oti

on
s a

nd
 at

 th
e e

nd
 of

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
me

mb
ers

hip
 w

as
 ab

ov
e t

arg
et 

for
 th

e 
ye

ar.
  E

nro
lm

en
ts 

on
 co

urs
es

 ha
ve

 ag
ain

 be
en

 th
e l

arg
es

t 
on

 re
co

rd 
wit

h w
ell

 ov
er 

10
00

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 en

rol
led

 on
 

co
urs

es
. 

Ou
r re

sid
en

ts 
en

joy
 a 

str
on

g s
en

se
 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 an

d i
nv

olv
ed

 in
 

res
olv

ing
 lo

ca
l is

su
es

. 
 

Th
is 

ye
ar 

ha
s s

ee
n a

 hu
ge

 am
ou

nt 
of 

ac
tiv

ity
 to

 bu
ild

 
str

on
ge

r c
om

mu
nit

ies
; 

• 
Tw

o a
ss

et-
ba

se
d c

om
mu

nit
y d

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
roj

ec
ts 

we
re 

su
pp

ort
ed

 an
d b

oth
 ha

ve
 no

w 
se

cu
red

 ad
dit

ion
al 

fun
din

g 
fro

m 
Ba

rnw
oo

d T
rus

t; 
• 

£1
m 

se
cu

red
 fro

m 
the

 Lo
tte

ry 
to 

de
live

r a
 Bi

g L
oc

al 
pro

jec
t in

 th
e S

t. P
ete

rs 
an

d t
he

 M
oo

rs 
- a

cti
vit

y 
un

de
rw

ay
 to

 en
ga

ge
 an

d i
nv

olv
e r

es
ide

nts
; 

• 
A n

ew
 PA

CT
 pr

oje
ct 

lau
nc

he
d t

o s
up

po
rt r

es
ide

nts
 ne

ar 
the

 H
on

ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
; 

• 
16

 gr
ou

ps
 re

ce
ive

d c
om

mu
nit

y p
rid

e g
ran

ts 
to 

im
pro

ve
 

the
ir n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
s a

nd
 14

 gr
ou

ps
 re

ce
ive

d s
ma

lle
r 

gra
nts

 up
 to

 th
e v

alu
e o

f £
25

0 t
o r

un
 sm

all
-sc

ale
 pr

oje
cts

, 
ev

en
ts 

an
d a

cti
vit

ies
 to

 he
lp 

the
m 

bu
ild

 be
tte

r 
co

mm
un

itie
s; 

• 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Pr

ide
 gr

an
ts 

we
re 

se
cu

red
 by

 fiv
e n

ew
 

co
mm

un
ity

 gr
ou

ps
 

• 
19

 co
mm

un
ity

-ba
se

d o
rga

nis
ati

on
s s

ec
ure

d f
un

din
g t

o 
de

live
r p

os
itiv

e a
cti

vit
ies

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 ye

ar 
of 

the
 po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s f

un
d; 

• 
Th

e I
ns

pir
ing

 Fa
mi

lie
s p

roj
ec

t w
as

 w
ork

ed
 w

ith
 30

 
vu

lne
rab

le 
fam

ilie
s t

o t
urn

 th
eir

 liv
es

 ar
ou

nd
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

go
ve

rnm
en

t's
 tro

ub
led

 fa
mi

lie
s p

roj
ec

t; 
• 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il p
ub

lish
ed

 a 
bo

ok
 to

 ce
leb

rat
e t

he
 Q

ue
en

s 
Dia

mo
nd

 Ju
bil

ee
 

A d
ec

isio
n w

as
 m

ad
e b

y c
ou

nc
il t

o n
ot 

pro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 go

ve
rna

nc
e r

ev
iew

 as
 pl

an
ne

d -
 w

ill n
ow

 be
 

po
stp

on
ed

 to
 tie

 in
 w

ith
 pa

ris
h e

lec
tio

ns
 in

 20
18

. 

Ar
ts 

an
d c

ult
ure

 ar
e u

se
d a

s a
 

me
an

s t
o s

tre
ng

the
n c

om
mu

nit
ies

, 
str

en
gth

en
 th

e e
co

no
my

 an
d 

en
ha

nc
e a

nd
 pr

ote
ct 

ou
r 

en
vir

on
me

nt.
 

 

Th
e w

ork
 to

 th
e A

rt G
all

ery
 an

d M
us

eu
m 

ha
s c

on
tin

ue
d 

thr
ou

gh
ou

t 2
01

2-1
3 a

nd
 al

tho
ug

h b
eh

ind
 or

igi
na

l s
ch

ed
ule

, 
go

od
 pr

og
res

s i
s n

ow
 be

ing
 m

ad
e. 

Th
e c

on
tra

cto
rs 

“IS
G”

 
ha

ve
 no

w 
ind

ica
ted

 a 
rev

ise
d d

ate
 fo

r c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

e 
ma

jor
 pa

rt o
f w

ork
s b

y t
he

 30
th 

Ap
ril 

20
13

. H
ow

ev
er,

 w
ork

 
wil

l s
till 

co
nti

nu
e o

n t
he

 ad
joi

nin
g w

all
s o

f N
o.5

1 a
nd

 th
e 

19
89

 bu
ild

ing
.  F

rom
 th

e 1
 M

ay
, w

ork
 w

ill s
tar

t o
n s

om
e 

are
as

 of
 th

e f
itti

ng
 ou

t p
rog

ram
me

. 

Du
e t

o t
he

 de
lay

 in
 ha

nd
ov

er 
of 

the
 bu

ild
ing

 by
 IS

G,
 th

is 
ha

s a
 

kn
oc

k o
n e

ffe
ct 

to 
int

ern
al 

fit-
ou

t c
om

ple
tio

n d
ate

, n
ow

 re
vis

ed
 to

 
31

 Ju
ly 

wit
h t

he
 op

en
ing

 sc
he

du
led

 fo
r la

ter
 in

 20
13

.  

Page 16



O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
co

mp
lis

he
d s

o f
ar

 to
 de

liv
er

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e o

bs
ta

cle
s/

blo
ck

ag
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 af
fe

ct 
de

liv
er

y o
f t

his
 ou

tco
me

? 
Pr

es
s a

nd
 m

ed
ia 

int
ere

st 
ha

s i
nc

rea
se

d a
s t

he
 co

mp
let

ion
 

of 
the

 m
ajo

r b
uil

din
g w

ork
 ne

ars
. T

he
 fu

nd
rai

sin
g c

am
pa

ign
 

is 
co

nti
nu

ing
 to

 be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 th

rou
gh

 va
rio

us
 ev

en
ts 

by
 th

e 
Fri

en
ds

 of
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 AG
&M

 an
d t

he
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 AG
&M

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

tru
st.

 Th
is 

inc
lud

ed
 th

e l
au

nc
h o

f a
 pu

bli
c 

fun
dra

isin
g s

pe
cif

ic 
we

bs
ite

 in
 Fe

bru
ary

 - M
yF

ac
e 

  
Th

e c
ou

nc
il d

eli
ve

rs 
ca

sh
ab

le 
sa

vin
gs

, a
s w

ell
 as

 im
pro

ve
d 

cu
sto

me
r s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 ov
era

ll a
nd

 
be

tte
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 of
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il h
as

 de
live

red
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 th
at 

ha
ve

 
de

live
red

 ca
sh

ab
le 

sa
vin

gs
 ov

er 
the

 pa
st 

ye
ar.

 
• 

Th
e G

O 
Sh

are
d S

erv
ice

s (
GO

SS
) p

rog
ram

me
 ha

s s
ee

n 
the

 in
tro

du
cti

on
 of

 a 
sh

are
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 ou
r fi

na
nc

e, 
HR

, 
pa

yro
ll a

nd
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s a

cro
ss

 fo
ur 

co
un

cils
 – 

W
es

t O
xfo

rds
hir

e, 
Co

tsw
old

, F
ore

st 
of 

De
an

 an
d 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m.
 G

OS
S a

lso
 pr

ov
ide

s s
erv

ice
s t

o U
bic

o a
nd

 
CB

H.
 G

OS
S i

s e
sti

ma
ted

 to
 sa

ve
 C

BC
 £2

70
k. 

 
• 

W
e h

av
e s

et 
up

 a 
sh

are
d I

CT
 se

rvi
ce

 w
ith

 Fo
res

t o
f D

ea
n 

Dis
tric

t C
ou

nc
il w

hic
h w

ill c
rea

te 
ad

dit
ion

al 
res

ilie
nc

e i
n 

the
 se

rvi
ce

, c
rea

te 
the

 fra
me

wo
rk 

for
 a 

£1
m 

inv
es

tm
en

t 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 w
ill d

eli
ve

r a
nn

ua
l s

av
ing

s o
f £

15
9,5

00
 

pe
r a

nn
um

 by
 20

15
/16

. 
• 

W
e h

av
e s

et 
up

 U
bic

o w
ith

 C
ots

wo
ld 

DC
, w

hic
h w

ill s
av

e 
£9

1k
.  

 Th
e c

ou
nc

il f
ou

nd
 sa

vin
gs

 / i
nc

rea
se

d i
nc

om
e o

f £
1.2

m 
to 

me
et 

the
 20

13
-14

 bu
dg

et 
ga

p. 
 

 

Th
e i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e H

R 
se

lf-s
erv

ice
 fu

nc
tio

n o
f th

e n
ew

 
ag

res
so

 bu
sin

es
s w

orl
d p

lat
for

m 
ha

s b
ee

n d
ela

ye
d t

ho
ug

h i
s 

sc
he

du
led

 to
 be

 im
ple

me
nte

d i
n M

ay
 20

13
.   

 

Page 17



Page 18
This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3 -
 C

orp
ora

te 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 Q
ua

rte
r 4

 20
12

-13
 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
ha
s a
 cl
ea
n a
nd
 w
ell
-m
ain
ta
ine
d e
nv
iro
nm
en
t. 

  Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
inc

rea
se 

tak
e-u

p o
f th

e 
ga

rde
n w

ast
e a

nd
 tr

ad
e w

ast
e 

sch
em

es.
 

   
 

Ex
plo

re 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 

inc
rea

se 
pla

sti
c r

ec
ycl

ing
 fo

r 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 in
 th

e 2
01

3/1
4 

bu
dg

et.
 

Fri
-30

-
No

v-1
2 

Ro
b B

ell,
 

Sc
ott

 
Wi

llia
ms

 
 

Q4
 An

 op
tio

ns
 ap

pra
isa

l / 
fea

sib
ilit

y s
tud

y h
as 

be
en

 de
ve

lop
ed

. T
his

 sh
ow

s t
ha

t a
ny

 
inc

rea
se 

in 
the

 pr
ov

isio
n o

f p
las

tic
 re

cyc
lin

g f
rom

 ke
rbs

ide
 w

ill 
req

uir
e a

 ch
an

ge
 of

 ve
hic

le.
 

Th
e l

en
gth

y l
ea

d t
im

e f
or 

pro
cu

rem
en

t o
f n

ew
 ve

hic
les

 an
d u

nc
ert

ain
ty 

ov
er 

ind
us

try
 

gu
ida

nc
e o

n m
ixe

d g
las

s r
ec

ycl
ing

 ha
s m

ea
nt 

tha
t c

ha
ng

es 
to 

ke
rbs

ide
 re

cyc
lin

g a
re 

no
t 

po
ssi

ble
 fo

r 2
01

3/1
4. 

Of
fic

ers
 ar

e c
on

tin
uin

g t
o e

xp
lor

e o
pti

on
s a

nd
 w

ill 
foc

us
 on

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 to
 th

e b
rin

g s
ite

 se
rvi

ce
 w

hic
h i

s s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e 2

01
3-1

4 c
orp

ora
te 

str
ate

gy
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 as
 ac

tio
n E

NV
1 

 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 ro

ll o
ut 

of 
the

 
ga

rde
n w

ast
e b

ag
 sc

he
me

 
an

d m
on

ito
r t

ak
e-u

p. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Ro

b B
ell,

 
Sc

ott
 

Wi
llia

ms
 

 

Q4
 

Ro
ll-o

ut 
im

ple
me

nte
d t

ho
ug

h t
ak

e u
p c

on
tin

ue
s t

o b
e l

im
ite

d. 
 H

ow
ev

er 
sid

e w
ast

e 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

ha
sn

't b
ee

n r
oll

ed
 ou

t in
 m

os
t o

f th
e a

rea
s w

he
re 

the
 ba

g s
ch

em
e i

s 
op

era
tio

na
l a

nd
 so

 ta
ke

 up
 m

ay
 in

cre
ase

 w
he

n t
he

 si
de

 w
ast

e/c
los

ed
 lid

 po
licy

 is
 

op
era

tio
na

l. 
 

We
 w

ill 
en

su
re 

a s
mo

oth
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e n

ew
 Lo

ca
l 

Au
tho

rity
 Co

mp
an

y, 
Ub

ico
, fr

om
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
12

. 

   
 

Ne
w 

co
mp

an
y e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 
Su

n-1
-

Ap
r-1

2 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

, 
Ro

b B
ell 

 

Q4
 - 

Co
mp

an
y e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 (U
bic

o L
td)

 w
ith

 50
/50

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

be
tw

ee
n C

he
lte

nh
am

 Bo
rou

gh
 

Co
un

cil 
an

d C
ots

wo
ld 

Dis
tric

t C
ou

nc
il. 

Ub
ico

 Lt
d c

om
me

nc
ed

 tr
ad

ing
 in

 Ap
ril 

20
12

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 
ser

vic
es 

for
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Bo
rou

gh
 Co

un
cil.

 Co
tsw

old
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 st
aff

 w
ere

 tr
an

sfe
rre

d t
o 

Ub
ico

 in
 Au

gu
st 

20
12

. 
 

Tra
ns

fer
 of

 SI
TA

 em
plo

ye
es 

(C
ots

wo
ld)

. 
Mo

n-6
-

Au
g-1

2 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

, 
Ro

b B
ell 

 

Q4
 

Co
mp

let
e –

 as
 ab

ov
e 

 

Wo
rk 

wit
h o

the
r p

art
ne

rs 
wh

o w
ish

 to
 jo

in 
the

 
co

mp
an

y. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

, 
Ro

b B
ell 

 

Q4
 - 

TB
C h

av
e d

ela
ye

d a
 de

cis
ion

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 jo
ini

ng
 th

e U
bic

o p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
un

til 
a t

ec
hn

ica
l 

ma
tte

r r
eg

ard
ing

 VA
T h

as 
be

en
 re

so
lve

d. 
In 

the
 m

ea
nti

me
, U

bic
o c

on
tin

ue
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ser

vic
es 

to 
TB

C. 
Th

is 
ma

tte
r is

 st
ill 

ou
tst

an
din

g a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 ro

lled
 in

to 
20

13
/14

 
 

We
 w

ill 
wo

rk 
wit

h G
CC

 an
d o

the
r 

dis
tric

ts 
on

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 
Joi

nt 
Wa

ste
 Co

mm
itte

e. 
To

 re
vie

w 
the

 bu
sin

ess
 ca

se 
an

d r
ep

ort
 ba

ck 
to 

Ca
bin

et.
 

Su
n-3

0-
Se

p-1
2 

Jan
e 

Gr
iffi

ths
 

 

Q4
 - 

 Ca
bin

et 
at 

the
ir m

ee
tin

g i
n D

ec
em

be
r e

nd
ors

ed
 th

eir
 pr

ev
iou

s d
ec

isio
n t

o j
oin

 th
e 

joi
nt 

wa
ste

 co
mm

itte
e w

ith
 ef

fec
t fr

om
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
13

.  T
he

 II
A w

as 
sig

ne
d a

t t
he

 en
d o

f 
Ma

rch
 an

d t
he

 ne
w 

joi
nt 

wa
ste

 co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 jo

int
 m

an
ag

em
en

t u
nit

 es
tab

lish
ed

 fr
om

 1 
Ap

ril 
wit

h r
esp

on
sib

ilit
ies

 de
leg

ate
d t

o t
he

 co
mm

itte
e. 

 A 
me

mb
er 

sem
ina

r w
as 

he
ld 

so
 th

at 
the

re 
wa

s a
 gr

ea
ter

 un
de

rst
an

din
g o

f th
e i

mp
lica

tio
ns

 of
 jo

ini
ng

 th
e c

om
mi

tte
e. 

 
  

Page 19



 

Page 20



 Ch
elt
en
ha
m'
s n
at
ur
al 
an
d b
uil
t e
nv
iro
nm
en
t i
s e
nh
an
ce
d a
nd
 pr
ot
ec
te
d 

   Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
im

ple
me

nt 
the

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 

of 
the

 Bu
ilt 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
rev

iew
 an

d p
rep

are
 fo

r m
ark

et 
tes

tin
g i

n 
20

13
. 

Bu
sin

ess
 pl

an
 se

ttin
g o

ut 
ho

w 
ser

vic
e w

ill 
de

live
r t

he
 

ag
ree

d o
utc

om
es.

 
Th

u-3
1-

Ma
y-1

2 
Mi

ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

 

Th
ree

 ye
ar 

bu
sin

ess
 pl

an
 an

d a
sso

cia
ted

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

atr
ix 

su
bm

itte
d t

o t
he

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 di
vis

ion
. 

We
 w

ill 
im

ple
me

nt 
the

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 

of 
the

 Bu
ilt 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
rev

iew
 an

d p
rep

are
 fo

r m
ark

et 
tes

tin
g i

n 
20

13
. 

Fir
st 

int
eri

m 
rev

iew
 of

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 
Th

u-2
0-

Se
p-1

2 
Mi

ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

 

Q4
 - 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 re

po
rts

 be
ing

 su
bm

itte
d q

ua
rte

rly
 to

 th
e C

om
mi

ssi
on

ing
 di

vis
ion

, 
wit

h a
sso

cia
ted

 re
vie

w 
me

eti
ng

s t
ak

ing
 pl

ac
e i

n t
an

de
m.

 
 Bu

ild
ing

 Co
ntr

ol 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w 
no

w 
inc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 Co
rpo

rat
e B

us
ine

ss 
pla

n f
or 

20
13

-14
, b

ut 
ma

rke
t t

est
ing

 of
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

wa
s d

rop
pe

d f
rom

 th
e 

co
rpo

rat
e w

ork
pla

n a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f c

ha
ng

ing
 pr

ior
itie

s. 
 Sig

nif
ica

nt 
div

isio
na

l a
ch

iev
em

en
ts 

rec
ord

ed
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

cti
vit

y, 
wo

rk 
in 

su
pp

ort
 of

 th
e C

he
lte

nh
am

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t T

ask
 Fo

rce
 an

d t
o m

an
ag

e t
he

 
tra

ns
itio

n o
f th

e o
n-s

tre
et 

pa
rki

ng
 se

rvi
ce

 to
 GC

C's
 ch

os
en

 pr
iva

te 
co

ntr
ac

tor
, th

us
 

ne
ce

ssi
tat

ing
 th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 a 

rev
ise

d o
ff-

str
ee

t p
ark

ing
 so

lut
ion

 fo
r C

BC
. 

We
 w

ill 
list

en
 to

 th
e f

ee
db

ac
k f

rom
 th

e 
de

ve
lop

ing
 op

tio
ns

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d b
rin

g 
for

wa
rd 

the
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 fo

r t
he

 Jo
int

 
Co

re 
Str

ate
gy

 fo
r c

ou
nc

il a
pp

rov
al 

in 
20

12
.  

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 pu

bli
c 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 pr
efe

rre
d 

op
tio

n. 
Fri

-15
-

No
v-1

3 
Mi

ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

 

Q4
 - 

Fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
be

ing
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y c
on

su
lta

nts
 Ca

mb
rid

ge
 Ce

ntr
e f

or 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d R
ese

arc
h t

o b
e r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 M
SG

 M
ay

 20
13

.  T
his

 w
ill 

ass
ist

 in
 re

vie
win

g t
he

 
Ob

jec
tiv

ely
 As

ses
sed

 Ne
ed

 in
 lig

ht 
of 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 20
11

 Ce
ns

us
.  T

o 
ign

ore
 th

e r
ele

ase
 of

 th
is 

da
ta 

wo
uld

 m
ak

e t
he

 JC
S u

ns
ou

nd
.  A

dd
itio

na
l w

ork
 ha

s 
im

pa
cte

d u
po

n t
he

 JC
S p

rog
ram

me
, p

us
hin

g p
ub

lic 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ba
ck 

to 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

13
.  R

ev
ise

d p
rog

ram
me

 ag
ree

d b
y J

CS
 Cr

os
s B

ou
nd

ary
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

Bo
ard

.  
Th

is 
is 

set
 ou

t in
 th

e 2
01

3-1
4 c

orp
ora

te 
str

ate
gy

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 as
 ac

tio
n 

EN
V5

 
 

   
 

Co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 pr
efe

rre
d 

op
tio

n b
y C

ou
nc

il f
or 

pu
rpo

ses
 of

 pu
bli

c 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

. 

Mo
n-

30
-Se

p-
13

 
Mi

ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

 

Q4
 - 

the
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 w

ill 
no

t n
ow

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 by

 th
e p

art
ne

r C
ou

nc
ils 

un
til 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
13

, fo
llo

win
g a

dd
itio

na
l e

vid
en

tia
l w

ork
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 by
 th

e 
Ca

mb
rid

ge
 Ce

ntr
e f

or 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d P

lan
nin

g R
ese

arc
h l

oo
kin

g a
t e

co
no

mi
c 

req
uir

em
en

ts.
 Th

is 
pro

ce
ss 

wil
l n

ee
d t

o a
gre

e b
oth

 th
e o

bje
cti

ve
ly 

ass
ess

ed
 ne

ed
 

for
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

(in
clu

din
g t

ha
t r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e e
co

no
my

) a
nd

 th
e 

str
ate

gic
 lo

cat
ion

s f
or 

gro
wt

h w
ith

in 
the

 JC
S a

rea
.  T

his
 is

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 20

13
-14

 
co

rpo
rat

e s
tra

teg
y a

cti
on

 pl
an

 as
 ac

tio
n E

NV
5 

We
 w

ill 
list

en
 to

 th
e f

ee
db

ac
k f

rom
 th

e 
de

ve
lop

ing
 op

tio
ns

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d b
rin

g 
for

wa
rd 

the
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 fo

r t
he

 Jo
int

 
Co

re 
Str

ate
gy

 fo
r c

ou
nc

il a
pp

rov
al 

in 
20

12
. 

Co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 re
vis

ion
s t

o 
JC

S i
n l

igh
t o

f 2
01

1/1
2 p

ub
lic 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 by

 CB
C p

lan
nin

g 
wo

rki
ng

 gr
ou

p. 

Mo
n-

30
-Se

p-
13

 
Mi

ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

 

Q4
 - 

A t
im

eta
ble

 fo
r t

he
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Pla
n h

as 
no

w 
be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
, to

ge
the

r w
ith

 
rev

ise
d m

iles
ton

es 
for

 th
e J

CS
 w

hic
h w

ill 
rea

ch
 th

e p
ref

err
ed

 op
tio

n s
tag

e i
n 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
13

, w
ith

 pl
an

ne
d a

do
pti

on
 af

ter
 pu

bli
c e

xa
mi

na
tio

n f
oll

ow
ing

 
seq

ue
nti

ally
 in

 20
14

. T
his

 is
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 20
13

-14
 co

rpo
rat

e s
tra

teg
y a

cti
on

 pl
an

 
as 

ac
tio

n E
NV

5 
 

Page 21



 

*W
ha

dd
on

 pr
oje

ct 
co

mp
let

e. 
*B

ath
 R

oa
d 

pro
jec

t - 
ne

ari
ng

 co
mp

let
ion

. F
urt

he
r w

ork
 

thi
s q

ua
rte

r - 
GC

C 
hig

hw
ay

 sa
fet

y s
ch

em
e 

(co
mp

let
ed

); i
ns

tal
lat

ion
 of

 pl
an

ter
s 

(co
mp

let
ed

) - 
CB

C 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Pr

ide
 

fun
din

g; 
ref

res
h e

xis
tin

g s
tre

et 
fur

nit
ure

 
(co

mp
let

ed
), d

es
ign

 w
ork

 fo
r in

for
ma

tio
n 

pa
ne

ls 
an

d w
elc

om
e s

ign
s, 

pre
pa

rat
ory

 
wo

rk 
for

 fro
nt 

ga
rde

n d
es

ign
 an

d p
lan

tin
g 

pro
jec

t - 
bo

th 
CB

C 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Fu
nd

; 
de

sig
n w

ork
 fo

r p
ub

lic 
art

 (c
om

ple
te)

 an
d 

pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 se

cu
red

 - C
BC

 Pu
bli

c 
Ar

t P
an

el 
fun

din
g. 

Page 22



  Ca
rb
on
 em
iss
ion
s a
re
 re
du
ce
d a
nd
 Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
ab
le 
to
 ad
ap
t t
o t
he
 im
pa
cts
 of
 cl
im
at
e c
ha
ng
e. 

 

W
ho

 ha
s h

elp
ed

 co
mp

let
e t

his
 ca

rd
? 

Jan
e G

riff
ith

s 
Gil

l M
orr

is 
Da

vid
 Ro

be
rts

 
  

W
ha

t h
as
 be

en
 ac

co
mp

lis
he

d s
o f

ar
 to

 de
liv

er
 th

e o
ut
co
me

? 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

as 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 ne
w 

lig
hti

ng
 in

 Re
ge

nts
 Ar

ca
de

 ca
r p

ark
 w

hic
h w

ill 
sav

e 2
00

,00
0k

g o
f C

O2
 as

 w
ell 

as 
fin

an
cia

l s
av

ing
s. 

 It
 is

 pr
og

res
sin

g a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ICT

 re
lat

ed
 pr

oje
cts

 w
hic

h 
wil

l re
du

ce
 ou

r c
arb

on
 em

iss
ion

s, 
as 

we
ll a

s a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
pro

pe
rty

 re
lat

ed
 pr

oje
cts

.  I
t is

 an
tic

ipa
ted

 th
at 

the
 to

tal
 CO

2 e
mi

ssi
on

s s
av

ing
s w

ill 
be

 in
 th

e r
eg

ion
 of

 57
0,0

00
kg

. 
Ca

bin
et 

in 
No

ve
mb

er 
co

ns
ide

red
 a 

rep
ort

 on
 th

e f
ea

sib
ilit

y o
f w

he
the

r t
he

 co
un

cil 
sh

ou
ld 

ad
op

t a
 ta

rge
t o

f 4
0%

 re
du

cti
on

 by
 20

20
. 

Ca
bin

et 
ag

ree
d t

o k
ee

p t
he

 cu
rre

nt 
ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n t

arg
et 

of 
30

% 
by

 20
15

, a
nd

 ap
pro

ve
d f

urt
he

r w
ork

 to
: 

 ·   
  e

xp
lor

e t
he

 po
ten

tia
l fo

r S
ma

rt 
me

ter
ing

 to
 he

lp 
in 

Bri
dg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 
.   

  L
ED

 lig
hti

ng
 w

ill 
ins

tal
led

 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
to 

the
 m

ain
 po

ol 
ha

ll a
t L

eis
ure

@ 
.   

  T
he

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e i

s i
n p

lac
e t

o f
ac

ilit
ate

 th
e i

ns
tal

lat
ion

 of
 a 

po
we

r p
erf

ec
tor

 in
 M

ay
. 

 ·   
  c

on
tin

ue
 to

 ex
plo

re 
oth

er 
ini

tia
tiv

es 
to 

de
live

r f
ina

nc
ial 

an
d c

arb
on

 sa
vin

gs
 

  

Ho
w 

ha
s t

his
 be

en
 pr

om
ot
ed

? 
Th

e i
ntr

an
et 

an
d t

he
 in

ter
ne

t a
re 

us
ed

 to
 pr

om
ote

 th
e p

roj
ec

ts 
wh

ich
 ar

e u
nd

erw
ay

 an
d a

re 
als

o u
sed

 as
 a 

wa
y o

f r
ais

ing
 aw

are
ne

ss 
am

on
gs

t e
mp

loy
ee

s a
nd

 m
em

be
rs.

 
Ea

ch
 di

vis
ion

 ha
s b

ee
n a

ske
d t

o u
pd

ate
 its

 cl
im

ate
 ch

an
ge

 ris
k a

sse
ssm

en
t. 

Pro
pe

rty
 Se

rvi
ce

s t
o a

rra
ng

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 
  

W
ha

t a
re
 th

e o
bs
ta
cle

s/
blo

ck
ag

es
 th

at 
ma

y a
ffe

ct 
de

liv
er
y o

f t
his

 ou
tco

me
? 

Giv
en

 th
e c

urr
en

t fi
na

nc
ial 

sit
ua

tio
n i

t is
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t p
roj

ect
s w

hic
h s

ee
k t

o r
ed

uc
e c

arb
on

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
see

n a
s a

n i
nv

est
 to

 sa
ve

 in
itia

tiv
e a

nd
 th

at 
cle

ar 
fin

an
cia

l a
nd

 en
vir

on
me

nta
l 

asp
ec

ts 
are

 de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 w

he
n p

utt
ing

 fo
rw

ard
 th

e b
us

ine
ss 

ca
ses

 
  

Gi
ve

n a
ny

 ob
sta

cle
s/
blo

ck
ag

es
 yo

u n
ow

 se
e-
wh

at
 ar

e t
he

 ne
xt
 st

ep
s?
 

Ca
bin

et 
in 

No
ve

mb
er 

ind
ica

ted
 th

at 
the

y a
sp

ire
 to

 a 
tar

ge
t o

f 4
0%

 by
 20

20
 an

d a
pp

rov
ed

 fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
to:

 
 ·   

  lo
ok

 in
 m

ore
 de

tai
l a

t t
he

 ca
se 

for
 in

sta
llin

g a
 bi

om
ass

 bo
iler

 at
 Le

isu
re@

 as
 a 

po
ten

tia
l re

pla
ce

me
nt 

for
 th

e c
om

bin
ed

 he
at 

an
d p

ow
er 

(CH
P) 

un
it o

n e
xp

iry
 of

 th
e l

ea
se 

in 
20

15
 

 ·   
  e

xp
lor

e a
dd

itio
na

l p
roj

ec
ts 

wh
ich

 re
du

ce
 th

e c
ou

nc
il's

 ca
rbo

n f
oo

tpr
int

 
 3. 

  C
ab

ine
t r

eq
uir

es 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 ca

rbo
n e

mi
ssi

on
s a

s a
 ke

y c
rite

rio
n i

n d
ev

elo
pin

g t
he

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 st
rat

eg
y 

 4. 
  C

ab
ine

t r
eq

ue
sts

 th
at 

ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
s r

ela
tin

g t
o a

ll f
utu

re 
co

un
cil 

pro
jec

ts 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 lik

ely
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e c
ou

nc
il's

 ca
rbo

n e
mi

ssi
on

s 
  

Page 23



 Ca
rb
on
 em
iss
ion
s a
re
 re
du
ce
d a
nd
 Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
ab
le 
to
 ad
ap
t t
o t
he
 im
pa
cts
 of
 cl
im
at
e c
ha
ng
e. 

 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
im

ple
me

nt 
a r

an
ge

 of
 en

erg
y s

av
ing

 
ini

tia
tiv

es 
tha

t w
ill 

red
uc

e t
he

 co
un

cil'
s c

arb
on

 
em

iss
ion

s. 
Ev

ap
ora

tiv
e c

oo
lin

g i
ns

tal
led

 in
 th

e 
ser

ve
r r

oo
m 

at 
the

 M
un

icip
al 

Of
fic

es.
 

Mo
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
4 

Da
vid

 
Ro

be
rts

 
 

Q4
 - 

De
sig

n a
nd

 bu
ild

 so
lut

ion
 w

ill 
be

 re
qu

ire
d t

ha
t w

ill 
be

 su
bje

ct 
to 

Lis
ted

 Bu
ild

ing
 co

ns
en

t a
nd

 Bu
sin

ess
 Ca

se.
 Cu

rre
ntl

y o
n h

old
 pe

nd
ing

 
rel

oc
ati

on
 to

 al
ter

na
tiv

e p
rem

ise
s. 

   
 

Gr
os

ve
no

r T
err

ac
e c

ar-
pa

rk 
up

gra
de

d. 
Mo

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

4 
Da

vid
 

Ro
be

rts
 

 
Q4

 - 
ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n m

ea
su

res
 w

ill 
be

 co
ns

ide
red

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 

rev
iew

 to
 de

ter
mi

ne
 pr

ior
itie

s o
f id

en
tifi

ed
 Ca

pit
al 

Sc
he

me
s. 

   
 

Lo
w 

en
erg

y L
ED

 lig
hti

ng
 in

sta
lled

 in
 

the
 sw

im
mi

ng
 po

ol 
ha

ll a
t 

Le
isu

re@
. 

Mo
n-3

0-
Se

p-1
3 

Da
vid

 
Ro

be
rts

 
 

Q4
 - 

Va
rio

us
 LE

D u
nit

s t
ria

lled
. O

pti
mu

m 
de

sig
n s

olu
tio

n b
ein

g s
ou

gh
t. 

Wi
ll b

e c
on

sid
ere

d a
s p

art
 of

 th
e C

ap
ita

l S
ch

em
e r

ev
iew

 w
hic

h w
ill 

de
ter

mi
ne

 in
ve

stm
en

t p
rio

riti
es.

 

   
 

Vo
lta

ge
 op

tim
isa

tio
n p

roj
ec

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d i

n c
ou

nc
il b

uil
din

gs
. 

Fri
-31

-
Ma

y-1
3 

Da
vid

 
Ro

be
rts

 
 

Q4
 - 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
in 

pla
ce

, p
ow

er 
pe

rfe
cto

r t
o b

e i
ns

tal
led

 by
 en

d o
f 

Ma
y. 

   

Page 24



 

Page 25



 Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 20

11
 

Pro
mo

tin
g C

he
lte

nh
am

 Fu
nd

 to
 in

for
m 

ho
w 

the
 20

12
 fu

nd
s a

re 
allo

ca
ted

.  

As
ses

s a
pp

lica
tio

ns
 an

d a
wa

rd 
fun

din
g. 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 

Q4
 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 -
 Fi

na
l d

ec
isio

ns
 m

ad
e a

nd
 pu

bli
sh

ed
. I

n t
ota

l 4
2 a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 w
ere

 
rec

eiv
ed

, w
ith

 a 
cu

mu
lat

ive
 re

qu
est

 fo
r £

53
2,0

00
. T

he
se 

we
re 

ass
ess

ed
 by

 a 
pa

ne
l a

nd
 a 

rep
ort

 w
en

t to
 ca

bin
et 

on
 17

 Ju
ly 

ma
kin

g d
ec

isio
ns

 ab
ou

t h
ow

 th
e 

fun
din

g w
ou

ld 
be

 al
loc

ate
d. 

 
 

La
un

ch
 20

12
 ro

un
d w

ith
 cl

ea
r 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n g
uid

elin
es 

an
d p

rom
ote

 
wid

ely
. 

Mo
n-

30
-Ap

r-
12

 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gib
so

n 
 

Q4
 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 20
12

 ro
un

d l
au

nc
he

d i
n A

pri
l 2

01
2 

We
 w

ill 
ma

ke
 si

gn
ific

an
t p

rog
res

s o
n 

ou
r p

lan
s t

o r
ev

ita
lise

 Ch
elt

en
ha

m'
s 

tow
n c

en
tre

 th
rou

gh
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Ta

sk 
Fo

rce
. 

 

Co
mp

let
e p

lan
s t

o r
ev

ita
lise

 
Gr

os
ve

no
r T

err
ac

e c
ar 

pa
rk.

 
Sa

t-3
1-

Au
g-1

3 
Jer

em
y 

Wi
llia

ms
on

 
 

Q4
 

Fir
st 

ph
ase

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
rep

air
s a

nd
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 co
mp

let
e; 

Th
e c

ar 
pa

rk 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

-na
me

d T
ow

n C
en

tre
 Ea

st.
 A 

sig
na

ge
 pr

oje
ct 

ha
s b

ee
n f

ull
y s

co
pe

d a
nd

 
rea

dy
 fo

r im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

s s
oo

n a
s t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
No

rth
 pl

ac
e a

nd
 

Po
rtla

nd
 St

ree
t c

om
me

nc
es.

  
 

Co
mp

let
e t

he
 sa

le 
of 

No
rth

 
Pla

ce
/Po

rtla
nd

 St
ree

t w
hic

h i
tse

lf i
s 

pre
dic

ate
d o

n r
ec

eip
t o

f a
 pl

an
nin

g 
pe

rm
iss

ion
. 

Fri
-31

-
Au

g-1
2 

Jer
em

y 
Wi

llia
ms

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Pla
nn

ing
 se

cu
red

 fo
r N

ort
h P

lac
e/P

ort
lan

d S
tre

et 
sit

e s
ub

jec
t t

o f
ina

lisa
tio

n 
of 

Un
ilat

era
l U

nd
ert

ak
ing

. C
on

tra
cts

 ex
ch

an
ge

d; 
de

al 
wil

l b
e c

om
ple

ted
 in

 th
e 

su
mm

er 
  

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 th
e o

pp
ort

un
ity

 of
 

AG
M 

red
ev

elo
pm

en
t to

 br
ing

 
for

wa
rd 

pla
ns

 to
 re

ge
ne

rat
e S

t. 
Ma

rys
 Ch

urc
hy

ard
. 

Fri
-31

-
Au

g-1
2 

Jer
em

y 
Wi

llia
ms

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

dis
cu

ssi
on

s c
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 va
rio

us
 pa

rtn
ers

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 di

oc
ese

.  
   

Us
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o 
im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss 
to 

the
 Br

ew
ery

 sit
e 

fro
m 

the
 H

igh
 St

ree
t a

nd
 im

pro
ve

 
the

 lo
ca

l s
tre

et-
sce

ne
. 

Su
n-3

0-
Se

p-1
2 

Jer
em

y 
Wi

llia
ms

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 fo

r P
ha

se 
2 w

ork
s t

o i
mp

rov
e t

he
 Br

ew
ery

 co
mp

lex
 

we
re 

ap
pro

ve
d i

n J
uly

 20
12

, s
ub

jec
t t

o a
 Se

cti
on

 10
6 a

gre
em

en
t to

 se
cu

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 pl

an
nin

g o
bli

ga
tio

ns
. B

rew
ery

 ai
mi

ng
 to

 fin
alis

e S
10

6 i
n o

rde
r t

o 
trig

ge
r s

top
pin

g-u
p o

rde
r o

n B
ay

nh
am

 w
ay

. 
 

Inv
est

 co
llab

ora
tiv

ely
 w

ith
 GC

C 
ov

er 
Pro

me
na

de
 Ea

st 
pu

bli
c r

ea
lm

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

. 
Su

n-3
0-

Se
p-1

2 
Jer

em
y 

Wi
llia

ms
on

 
 

Q4
 - 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 an
d n

ex
t p

ha
se 

Pro
me

na
de

 W
est

 ha
s b

eg
un

. 
  

Wo
rk 

wit
h G

CC
 to

 re
vie

w 
fin

din
gs

 
fro

m 
Jun

cti
on

 ef
fic

ien
cy 

tria
l o

n S
t. 

Ma
rga

ret
's R

oa
d. 

Sa
t-3

0-
Ju

n-1
2 

Jer
em

y 
Wi

llia
ms

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Jun
cti

on
 ef

fic
ien

cy 
tria

l to
ok

 pl
ac

e i
n N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 a

nd
 de

em
ed

 a 
su

cce
ss 

su
bje

ct 
to 

fut
ure

 am
en

dm
en

ts 
an

d f
un

din
g b

ein
g a

va
ilab

le 
for

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s. 

  
We

 w
ill 

co
mm

iss
ion

 su
pp

ort
 an

d a
dv

ice
 

for
 lo

ca
l b

us
ine

sse
s s

o t
ha

t t
he

y a
re 

mo
re 

res
ilie

nt.
 

En
su

re 
tha

t t
he

 bu
sin

ess
 su

pp
ort

 
ser

vic
e i

s i
n p

lac
e a

s s
oo

n a
s 

po
ssi

ble
. 

Sa
t-3

0-
Ju

n-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 

Q4
 - 

Co
ntr

act
s h

av
e n

ow
 be

en
 en

ter
ed

 in
to 

wit
h G

los
 En

ter
pri

se 
Ltd

 w
ho

 
co

mm
en

ce
d t

he
 se

ssi
on

s i
n J

an
ua

ry 
 

We
 w

ill 
pre

pa
re 

for
 th

e m
ov

e o
f o

ur 
To

uri
st 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 Ce
ntr

e t
o t

he
 

red
ev

elo
pe

d A
rt 

Ga
ller

y a
nd

 M
us

eu
m 

rea
dy

 fo
r o

pe
nin

g i
n A

pri
l 2

01
3. 

 

Ex
plo

re 
fun

din
g f

or 
a n

ew
 to

uri
sm

 
we

bs
ite

. 
Mo

n-
30

-Ap
r-

12
 

Jan
e 

Lill
yst

on
e 

 

Q4
 

Fu
nd

ing
 se

cu
red

 Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
To

uri
sm

 w
ere

 su
cce

ssf
ul 

in 
sec

uri
ng

 a 
£2

5k
 gr

an
t 

fro
m 

the
 Pr

om
oti

ng
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Fu
nd

 fo
r t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a n

ew
 to

uri
sm

 
we

bs
ite

 - 
Ma

rke
tin

g C
he

lte
nh

am
. S

inc
e A

pri
l, a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 ev

en
ts 

/ 

Page 26



ses
sio

ns
 ha

ve
 ta

ke
n p

lac
e w

ith
 ke

y e
xte

rna
l a

nd
 in

ter
na

l s
tak

eh
old

ers
 - 

inc
lud

ing
 

Co
tsw

old
 To

uri
sm

. F
oll

ow
ing

 th
ese

 se
ssi

on
s, 

a w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p i

s c
urr

en
tly

 be
ing

 
dra

wn
 to

ge
the

r t
o r

eg
ula

rly
 ad

vis
e a

nd
 lin

k i
nto

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 br
ief

 fo
r 

the
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

of 
a d

esi
gn

er 
/ c

on
ten

t. 
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

sig
na

ge
 w

ith
in 

the
 to

wn
 

(i.e
. s

ign
po

sti
ng

 vi
sit

ors
 to

 th
e n

ew
 

bu
ild

ing
) w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 

as 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 re

-lo
ca

tio
n p

lan
s. 

Su
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
3 

Jan
e 

Lill
yst

on
e 

 

Q4
 

Inp
ut 

int
o t

his
 pr

oje
ct 

is 
no

w 
co

mp
let

e. 
Sta

ff h
av

e a
tte

nd
ed

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 th
e 

Wa
yfa

rer
s s

tra
teg

y g
rou

p i
np

utt
ing

 in
to 

thi
s k

ey
 pr

oje
ct 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t t

he
 TI

C i
s 

sig
np

os
ted

. 
  

Te
sti

ng
 ne

w 
wa

ys 
of 

de
live

rin
g 

joi
nt 

TIC
 / 

AG
&M

 cu
sto

me
r s

erv
ice

s 
pri

or 
to 

the
 m

ov
e, 

rea
dy

 fo
r t

he
 

op
en

ing
. 

Sa
t-1

-
Ju

n-1
3 

Jan
e 

Lill
yst

on
e 

 

Q4
 

Wo
rk 

wil
l p

rog
res

s o
n t

his
 un

til 
the

 re
op

en
ing

 of
 th

e n
ew

 bu
ild

ing
 an

d t
he

 
rel

oc
ati

on
 of

 th
e T

IC.
 

  
 

 

Page 27



 Co
mm
un
iti
es
 fe
el 
sa
fe 
an
d a
re
 sa
fe.

 
 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
wo

rk 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 

red
uc

e t
he

 im
pa

ct 
of 

alc
oh

ol 
to 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 

an
d f

am
ilie

s a
nd

 al
co

ho
l-

rel
ate

d v
iol

en
ce

. 

   
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 Re
du

cin
g A

lco
ho

l R
ela

ted
 Vi

ole
nc

e 
Pro

jec
t a

nd
 up

da
te 

the
 pr

inc
ipl

es 
an

d C
od

es 
of 

Pra
cti

ce
 to

 m
ee

t c
ha

ng
es 

to 
cu

rre
nt 

lice
ns

ing
 

leg
isla

tio
n. 

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 
Tre

vo
r 

Gla
dd

ing
 

 

Q4
 - 

On
 go

ing
 pr

oc
ess

 al
so

 no
w 

lin
kin

g i
n t

o P
&C

C's
 Cr

im
e P

lan
. C

od
es 

of 
Pra

cti
ce

 &
 Be

st 
Ba

r N
on

e S
ch

em
e c

on
tin

uin
g t

o b
e u

pd
ate

d a
nd

 w
ill 

no
w 

inc
lud

e i
nv

olv
em

en
t o

f C
ard

iff 
Mo

de
l (I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 re
ce

ive
d f

rom
 

A&
E a

dm
iss

ion
s r

e m
isu

se 
of 

alc
oh

ol 
res

ult
ing

 in
 vi

ole
nc

e).
 Al

so
 lo

ok
ing

 
at 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 w
ay

s t
o u

pd
ate

 an
d r

efr
esh

 or
igi

na
l re

sea
rch

 do
cu

me
nts

 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 ca
sca

din
g t

his
 pr

oje
ct 

in 
on

e f
orm

 or
 an

oth
er 

to 
oth

er 
dis

tric
ts 

ac
ros

s t
he

 co
un

ty 
in 

lin
e w

ith
 th

e a
bo

ve
 Cr

im
e P

lan
 

Su
pp

ort
 th

e e
sta

bli
sh

me
nt 

of 
a T

ask
 an

d F
ini

sh
 

Gr
ou

p t
o c

on
sid

er 
ho

w 
be

st 
to 

red
uc

e t
he

 
ha

rm
 th

at 
alc

oh
ol 

cau
ses

 to
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le.

 
Sa

t-3
0-

Ju
n-1

2 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gib
so

n 
 

Q4
 – 

Ta
sk 

an
d F

ini
sh

 gr
ou

p c
on

tin
ue

s t
o m

ee
t; 

an
d i

s b
rin

gin
g a

 
pro

po
sal

 to
 fa

st-
tra

ck 
str

ee
t d

rin
ke

rs 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e t

rea
tm

en
t p

ath
wa

y t
o 

Po
sit

ive
 Li

ve
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

on
 17

 Ja
n. 

 Ac
tio

n d
ay

 pl
an

ne
d t

o t
arg

et 
str

ee
t d

rin
ke

rs 
wit

h i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 an

d s
up

po
rt 

on
 18

 Ja
n. 

 Se
co

nd
 un

de
r 

ag
e d

rin
kin

g o
pe

rat
ion

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

in 
Oc

tob
er 

ha
lf t

erm
 an

d s
om

e y
ou

th 
wo

rk 
ou

tre
ac

h s
ess

ion
s t

o b
e d

on
e i

n H
ath

erl
ey

 Pa
rk 

in 
res

po
ns

e t
o 

rep
ort

s f
rom

 th
ere

.   
 

We
 w

ill 
co

nti
nu

e t
o w

ork
 in

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 re
du

ce
 in

cid
en

ces
 of

 
an

ti-s
oc

ial 
be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d t
he

 ha
rm

 
thi

s c
au

ses
 to

 co
mm

un
itie

s 

Th
e A

nti
 So

cia
l B

eh
av

iou
r W

ork
ing

 Gr
ou

p t
o 

ex
plo

re 
wh

eth
er 

ga
tin

g o
rde

rs 
wo

uld
 be

 
be

ne
fic

ial 
in 

ad
dre

ssi
ng

 an
ti-s

oc
ial 

be
ha

vio
ur 

(an
d b

urg
lar

y) 
an

d t
o e

xp
lor

e p
ote

nti
al 

fun
din

g 
str

ea
ms

. 

Su
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
3 

Tre
vo

r 
Gla

dd
ing

 
 

Q4
 -F

oll
ow

ing
 an

 on
go

ing
 sc

op
ing

 ex
erc

ise
, a

n a
pp

rop
ria

te 
loc

ati
on

 ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 an
d a

cti
on

 is
 be

ing
 ta

ke
n t

o t
ak

e t
his

 fo
rw

ard
 su

bje
ct 

to 
fun

din
g r

eq
uir

em
en

ts.
 

   
 

Th
e A

nti
 So

cia
l B

eh
av

iou
r W

ork
ing

 Gr
ou

p t
o 

res
po

nd
 to

 na
tio

na
l g

uid
elin

es 
res

ult
ing

 fr
om

 
the

 H
idd

en
 in

 Pl
ain

 Si
gh

t fi
na

l in
qu

iry
 re

po
rt 

int
o d

isa
bil

ity
 re

lat
ed

 ha
ras

sm
en

t. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Tre

vo
r 

Gla
dd

ing
 

 

 Q4
 - 

Sti
ll a

wa
itin

g a
pp

rop
ria

te 
gu

ida
nc

e f
oll

ow
ing

 th
e p

rog
res

s o
f th

e 
ne

w 
Dr

aft
 AS

B A
ct 

cu
rre

ntl
y w

ork
ing

 it'
s w

ay
 th

rou
gh

 th
e l

eg
al 

pro
ce

ss 
wh

ich
 is

 be
ing

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y t

he
 Co

un
ty 

AS
B S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 

su
pp

ort
 fr

om
 th

e G
SS

JC
. T

his
 is

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 20

13
-14

 co
rpo

rat
e 

str
ate

gy
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 as

 ac
tio

n C
OM

1 

   
 

To
 co

mp
let

e a
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 re

vie
w 

of 
the

 An
ti 

So
cia

l B
eh

av
iou

r W
ork

ing
 Gr

ou
p t

o e
ns

ure
 its

 
eff

icie
nc

y a
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
en

ess
 an

d m
on

ito
r 

pro
gre

ss.
 

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 
Tre

vo
r 

Gla
dd

ing
 

 

Q4
 - 

Re
vie

w 
of 

AS
B W

ork
ing

 Gr
ou

p c
arr

ied
 ou

t a
nd

 ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e t

o i
t's

 
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 th
e w

ay
 th

at 
it o

pe
rat

es 
en

su
rin

g t
ha

t it
 is

 fit
 fo

r p
urp

os
e 

re 
eff

icie
nc

y a
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
en

ess
 an

d p
rog

res
s w

ill 
be

 m
on

ito
red

. 

We
 w

ill 
ex

plo
re 

ho
w 

be
st 

the
 co

un
cil 

ca
n w

ork
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 ta

ckl
e 

hig
h-p

rof
ile 

cri
me

; t
he

 cu
rre

nt 
foc

us
 

is 
on

 bu
rgl

ary
 in

 th
e t

ow
n. 

To
 re

vie
w 

the
 ef

fec
tiv

en
ess

 of
 ph

ase
 1 

of 
the

 
CC

TV
 on

 th
e H

on
ey

bo
urn

e L
ine

 pr
oje

ct 
in 

red
uc

ing
 do

me
sti

c b
urg

lar
y (

an
d A

SB
) a

nd
 lo

ok
 

for
 w

ay
s t

o a
ttr

act
 ex

ter
na

l fu
nd

ing
 to

 
im

ple
me

nt 
ph

ase
 2.

 

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 
Tre

vo
r 

Gla
dd

ing
 

 

Q4
 - 

A r
ev

iew
 w

ill 
be

 ca
rrie

d i
n J

uly
 20

13
 to

ge
the

r w
ith

 ho
w 

the
 

int
rod

uc
tio

n o
f th

e H
on

ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
 PA

CT
 ( 

Pe
op

le 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

To
ge

the
r) 

ini
tia

tiv
e l

au
nc

he
d i

n F
eb

rua
ry 

20
13

 ha
s im

pa
cte

d o
n t

he
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

rep
ort

ed
 in

cid
en

ts 
of 

bu
rgl

ary
, lo

w 
lev

el 
cri

me
 an

d a
sb

. 
Ac

tio
n i

s n
ow

 at
 a 

pla
nn

ing
 st

ag
e t

o i
mp

lem
en

t p
ha

se 
2 o

f C
CT

V a
lon

g 
the

 H
on

ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
 be

tw
ee

n W
ait

ros
e a

nd
 th

e P
oW

 St
ad

ium
. 

   
 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e B

urg
lar

y T
ask

 an
d F

ini
sh

 Gr
ou

p 
de

live
r it

s a
cti

on
s a

nd
 w

ork
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t 
res

ou
rce

s a
re 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 de
live

r a
ll e

lem
en

ts 
lin

ke
d t

o t
his

 ou
tco

me
 in

clu
din

g p
rev

en
tio

n, 
en

for
ce

me
nt,

 in
tel

lig
en

ce
, a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

. 

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 
Tre

vo
r 

Gla
dd

ing
 

 

Q4
 - 

Ta
sk 

an
d f

ini
sh

 gr
ou

p c
on

tin
ue

s t
o m

ee
t w

ith
 a 

ne
w 

foc
us

 on
 al

l 
ac

qu
isit

ive
 an

d e
me

rgi
ng

 cr
im

e. 
  

Page 28



   
 

To
 w

ork
 w

ith
 th

e n
ew

 Po
lice

 an
d C

rim
e 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e g

ain
 th

eir
 

su
pp

ort
 fo

r e
nh

an
cin

g p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng

 in
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
to 

tac
kle

 cr
im

e. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 
 

 
Page 29



 

Page 30



Pe
op
le 
ha
ve
 ac
ce
ss
 to
 de
ce
nt
 an
d a
ffo
rd
ab
le 
ho
us
ing
. 

  Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
su

pp
ort

 Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bo

rou
gh

 
Ho

me
s s

o t
ha

t th
ey

 ar
e a

ble
 to

 
pro

gre
ss 

the
 St

. P
au

ls 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

pro
jec

t. 

Ag
ree

 pl
an

s f
or 

ph
ase

 2.
 

Su
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
3 

Jan
e 

Gr
iffi

ths
 

 

Q4
 

Ca
bin

et 
an

d c
ou

nc
il h

av
e g

ive
n a

ll t
he

 ne
ce

ssa
ry 

ap
pro

va
ls 

for
 th

e w
ork

 on
 St

 Pa
uls

 pa
hs

e 
2 t

o c
om

me
nc

e i
n 2

01
3/1

4. 
 CB

H 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ab

le 
to 

sec
ure

 vi
a a

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pa

rtn
er 

so
me

 HC
A f

un
din

g. 
Co

mp
let

e p
ha

se 
1 o

f S
t. 

Pa
uls

 re
ge

ne
rat

ion
 pr

oje
ct 

Su
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
3 

Jan
e 

Gr
iffi

ths
 

 

Q4
 

Re
sid

en
ts 

are
 no

w 
livi

ng
 in

 th
e a

rea
 an

d t
he

 si
te 

is 
du

e f
or 

off
icia

l o
pe

nin
g i

n A
pri

l 2
01

3. 

We
 w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

rev
iew

 ab
ou

t t
he

 be
st 

wa
y t

o d
eliv

er 
ou

r h
ou

sin
g o

pti
on

s s
erv

ice
. 

Co
mp

let
e i

nit
ial 

op
tio

ns
 

ap
pra

isa
l  

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

 
 

Q4
 

Ca
bin

et 
co

ns
ide

red
 th

e r
ep

ort
 at

 th
eir

 m
ee

tin
g i

n D
ec

em
be

r w
ith

 th
e c

on
clu

sio
n t

ha
t th

ere
 

are
 2 

po
ten

tia
l c

om
mi

ssi
on

ing
 op

tio
ns

 fo
r H

ou
sin

g O
pti

on
s b

e e
nd

ors
ed

, i.
e. 

in-
ho

us
e a

nd
 

tra
ns

fer
 th

e s
erv

ice
 to

 CB
H 

an
d t

ha
t a

 fu
rth

er 
rep

ort
 be

 br
ou

gh
t b

ac
k t

o C
ab

ine
t in

 Ju
ne

 
20

13
 

We
 w

ill 
de

ve
lop

 lo
ca

l p
oli

cie
s i

n 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

he
 go

ve
rnm

en
t p

rop
os

als
 

for
 be

ne
fits

 ch
an

ge
s. 

De
live

red
 vi

a a
cti

vit
ies

 
ide

nti
fie

d w
ith

 th
e H

ou
sin

g &
 

Ho
me

les
sn

ess
 St

rat
eg

y. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

 
 

Wo
rk 

is 
on

go
ing

 w
ith

 th
os

e i
mp

ac
ted

 by
 th

e w
elf

are
 re

for
ms

.  P
ub

lici
ty 

for
 th

e c
ha

ng
es 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
 fo

r t
ho

se 
wh

o m
ay

 ne
ed

 he
lp 

to 
mo

ve
 or

 th
ink

 ab
ou

t th
eir

 op
tio

ns
 

We
 w

ill 
co

mp
let

e o
ur 

ho
us

ing
 re

vie
w 

an
d p

ub
lish

 a 
ne

w 
ho

us
ing

 an
d 

ho
me

les
sn

ess
 st

rat
eg

y a
nd

 de
ve

lop
 

loc
al 

po
lici

es 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

o t
he

 
go

ve
rnm

en
t p

rop
os

als
 fo

r b
en

efi
ts 

ch
an

ge
s. 

To
 pu

bli
sh

 th
e n

ew
 H

ou
sin

g 
& 

Ho
me

les
sn

ess
 St

rat
eg

y 
fol

low
ing

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d 
ca

bin
et 

ap
pro

va
l. 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Jan
e 

Gr
iffi

ths
 

 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 
Th

e s
tra

teg
y w

as 
ap

pro
ve

d b
y c

ab
ine

t in
 Ju

ly.
 

  

We
 w

ill 
en

ab
le 

the
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f m

ore
 

so
cia

l h
ou

sin
g. 

Wi
thi

n t
he

 co
nte

xt 
of 

the
 

HR
A b

us
ine

ss 
pla

n t
o 

co
ns

ide
r p

rop
os

als
 fo

r n
ew

 
bu

ild
 so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Jan

e 
Gr

iffi
ths

 
 

Q4
 

CB
H 

are
 st

ill 
pro

gre
ssi

ng
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 on

 ot
he

r s
ite

s a
nd

 St
 Pa

uls
 ph

ase
 2 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
n g

ara
ge

 si
tes

 w
ill 

co
mm

en
ce

 in
 Ap

ril 
20

13
. 

 

Page 31



Page 32



  Pe
op
le 
ar
e a
ble
 to
 le
ad
 he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
. 

 Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
bri

ng
 fo

rw
ard

 th
ou

gh
ts 

ab
ou

t 
the

 ne
xt 

ste
ps

 on
 ho

w 
be

st 
we

 pr
ov

ide
 

Le
isu

re@
 an

d s
po

rts
, p

lay
 an

d h
ea

lth
y 

life
sty

les
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
ou

r le
isu

re 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w.

 

Dis
cu

ssi
on

s t
o t

ak
e p

lac
e w

ith
 NH

S 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ers

 to
 ex

plo
re 

fut
ure

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

for
 di

rec
t p

rov
isio

n o
f h

ea
lth

 re
lat

ed
 ac

tiv
itie

s, 
alo

ng
sid

e t
he

 tr
ad

itio
na

l m
ix 

leis
ure

 ac
tiv

itie
s 

tha
t a

pp
ea

l to
 ca

su
al 

us
ers

 an
d m

em
be

rs 
in 

a 
ch

alle
ng

ing
 an

d i
nc

rea
sin

gly
 co

mp
eti

tiv
e 

leis
ure

 m
ark

et.
 

We
d-

31
-O

ct-
12

 

Cra
ig 

Mo
rtib

oy
s, 

Ste
ph

en
 

Pe
the

ric
k 

 

Q4
 M

ee
tin

gs
 co

nti
nu

ed
 w

ith
 cu

rre
nt 

he
alt

h p
art

ne
rs 

to 
co

nti
nu

e t
he

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
s n

ote
d i

n Q
3. 

 Th
e t

arg
et 

po
pu

lat
ion

s w
ith

 kn
ow

n h
ea

lth
 

ine
qu

alit
ies

 co
nti

nu
ed

 to
 be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

ac
ce

ss 
to 

co
nc

ess
ion

 sc
he

me
s 

an
d u

pta
ke

 on
 th

e p
rog

ram
me

s a
ga

in 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 ex

pe
cta

tio
n i

n t
he

 
las

t q
ua

rte
r o

f th
e y

ea
r. £

40
k s

ec
ure

d f
rom

 NH
S G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 to

 
su

pp
ort

 jo
int

 w
ork

ing
 to

 de
live

r H
ea

lth
y L

ife
sty

les
 w

ork
 du

rin
g 

20
13

/14
 w

hic
h w

ill 
be

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 an

d c
o-o

rdi
na

ted
 th

rou
gh

 th
e 

Po
sit

ive
 Li

ve
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

an
d H

ea
lth

y L
ife

sty
les

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Of
fic

er.
 Le

isu
re@

 co
nti

nu
es 

to 
wo

rk 
dir

ec
tly

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l G
P p

rac
tic

es 
ac

ros
s t

he
 Bo

rou
gh

, in
to 

Co
tsw

old
 &

 Te
wk

esb
ury

 ar
ea

s t
o p

rov
ide

 
the

 Re
ac

tiv
e G

P r
efe

rra
l s

ch
em

e. 
 Be

yo
nd

 th
is 

sch
em

e p
art

ne
rsh

ips
 

are
 in

 pl
ac

e a
nd

 pe
rfo

rm
ing

 w
ell 

wit
h t

he
 lo

ca
l P

hy
sio

the
rap

y t
ea

ms
 

de
live

rin
g 2

 pr
og

ram
me

s, 
Ba

ck 
2 F

itn
ess

 (g
en

era
l re

ha
bil

ita
tio

n &
 

pa
in 

ma
na

ge
me

nt)
, A

CL
 (A

nte
rio

r C
ruc

iat
e L

iga
me

nt 
pre

 &
 po

st 
op

era
tiv

e s
up

po
rt 

pro
gra

mm
es)

, w
e w

ork
 w

ith
 st

rok
e r

eh
ab

ilit
ati

on
, 

res
pir

ato
ry 

fai
lur

e g
rou

p, 
su

bs
tan

ce
 ab

us
e g

rou
ps

, B
riti

sh
 Lu

ng
 

Fo
un

da
tio

n &
 Cy

sti
c F

ibr
os

is. 
 O

ng
oin

g p
rog

ram
me

s a
re 

de
live

red
 

wit
h t

he
 2g

eth
er 

tru
st 

alt
ho

ug
h t

he
 di

rec
t r

efe
rra

l s
ch

em
e w

ith
 th

at 
gro

up
 ha

s f
alle

n f
ou

l o
f N

HS
 re

org
an

isa
tio

n. 
  

We
 w

ill 
us

e t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y o
f th

e 
Oly

mp
ics

 an
d t

he
 to

rch
 re

lay
 to

 cr
ea

te 
a l

eg
ac

y t
ha

t in
cre

ase
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

lev
els

 an
d p

rom
ote

s m
ore

 he
alt

hy
 

ac
tiv

e l
ife

sty
les

. 

   
 

En
su

re 
a w

ell 
ma

na
ge

d O
lym

pic
 To

rch
 Re

lay
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e t
ow

n a
nd

 as
so

cia
ted

 ev
en

ing
 

ce
leb

rat
ion

 ev
en

t a
t C

he
lte

nh
am

 Ra
ce

co
urs

e. 
We

d-
23

-
Ma

y-1
2 

Cra
ig 

Mo
rtib

oy
s 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

To
rch

 Re
lay

 su
cce

ssf
ull

y p
rom

ote
d, 

org
an

ise
d a

nd
 m

an
ag

ed
 on

 
We

dn
esd

ay
 23

rd 
Ma

y. 
Po

lice
 es

tim
ate

d t
ha

t a
s m

an
y a

s 3
0,0

00
 

pe
op

le 
lin

ed
 th

e s
tre

ets
 al

on
g t

he
 ro

ute
 to

 ce
leb

rat
e t

he
 pa

ssi
ng

 of
 

the
 fla

me
 w

ith
 th

e l
arg

est
 cr

ow
ds

 se
en

 on
 Ba

th 
Ro

ad
, M

on
tpe

llie
r 

an
d t

he
 Pr

om
en

ad
e. 

Se
rie

s o
f lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y e

ve
nts

 su
pp

ort
ed

 
alo

ng
 th

e r
ou

te 
as 

we
ll a

s t
he

 m
ain

 ev
en

t a
t C

he
lte

nh
am

 Ra
ce

co
urs

e 
wh

ich
 at

tra
cte

d a
 fu

rth
er 

cro
wd

 of
 ap

pro
x 2

5,0
00

. 

Su
cce

ssf
ull

y d
eliv

er 
a s

eri
es 

of 
Oly

mp
ic 

rel
ate

d 
ini

tia
tiv

es 
an

d e
ve

nts
 du

rin
g S

um
me

r 2
01

2 i
n 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 lo
ca

l s
po

rts
 cl

ub
s a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity

 pa
rtn

ers
. 

Fri
-31

-
Au

g-1
2 

Cra
ig 

Mo
rtib

oy
s 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

Ea
ste

r S
po

rts
 pr

og
ram

me
 su

cce
ssf

ull
y d

eliv
ere

d i
n A

pri
l 2

01
2, 

as 
an

 
int

rod
uc

tor
y p

rog
ram

me
 ah

ea
d o

f th
e O

lym
pic

s. 
 

Sc
ho

ols
 Ev

en
t d

eliv
ere

d a
t L

eis
ure

@ 
on

 M
ay

 23
rd 

to 
ce

leb
rat

e t
he

 
To

rch
 Re

lay
 da

y, 
wit

h l
ots

 of
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d p

up
ils 

tak
ing

 pa
rt 

Glo
uc

est
ers

hir
e S

ch
oo

l G
am

es 
su

pp
ort

ed
 in

 Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
on

 
15

th/
16

th 
Jun

e i
n c

on
jun

cti
on

 w
ith

 Ac
tiv

e G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 an
d t

he
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Sc

ho
ol 

Sp
ort

 Ne
tw

ork
  

Su
mm

er 
of 

Sp
ort

 sc
ho

ol 
ho

lid
ay

 pr
og

ram
me

 de
live

red
 du

rin
g 

Ju
ly/

Au
gu

st 
att

rac
ted

 a 
rec

ord
 br

ea
kin

g t
ota

l o
f 1

81
8 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s, 
wit

h m
an

y o
f th

e s
po

rts
 sp

ec
ific

 co
urs

es 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
sp

ort
s c

lub
s b

ein
g f

ull
y b

oo
ke

d. 
Th

e S
po

rt 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Te
am

 al
so

 
su

pp
ort

ed
 th

e L
eis

ure
@ 

Op
en

 D
ay

 th
at 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 a 
Go

ld 
Ch

alle
ng

e f
un

dra
isin

g e
ve

nt 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 th
4e

 Na
tio

na
l S

tar
 

Co
lleg

e. 

Page 33



 

Page 34



Re
sid
en
ts 
en
joy
 a 
str
on
g s
en
se
 of
 co
mm
un
ity

 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 M

ile
sto

ne
s 

En
d 

Da
te 

Le
ad

 
 

Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

co
mm

un
ity

 go
ve

rna
nc

e r
ev

iew
 

of 
pa

ris
h b

ou
nd

ari
es 

ah
ea

d o
f 

pa
ris

h e
lec

tio
ns

 in
 20

14
. 

Ag
ree

 te
rm

s o
f r

efe
ren

ce
 

Sa
t-3

0-
Ju

n-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 

Q4
 - 

De
cis

ion
 m

ad
e b

y c
ou

nc
il t

o n
ot 

pro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 th

e r
ev

iew
 as

 
pla

nn
ed

 - 
wil

l n
ow

 be
 po

stp
on

ed
 to

 tie
 in

 w
ith

 pa
ris

h e
lec

tio
ns

 in
 

20
18

  

We
 w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

co
mm

un
ity

 go
ve

rna
nc

e r
ev

iew
 

of 
pa

ris
h b

ou
nd

ari
es 

ah
ea

d o
f 

pa
ris

h e
lec

tio
ns

 in
 20

14
. 

Un
de

rta
ke

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

Fri
-30

-
No

v-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 
Q4

 as
 ab

ov
e 

We
 w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

co
mm

un
ity

 go
ve

rna
nc

e r
ev

iew
 

of 
pa

ris
h b

ou
nd

ari
es 

ah
ea

d o
f 

pa
ris

h e
lec

tio
ns

 in
 20

14
. 

Re
po

rt 
to 

co
un

cil 
rec

om
me

nd
ing

 fu
tur

e p
ari

sh
 co

un
cil 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
Sa

t-3
1-

Ma
r-1

2 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gib
so

n 
 

Q4
 as

 ab
ov

e 

We
 w

ill 
wo

rk 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 

en
ab

le 
mo

re 
vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 
co

mm
un

ity
 se

cto
r 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 

po
sit

ive
 ac

tiv
itie

s f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le.

 

Fo
r t

he
 Po

sit
ive

 Li
ve

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
to 

tak
e a

 re
po

rt 
fro

m 
Co

un
ty 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pr
oje

cts
, A

sto
n P

roj
ec

t, T
arg

ete
d Y

ou
th 

Su
pp

ort
 

Se
rvi

ce
 an

d o
the

rs 
to 

bu
ild

 up
 a 

de
tai

led
 pi

ctu
re 

of 
cu

rre
nt 

pro
vis

ion
 (g

ap
s, 

ris
ks 

an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s),
 an

 as
ses

sm
en

t o
f th

e 
im

pa
cts

 on
 co

mm
un

itie
s o

f th
e l

ac
k o

f y
ou

th 
ac

tiv
itie

s a
nd

 bu
ild

 
a b

us
ine

ss 
cas

e f
or 

a c
om

mu
nit

y-b
ase

d a
pp

roa
ch

. 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 

Q4
 - 

De
cis

ion
 m

ad
e t

o r
en

ew
 co

ntr
act

 w
ith

 CC
P, 

ne
w 

ou
tco

me
s 

ag
ree

d a
nd

 po
sit

ive
 m

ee
tin

g h
eld

 w
ith

 pa
rtn

ers
 an

d e
lec

ted
 

me
mb

ers
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r a
nd

 Fe
bru

ary
 to

 ag
ree

 ke
y l

eg
ac

y a
cti

vit
ies

 
fro

m 
the

 bu
ild

ing
 re

sili
en

ce
 pr

oje
ct 

 

To
 re

vie
w 

the
 bu

ild
ing

 re
sili

en
ce

 co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 Co

un
ty 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pr
oje

cts
 an

d p
ut 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 in

 pl
ac

e t
o d

eliv
er 

the
 se

co
nd

 ye
ar 

of 
the

 fu
nd

ing
. 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gib

so
n 

 

Q4
 – 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 Fo
rm

al 
ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 th
e c

on
tra

ct 
un

de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 

res
ult

s p
ub

lish
ed

.  
 

We
 w

ill 
de

live
r t

he
 20

12
 

ele
cti

on
s i

n M
ay

 an
d 

No
ve

mb
er 

ele
cti

on
s f

or 
the

 
Po

lice
 an

d C
rim

e 
Co

mm
iss

ion
er.

 

We
 w

ill 
org

an
ise

 th
e 2

01
2 B

oro
ug

h c
ou

nc
il e

lec
tio

ns
 

Th
u-3

-
Ma

y-1
2 

Kim
 

Sm
ith

, 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es

 
 

Q4
 - 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 st

atu
tor

y t
im

esc
ale

s -
 20

 co
un

cill
ors

 el
ec

ted
. 

We
 w

ill 
org

an
ise

 th
e P

oli
ce

 an
d C

rim
e C

om
mi

ssi
on

er 
ele

cti
on

s 
Th

u-1
5-

No
v-1

2 

Kim
 

Sm
ith

, 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es

 
 

Q4
 CO

MP
LE

TE
 al

l p
lan

nin
g c

om
ple

ted
, e

lec
tio

ns
 to

ok
  p

lac
e o

n 1
5 

No
ve

mb
er.

 

We
 w

ill 
pre

pa
re 

for
 th

e c
ou

nty
 co

un
cil 

ele
cti

on
s b

ein
g h

eld
 in

 
Ma

y 2
01

3 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 

Kim
 

Sm
ith

, 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es

 
 

Q4
 

All
 w

ork
 to

 pr
ep

are
 fo

r t
he

 co
un

ty 
ele

cti
on

s i
s o

n t
arg

et 

We
 w

ill 
su

pp
ort

 ne
w 

co
un

cill
ors

 th
rou

gh
 an

 in
du

cti
on

 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 pr
ov

ide
 on

go
ing

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r a
ll c

ou
nc

illo
rs 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Kim
 

Sm
ith

, 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es

 
 

Co
mp

let
e 

the
 ro

ll o
ut 

of 
the

 in
du

cti
on

 pr
og

ram
me

 to
 ne

w 
co

un
cill

ors
 ha

s 
no

w 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
. N

ew
 m

em
be

rs 
we

re 
ask

ed
 to

 co
mp

let
e a

 
qu

est
ion

na
ire

 gi
vin

g t
he

ir f
ee

db
ac

k a
nd

 th
is 

wa
s r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 SL
T. 

Ge
ne

ral
ly 

ne
w 

me
mb

ers
 w

ere
 ve

ry 
sat

isf
ied

 w
ith

 th
e i

nd
uc

tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ith
 th

e m
ajo

rity
 of

 se
ssi

on
s s

co
rin

g a
 4 

(go
od

) o
n a

 
sca

le 
of 

1-5
. T

he
y p

art
icu

lar
ly 

we
lco

me
d t

he
 bu

dd
yin

g f
rom

 SL
T 

an
d m

en
tor

ing
 fro

m 
fel

low
 co

un
cill

ors
 an

d t
he

 ge
ne

ral
 su

pp
ort

 
the

y r
ec

eiv
ed

 fr
om

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce

s. 
  I

ssu
es 

the
y r

ais
ed

 
rel

ate
d t

o m
em

be
rs 

ICT
 pr

ov
isio

n a
nd

 co
nta

ct 
pro

ce
du

res
 fo

r 
are

as 
ou

tsi
de

 th
e c

ou
nc

il s
uc

h a
s G

los
. H

igh
wa

ys.
 

Page 35



 

 

Page 36



 Ar
ts 
an
d c
ult
ur
e a
re
 us
ed
 as
 a 
me
an
s t
o s
tre
ng
th
en
 co
mm
un
iti
es
, s
tre
ng
th
en
 th
e e
co
no
my
 

an
d e
nh
an
ce
 an
d p
ro
te
ct 
ou
r e
nv
iro
nm
en
t.  

 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
pro

gre
ss 

the
 Ar

t G
alle

ry 
an

d M
us

eu
m 

red
ev

elo
pm

en
t in

 or
de

r t
ha

t it
 is 

ab
le 

to 
op

en
 

on
 tim

e f
rom

 Ju
ne

 20
13

 an
d w

ith
in 

bu
dg

et.
 

   
 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 
pro

gra
mm

e 
Tu

e-3
0-

Ap
r-1

3 
Jan

e 
Lill

yst
on

e 
 

Q4
 

Fo
llo

win
g f

urt
he

r d
isc

us
sio

ns
 w

ith
 IS

G, 
the

y h
av

e n
ow

 in
dic

ate
d a

 re
vis

ed
 

da
te 

for
 co

mp
let

ion
 of

 th
e m

ajo
r p

art
 of

 w
ork

s b
y t

he
 30

th 
Ap

ril 
20

13
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, w

ork
 w

ill 
sti

ll c
on

tin
ue

 on
 th

e a
djo

ini
ng

 w
alls

 of
 No

.51
 an

d t
he

 
19

89
 bu

ild
ing

.  F
rom

 th
e 1

 M
ay

, w
ork

 w
ill 

sta
rt 

on
 so

me
 ar

ea
s o

f th
e 

fitt
ing

 ou
t p

rog
ram

me
.. 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 in

ter
na

l fi
t-o

ut 
Mo

n-3
0-

Se
p-1

3 
Jan

e 
Lill

yst
on

e 
 

Q4
 

Du
e t

o t
he

 de
lay

 in
 ha

nd
ov

er 
of 

the
 bu

ild
ing

 by
 IS

G, 
thi

s h
as 

a k
no

ck 
on

 
eff

ec
t to

 in
ter

na
l fi

t-o
ut 

co
mp

let
ion

 da
te,

 Re
vis

ed
 da

te 
for

 fit
tin

g o
ut 

of 
so

me
 ar

ea
s f

rom
 th

e 1
 M

ay
. 

 

We
 w

ill 
inv

est
iga

te 
the

 po
ssi

bil
ity

 of
 m

ajo
r 

ca
pit

al 
inv

est
me

nt 
int

o t
he

 To
wn

 H
all 

to 
he

lp 
pro

mo
te 

the
 bu

ild
ing

 as
 a 

firs
t c

las
s 

en
ter

tai
nm

en
t v

en
ue

. 

   
 

Fe
asi

bil
ity

 re
vie

w 
de

pe
nd

ing
 on

 
ou

tco
me

 of
 op

tio
n a

pp
rai

sal
 

Tu
e-3

0-
Ap

r-1
3 

Ga
ry 

Ne
jru

p, 
Pa

t 
Pra

tle
y 

 

Q4
  

Te
nd

er 
ha

s b
ee

n a
wa

rde
d t

o C
ha

rco
al 

Blu
e a

nd
 a 

rev
ise

d e
nd

 da
te 

ha
s 

be
en

 ag
ree

d a
s t

he
 30

th 
Ap

ril 
20

13
.  C

ha
rco

al 
Blu

e h
av

e h
eld

 m
ee

tin
gs

 
wit

h s
tak

eh
old

ers
 an

d c
ou

nc
il s

taf
f a

nd
 ar

e w
ork

ing
 on

 th
e f

irs
t 2

 st
ag

es 
of 

the
 fe

asi
bil

ity
 st

ud
y. 

 Th
e f

ina
l p

res
en

tat
ion

 w
ill 

be
 pr

ese
nte

d o
n t

he
 29

th 
Ap

ril.
 

 

Ini
tia

l s
co

pin
g o

f in
ve

stm
en

t 
req

uir
ed

 fo
r o

pti
on

s a
pp

rai
sal

 
Tu

e-3
1-

Ju
l-1

2 
Ga

ry 
Ne

jru
p, 

Pa
t 

Pra
tle

y 
 

Q4
  

Te
nd

er 
ha

s b
ee

n a
wa

rde
d t

o C
ha

rco
al 

Blu
e 

 

We
 w

ill 
tes

t o
utc

om
es 

for
 th

e T
ow

n H
all 

an
d 

Pit
tvi

lle 
Pu

mp
 Ro

om
 w

ith
 co

un
cils

 w
ho

 pr
ov

ide
 

oth
er 

sim
ilar

 ve
nu

es.
 

Ou
tco

me
s r

ev
iew

ed
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
op

tio
ns

 ap
pra

isa
l 

Tu
e-3

1-
Ju

l-1
2 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
 

Q4
 

We
 ha

ve
 in

for
ma

lly 
tes

ted
 ou

r o
utc

om
es 

for
 th

ese
 ve

nu
es 

wit
h o

ne
 ot

he
r 

tru
st,

 eg
, C

ols
ton

 H
all 

in 
Bri

sto
l P

QQ
 ev

alu
ati

on
 ta

kin
g p

lac
e a

nd
 

pro
gre

ssi
ng

 ac
co

rdi
ng

 to
 tim

elin
e. 

 
We

 w
ill 

rev
iew

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r A
rt 

Ga
ller

y a
nd

 M
us

eu
m 

ser
vic

e b
ala

nc
ing

 va
lue

 
for

 m
on

ey
 w

ith
 th

e n
ee

d t
o d

eliv
er 

a r
an

ge
 of

 
ag

ree
d o

utc
om

es.
 

Re
po

rt 
to 

Ca
bin

et 
on

 th
e 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 de
live

ry 
of 

the
 

ou
tco

me
s f

or 
the

 Ar
t G

alle
ry 

an
d M

us
eu

m 
Tu

e-3
1-

Ju
l-1

2 
Pa

t P
rat

ley
 

 

Q4
 

Art
 Ga

ller
y a

nd
 M

us
eu

m 
pro

vis
ion

 is
 be

ing
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 ov
era

ll 
PQ

Q 
pro

ce
ss.

 
 

 

Page 37



 

Page 38



W
e w
ill 
me
et
 ou
r '
Br
idg
ing
 th
e G
ap
' ta
rg
et
s f
or
 ca
sh
ab
le 
sa
vin
gs
 an
d i
nc
re
as
ed
 in
co
me

 

Im
pr
ov

em
en

t A
cti

on
 

Mi
les

to
ne

s 
En

d 
Da

te 
Le

ad
 

 
Pr
og

re
ss
 

We
 w

ill 
mo

ve
 to

 th
e G

O 
sh

are
d s

erv
ice

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r F

ina
nc

e, 
HR

, p
ay

rol
l 

an
d p

roc
ure

me
nt 

su
pp

ort
. 

GO
 Sh

are
d S

erv
ice

s s
av

ing
s t

o 
co

mm
en

ce
. 

Mo
n-1

-
Oc

t-1
2 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
 

Q4
 - 

GO
SS

 re
str

uc
tur

e c
om

ple
te 

an
d s

av
ing

s a
s p

er 
the

 bu
sin

ess
 pl

an
 ta

ke
n a

s 
pa

rt 
of 

bu
dg

et 
sav

ing
s f

or 
13

-14
.  T

his
 ac

tio
n i

s c
om

ple
te.

 
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f A
gre

sso
 ER

P 
sys

tem
 in

 CB
C. 

Tu
e-1

0-
Ap

r-1
2 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
 

Q4
 - 

Th
e A

gre
sso

 sy
ste

m 
ha

s b
ee

n i
mp

lem
en

ted
 in

 CB
C i

n A
pri

l 2
01

2, 
the

 
int

rod
uc

tio
n o

f th
e H

R s
elf

 se
rvi

ce 
mo

du
le 

is 
no

w 
un

de
rw

ay
 an

d w
ill 

be
 co

mp
let

e 
in 

Ma
y 2

01
3 

TU
PE

 (T
ran

sfe
r o

f U
nd

ert
ak

ing
s 

(Pr
ote

cti
on

 of
 Em

plo
ym

en
t) 

Re
gu

lat
ion

s) 
tra

ns
fer

s o
f s

taf
f to

 
GO

 Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s (

Co
tsw

old
 as

 
the

 em
plo

yin
g c

ou
nc

il).
 

Mo
n-

30
-Ap

r-
12

 
Pa

t P
rat

ley
 

 
TU

PE
 to

ok
 pl

ac
e a

s p
lan

ne
d. 

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n i
s c

om
ple

te.
 

We
 w

ill 
de

ve
lop

 an
d p

ub
lish

 a 
ful

ly-
co

ste
d a

sse
t m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 w
ide

r r
ev

iew
 of

 as
set

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

be
ing

 le
d b

y L
ea

de
rsh

ip 
Glo

uc
est

ers
hir

e. 

   
 

De
ve

lop
 th

e A
MP

 to
 ca

ptu
re 

co
rpo

rat
e a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

co
un

cil'
s p

rop
ert

y p
ort

fol
io.

 
Su

n-3
0-

Ju
n-1

3 
Da

vid
 

Ro
be

rts
 

 

Th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e A
MP

 w
ill b

e c
on

sid
ere

d a
s p

art
 of

 th
e c

ap
ita

l p
roj

ec
t 

rev
iew

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n (
VF

M6
) is

 in
 th

e 2
01

3-1
4 c

orp
ora

te 
str

ate
gy

 ac
tio

n f
or 

co
mp

let
ion

 by
 Se

pt 
20

13
 

We
 w

ill 
ag

ree
 an

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 
str

ate
gy

 ba
sed

 on
 an

aly
sis

 of
 th

e 
op

tio
ns

 ag
ree

d b
y C

ab
ine

t in
 Ju

ly 
20

11
. 

Su
n-3

1-
Ma

r-1
3 

Da
vid

 
Ro

be
rts

 
 

Po
sit

ive
 pr

og
res

s w
ith

 re
ga

rd 
to 

po
ten

tia
l a

cq
uis

itio
n o

n o
ne

 of
 th

e i
de

nti
fie

d 
alt

ern
ati

ve
s. 

Th
is 

ac
tio

n (
VF

M5
) is

 in
 th

e 2
01

3-1
4 c

orp
ora

te 
str

ate
gy

 ac
tio

n. 
 

We
 w

ill 
co

nti
nu

e t
o e

xp
lor

e 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 w

ork
 

co
llab

ora
tiv

ely
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

Au
tho

riti
es 

an
d p

ub
lic 

sec
tor

 
bo

die
s. 

Mo
n-

31
-M

ar-
14

 
Da

vid
 

Ro
be

rts
 

 

Re
gu

lar
 at

ten
da

nc
e a

t th
e O

ne
 Gl

ou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 Es

tat
es 

Str
ate

gy
 m

ee
tin

gs
. 

Co
nti

nu
al 

rev
iew

 of
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e f

ram
ew

ork
s t

o i
nv

est
iga

te 
po

ten
tia

l c
os

t s
av

ing
s 

 

We
 w

ill 
im

ple
me

nt 
ne

w 
scr

uti
ny

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 th
at 

en
ab

le 
us

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
a b

ett
er 

ov
erv

iew
 of

 ou
r c

om
mi

ssi
on

ing
 

pro
jec

ts.
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

ne
w 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 

aft
er 

ele
cti

on
s a

nd
 co

mp
let

e 
ind

uc
tio

n 
Tu

e-3
1-

Ju
l-1

2 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es,

 Sa
ra 

Fre
ckl

eto
n 

 

Q4
 Co

mp
let

e -
 ne

w 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 ar
e i

n p
lac

e. 
 In

du
cti

on
 w

as 
un

de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 

fee
db

ac
k a

nd
 le

sso
ns

 le
arn

t h
as 

be
en

 ca
ptu

red
 

On
go

ing
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r n

ew
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 du

rin
g f

irs
t 6

 
mo

nth
s a

nd
 co

mp
let

e r
ev

iew
 of

 
firs

t y
ea

r b
y J

uly
 20

13
 

We
d-

31
-Ju

l-
13

 

Ro
sal

ind
 

Re
ev

es,
 Sa

ra 
Fre

ckl
eto

n 
 

Q4
 - 

off
ice

rs 
are

 su
pp

ort
ing

 th
e n

ew
 sc

rut
iny

 ta
sk 

gro
up

s w
hic

h a
re 

be
ing

 w
ell 

rec
eiv

ed
 by

 m
em

be
rs.

  C
on

tin
uin

g t
o p

rom
ote

 th
e w

ork
 of

 sc
rut

iny
 an

d 
en

co
ura

ge
 w

ide
r in

vo
lve

me
nt 

fro
m 

acr
os

s t
he

 co
un

cil 
Wo

rk 
wit

h m
em

be
rs 

an
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 

ref
ine

 ne
w 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

 ne
w 

pro
ce

du
res

 
Th

u-3
1-

Ma
y-1

2 
Ro

sal
ind

 
Re

ev
es,

 Sa
ra 

Fre
ckl

eto
n 

 

Q4
 - 

Arr
an

ge
me

nts
 pu

t in
 pl

ac
e a

nd
 gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 ad
vic

e i
ssu

ed
 on

 ho
w 

ne
w 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 w

ill 
wo

rk 

We
 w

ill 
mo

ve
 to

 th
e f

ull
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r a
ud

it. 

TU
PE

 tr
an

sfe
rs 

of 
sta

ff t
o C

ots
wo

ld 
D.C

. 
Mo

n-
30

-Ap
r-

12
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 
Sta

ff T
UP

E'd
 to

 Co
tsw

old
 D

C a
s p

lan
ne

d o
n 1

/4/
12

 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 co

mp
ete

d a
n a

nn
ua

l 
au

dit
 cy

cle
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 th
e 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

. 
Su

n-3
1-

Ma
r-1

3 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

 
 

Q4
 - 

Th
e A

ud
it P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

ha
s s

uc
ce

ssf
ull

y s
up

po
rte

d e
ac

h p
art

ne
r c

ou
nc

il f
or 

a 
ful

l c
ycl

e. 
A s

ign
ific

an
t a

mo
un

t o
f w

ork
 ha

s b
ee

n u
nd

ert
ak

en
 to

 st
rea

ml
ine

 an
d 

sta
nd

ard
ise

 ap
pro

ach
 to

 au
dit

 co
mm

itte
es.

 Th
e s

ha
rin

g o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
au

dit
 re

so
urc

e a
cro

ss 
the

 pa
rtn

er 
co

un
cils

 ha
s d

eliv
ere

d t
he

 se
rvi

ce
 in

 
ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e s
erv

ice
 le

ve
l a

gre
em

en
t, d

eliv
ere

d t
he

 au
dit

 pl
an

 an
d 

ge
ne

rat
ed

 th
e b

en
efi

ts 
ou

tlin
ed

 in
 th

e b
us

ine
ss 

cas
e i

.e.
 bu

ilt 
res

ilie
nc

e, 
sh

are
d 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 an

d e
xp

ert
ise

 an
d d

eliv
ere

d s
av

ing
s. 

 

Page 39



We
 w

ill 
rev

iew
 th

e c
urr

en
t s

tru
ctu

re 
an

d 
ser

vic
e p

rov
isio

n f
or 

ICT
 an

d u
nd

ert
ak

e 
a s

ou
rci

ng
 pr

oje
ct 

wit
h a

 pa
rtic

ula
r f

oc
us

 
on

 a 
sh

are
d s

erv
ice

 m
od

el.
 

We
 w

ill 
de

ve
lop

 an
 up

da
ted

 IC
T 

str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h d

ete
rm

ine
s t

he
 w

ay
 

for
wa

rd 
for

 th
e s

erv
ice

 an
d g

ain
ed

 
Ca

bin
et 

/ C
ou

nc
il a

pp
rov

al.
 

Tu
e-3

0-
Oc

t-1
2 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Th
e c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
dit

ure
 to

 su
pp

ort
 CB

C I
CT

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e u

pg
rad

e s
tra

teg
y 

wa
s a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 co
un

cil 
in 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

13
. 

 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 co

ns
ide

red
 th

e 
po

ten
tia

l fo
r a

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
 w

ith
 

oth
er 

co
un

cils
.  

We
d-

30
-M

ay
-

12
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Th
e s

ha
red

 se
rvi

ce
 be

tw
ee

n F
OD

 an
d C

BC
 w

as 
cre

ate
d o

n 1
/4/

13
. T

he
 

roa
dm

ap
 fo

r 4
 w

ay
 sh

ari
ng

 of
 IC

T w
as 

su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 th

e J
oin

t M
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 
Lia

iso
n g

rou
p.  

We
 w

ill 
co

nti
nu

e t
o d

ev
elo

p t
he

 'B
rid

gin
g 

the
 Ga

p' 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

de
live

rin
g 

fut
ure

 ye
ar'

s s
av

ing
s i

nc
lud

ing
 fo

r t
he

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

ws
 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 ag

ree
d a

 lo
ca

l p
oli

cy 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

o t
he

 lo
ca

lisa
tio

n o
f 

co
un

cil 
tax

 be
ne

fit 
wh

ich
 de

als
 

wit
h t

he
 im

pli
ca

tio
n o

f a
 10

% 
cu

t 
in 

go
ve

rnm
en

t s
up

po
rt.

 

Mo
n-

31
-D

ec
-

12
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

po
licy

 no
w 

ag
ree

d a
cro

ss 
the

 co
un

ty.
 Al

l n
ec

ess
ary

 sy
ste

m 
ch

an
ge

s t
o 

co
ve

rt 
the

 pr
ev

iou
s b

en
efi

t s
ch

em
e i

nto
 a 

loc
al 

co
un

cil 
tax

 di
sco

un
t h

av
e b

ee
n 

co
mp

let
ed

 an
d c

ou
nc

il t
ax

 bi
lls 

iss
ue

d. 
 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 de

ter
mi

ne
d t

he
 

im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e M

TF
S o

f th
e 

go
ve

rnm
en

t p
rop

os
als

 fo
r r

ete
nti

on
 

of 
bu

sin
ess

 ra
tes

. 

Mo
n-

31
-D

ec
-

12
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

Th
e p

oo
lin

g a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

an
d p

rac
tic

al 
ho

us
ek

ee
pin

g f
or 

op
era

tio
n o

f th
e 

po
ol 

ha
s b

ee
n s

ign
ed

 of
 by

 th
e G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 CF

O's
 an

d t
he

 po
ol 

be
ca

me
 

eff
ec

tiv
e w

ef 
1/4

/13
. 

 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 id

en
tifi

ed
 sa

vin
gs

 an
d 

ad
dit

ion
al 

inc
om

e (
inc

lud
ing

 th
os

e 
fro

m 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

) t
o m

ee
t th

e 
bu

dg
et 

ga
p i

de
nti

fie
d f

or 
20

13
/14

. 
Tu

e-1
8-

De
c-1

2 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

 
 

Q4
 - 

Th
e f

ina
l b

ud
ge

t p
rop

os
als

 fo
r 2

01
3/1

4 w
ere

 ag
ree

d b
y C

ou
nc

il o
n 8

/2/
13

. 
Th

e b
ud

ge
t id

en
tifi

ed
 sa

vin
gs

 an
d a

dd
itio

na
l in

co
me

 w
hic

h m
et 

the
 fin

al 
fun

din
g 

ga
p o

f £
1.2

45
m,

 fr
om

 a 
va

rie
ty 

of 
so

urc
es,

 in
clu

din
g s

ha
red

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 sa

vin
gs

 
fro

m 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

ws
 an

d d
eliv

ere
d a

 co
un

cil 
tax

 fr
ee

ze 
for

 20
13

/14
. 

 

We
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 re

de
ve

lop
ed

 a 
bu

dg
et 

str
ate

gy
 fo

r 2
01

3/1
4 f

or 
ap

pro
va

l 
by

 Ca
bin

et.
 

Tu
e-1

6-
Oc

t-1
2 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Q4
 - 

the
 fin

al 
bu

dg
et 

pro
po

sal
s in

clu
de

d a
 bu

dg
et 

str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h d

em
on

str
ate

d 
ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil 
pro

po
sed

 to
 w

ork
 to

wa
rds

 br
idg

ing
 th

e p
roj

ec
ted

 fu
nd

ing
 ga

p 
ov

er 
the

 pe
rio

d o
f th

e M
TF

S. 
It 

inc
lud

es 
tar

ge
ts 

for
 fu

tur
e w

ork
str

ea
ms

 in
clu

din
g 

fut
ure

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s, 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 an
d t

he
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y. 
  

We
 w

ill 
im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ac
tio

ns
 ag

ree
d 

fro
m 

the
 In

ve
sto

rs 
in 

Pe
op

le 
str

ate
gic

 
rev

iew
. 

De
ve

lop
 an

d a
gre

e t
he

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 
by

 en
d D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
2. 

Mo
n-

31
-D

ec
-

12
 

Am
an

da
 

Att
fie

ld 
 

Q4
 - 

In 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

12
, o

ur 
IiP

 as
ses

so
r u

nd
ert

oo
k a

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Re
vie

w.
 In

 th
e 

co
nte

xt 
of 

the
 le

ve
l o

f c
ha

ng
e t

ha
t w

as 
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e w

ith
in 

the
 co

un
cil,

 sh
e 

co
nc

lud
ed

 th
e c

ou
nc

il r
eq

uir
ed

 a 
fur

the
r 1

2 m
on

ths
 be

for
e i

t w
ou

ld 
be

 in
 po

sit
ion

 
to 

un
de

rta
ke

 a 
re 

ass
ess

me
nt 

ag
ain

st 
the

 st
an

da
rd.

 In
 th

e m
ea

nti
me

, th
e c

ou
nc

il 
ret

ain
s r

eco
gn

itio
n o

f th
e a

wa
rd.

 Th
e d

ec
isio

n w
he

the
r t

o a
pp

ly 
for

 re
ass

ess
me

nt 
in 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
13

, w
ill 

be
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 fu
tur

e c
ou

nc
il w

ork
str

ea
m 

3 
- P

erf
orm

an
ce

 &
 O

rga
nis

ati
on

al 
Cu

ltu
re.

  

Re
vie

w 
pro

gre
ss 

ag
ain

st 
the

 ac
tio

n 
pla

n b
y e

nd
 O

cto
be

r 2
01

2 
We

d-
31

-O
ct-

12
 

Am
an

da
 

Att
fie

ld 
 

SL
T a

gre
ed

 th
at 

an
y a

cti
on

s /
 re

-ac
cre

dit
ati

on
 fo

r I
iP 

wo
uld

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Fu
tur

es 
Wo

rks
tre

am
 3.

 If
 a 

de
cis

ion
 w

as 
ma

de
 no

t to
 

ap
ply

 fo
r r

e-a
ccr

ed
ita

tio
n, 

the
n C

BC
 w

ou
ld 

ne
ed

 to
 be

 cl
ea

r h
ow

 it 
wo

uld
 en

su
re 

to 
ma

int
ain

 its
 pe

op
le 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
sta

nd
ard

s. 
    

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42
This page is intentionally left blank



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n  

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

CB
H 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 C

BC
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
20

12
-1

3 
 CB

C 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

CB
C 

Ou
tco

me
s 

CB
H 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 2

01
2/

13
 

En
ha

nc
ing

 an
d 

pr
ote

cti
ng

 ou
r 

en
vir

on
me

nt.
 

  

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
ha
s a

 
cle

an
 an

d w
ell
-

ma
int
ain

ed
 

en
vir
on
me

nt.
 

�
 
Fly

 tip
pin

g w
as

 re
mo

ve
d b

y C
BH

 Es
tat

e C
lea

nin
g T

ea
m:

 3,
71

9 i
nd

ivid
ua

l fl
y t

ipp
ing

 re
qu

es
ts 

we
re 

de
alt

 w
ith

 in
 20

12
/13

 w
hic

h w
as

 ov
er 

10
% 

up
 on

 th
e p

rev
iou

s y
ea

r. 9
9.8

% 
of 

req
ue

sts
 

we
re 

ha
nd

led
 w

ith
in 

the
 ta

rge
t o

f 5
 w

ork
ing

 da
ys

. 
�
 
10

0%
 of

 em
erg

en
cy

 re
qu

es
ts 

(w
he

re 
the

re 
is 

a r
isk

 to
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth

) w
ere

 re
sp

on
de

d t
o w

ith
in 

tw
o w

ork
ing

 ho
urs

 fro
m 

rec
eip

t o
f in

str
uc

tio
n. 

�
 
10

0%
 of

 em
erg

en
cy

 re
qu

es
ts 

for
 fly

 tip
pin

g (
wh

ere
 th

ere
 is

 a 
ris

k t
o p

ub
lic 

he
alt

h) 
are

 
res

po
nd

ed
 to

 w
ith

in 
tw

o w
ork

ing
 ho

urs
 fro

m 
rec

eip
t o

f in
str

uc
tio

n, 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 ho
urs

 of
 08

00
 

an
d 1

50
0 h

ou
rs 

Mo
nd

ay
 to

 Fr
ida

y. 
�
 
CB

H’s
 co

mm
un

ity
 in

vo
lve

me
nt 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t re
gu

lar
ly 

co
-or

din
ate

 co
mm

un
ity

 ev
en

ts.
 

‘Fi
do

 Fi
es

ta 
Da

y’ 
wa

s a
 ne

w 
ini

tia
tiv

e s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
aim

ed
 at

 pr
om

oti
ng

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
do

g 
ow

ne
rsh

ip.
 Th

e e
ve

nt 
inc

lud
ed

 fu
n a

cti
vit

ies
 an

d v
ari

ou
s s

tan
ds

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 in
for

ma
tio

n, 
mo

ne
y 

off
 vo

uc
he

rs 
an

d f
ree

bie
s t

o d
og

 ow
ne

rs 
in 

the
 ar

ea
. P

oo
p b

ag
s w

ere
 al

so
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o o

wn
ers

 
sig

nin
g u

p t
o t

he
 C

BH
’s 

‘G
oo

d D
og

 O
wn

er 
Re

gis
ter

’. 
Ch
elt
en
ha
m’
s n

atu
ral
 

an
d b

uil
t e
nv
iro
nm

en
t 

is 
en
ha
nc
ed
 an

d 
pr
ote

cte
d. 

�
 

CB
H 

co
mm

un
ity

 in
vo

lve
me

nt 
tea

m 
su

pp
ort

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ten

an
t g

rou
ps

 in
clu

din
g a

 gr
ou

p t
ha

t 
ma

int
ain

s s
ha

red
 ou

tdo
or 

co
mm

un
al 

sp
ac

e a
t E

dw
ard

 W
ilso

n H
ou

se
. 

�
 

A c
om

mu
nit

y g
ard

en
 w

as
 cr

ea
ted

 th
rou

gh
 a 

tra
ns

for
ma

tio
n o

f th
e c

om
mu

na
l a

rea
 at

 
Cle

ve
do

n S
qu

are
 fla

ts.
 Th

is 
wa

s c
om

ple
ted

 w
ith

 th
e v

ery
 ki

nd
 as

sis
tan

ce
 of

 15
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

Ba
rne

tt W
ad

din
gh

am
 st

aff
 as

 pa
rt o

f a
 la

rge
r V

isio
n 2

1 p
roj

ec
t. T

he
 ga

rde
n i

s e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 

pro
du

ce
 a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

fru
it a

nd
 ve

g f
or 

the
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

en
joy

. 
�
 

Ph
as

e 1
 of

 th
e S

t P
au

l's 
reg

en
era

tio
n p

roj
ec

t h
as

 no
w 

be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 an
d C

BH
 re

ce
ntl

y 
he

ld 
a w

ell
 at

ten
de

d l
au

nc
h e

ve
nt 

to 
ma

rk 
thi

s a
ch

iev
em

en
t a

nd
 to

 op
en

 th
e n

ew
 co

mm
un

ity
 

hu
b, 

wh
ich

 re
pla

ce
s t

he
 ex

ist
ing

 co
mm

un
ity

 ho
us

e. 
CB

H 
we

re 
aw

ard
ed

 a 
co

mm
en

da
tio

n i
n 

the
 ‘A

n I
mp

rov
em

en
t to

 th
e B

uil
t o

r L
an

ds
ca

pe
d E

nv
iro

nm
en

t c
ate

go
ry’

  fo
r th

e 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 m
ad

e t
o 9

3 e
xis

tin
g h

om
es

 in
 H

ud
so

n a
nd

 M
an

se
r S

tre
et 

by
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 C
ivic

 
So

cie
ty.

 
Ca
rb
on
 em

iss
ion

s a
re 

red
uc
ed
 an

d 
Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
ab
le 
to 

ad
ap
t to

 th
e i
mp

ac
ts 
of 

cli
ma

te 
ch
an
ge
. 

�
 

CB
H’s

 Su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 an

d E
ne

rgy
 O

ffic
er 

pri
ma

rily
 he

ad
s u

p p
roj

ec
ts 

inv
es

tin
g i

n s
us

tai
na

ble
 

ho
me

s b
ut 

als
o p

rom
ote

s e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 in
ter

es
t a

nd
 ac

tiv
ity

 am
on

gs
t o

ur 
ten

an
ts.

 In
 ad

dit
ion

 
to 

the
 en

vir
on

me
nta

l b
en

efi
t o

f p
hy

sic
al 

an
d b

eh
av

iou
ral

 ch
an

ge
s t

he
re 

is 
als

o a
 m

on
ey

 
sa

vin
g b

en
efi

t to
 ou

r te
na

nts
 an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs.

 
�
 

Th
is 

ye
ar 

a n
ew

 te
na

nt 
ec

o p
an

el 
ha

s b
ee

n f
orm

ed
 to

 he
lp 

rev
iew

 cu
rre

nt 
CB

H 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l p
lan

s a
nd

 to
 ga

the
r fu

rth
er 

su
gg

es
tio

ns
 fro

m 
res

ide
nts

. 
�
 

Th
erm

al 
im

ag
ing

 is
 be

ing
 us

ed
 to

 lo
ok

 at
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ve

ne
ss

 of
 en

erg
y s

av
ing

 m
ea

su
res

 fo
r 

de
ce

nt 
ho

me
s w

ork
 ap

pli
ed

 to
 ho

us
ing

 st
oc

k u
sin

g b
efo

re 
an

d a
fte

r im
ag

es
. 

Page 43



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n  

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

2/
13

 
�
 

A p
ho

tov
olt

aic
 (s

ola
r) p

an
el 

pil
ot 

wa
s l

au
nc

he
d i

n w
hic

h 4
9 p

rop
ert

ies
 w

ere
 fit

ted
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

pa
ne

ls.
 In

 ad
dit

ion
 to

 a 
red

uc
tio

n i
n e

lec
tric

ity
 bi

lls 
du

e t
o “

fre
e e

ne
rgy

” fo
r te

na
nts

 th
e c

ou
nc

il 
rec

eiv
es

 a 
ret

urn
 on

 it’
s i

nv
es

tm
en

t th
rou

gh
 m

on
ey

 re
ce

ive
d f

rom
 th

e f
ee

d i
n t

ari
ff. 

All
 pa

ne
ls 

ha
ve

 be
en

 fit
ted

 w
ith

 m
on

ito
rin

g t
o e

ns
ure

 th
ere

 ef
fec

tiv
en

es
s a

nd
 to

 pr
ov

e m
on

ey
 sa

vin
gs

 
reg

ard
ing

 th
is 

tec
hn

olo
gy

. A
 vo

lta
ge

 op
tim

isa
tio

n p
ilo

t h
as

 al
so

 be
en

 ki
ck

ed
 of

f to
 try

 an
d h

elp
 

ten
an

ts 
red

uc
e e

ne
rgy

 co
ns

um
pti

on
 in

 ho
me

s n
ot 

su
ita

ble
 fo

r P
V. 

�
 

CB
H 

res
po

ns
ive

 re
pa

irs
 In

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 Se
ve

rn 
Tre

nt 
(S

T) 
are

 in
ve

sti
ga

tin
g p

ote
nti

al 
ST

 
ha

rdw
are

 th
at 

CB
H 

co
uld

 in
sta

ll t
o h

elp
 re

du
ce

 w
ate

r u
sa

ge
. 

�
 

Th
e n

ew
 St

 Pa
ul’

s p
rop

ert
ies

 w
ere

 al
l b

uil
t to

 Le
ve

l 4
 C

od
e f

or 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 H

om
es

 an
d 

inc
orp

ora
te 

so
me

 of
 th

e l
ate

st 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l fe
atu

res
. F

ea
tur

es
 in

clu
de

 ph
oto

-vo
lta

ic 
pa

ne
ls;

 
hig

h e
ffic

ien
cy

 ga
s-c

om
bi 

bo
ile

rs;
 hi

gh
 le

ve
ls 

of 
ins

ula
tio

n i
n w

all
s a

nd
 lo

ft s
pa

ce
; d

ou
ble

 
gla

ze
d w

ind
ow

s; 
an

d M
ec

ha
nic

al 
Ve

nti
lat

ion
 an

d H
ea

t R
ec

ov
ery

 (M
VH

R)
. A

ll f
ea

tur
es

 w
ill 

he
lp 

ten
an

ts 
sa

ve
 m

on
ey

 on
 ut

ility
 bi

lls.
 

St
ren

gth
en

ing
 ou

r 
ec

on
om

y. 
  

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
ab
le 
to 

rec
ov
er 
qu
ick

ly 
an
d 

str
on
gly

 fr
om

 th
e 

rec
es
sio

n. 
 

�
 

In 
20

12
/13

 th
at 

the
 va

lue
 of

 th
e b

en
efi

ts 
ou

r C
BH

 m
on

ey
 ad

vis
or 

he
lpe

d t
o s

ec
ure

 w
as

 in
 

ex
ce

ss
 of

 £3
27

,00
0 a

dd
itio

na
l fu

nd
s o

r im
pro

ve
d c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 to

 th
os

e r
es

ide
nts

 he
 w

ork
ed

 
wit

h. 
�
 

Ou
r a

nd
 be

ne
fits

 an
d m

on
ey

 ad
vis

ors
 no

t o
nly

 pr
ov

ide
 ad

vic
e o

n c
lai

mi
ng

 be
ne

fits
 bu

t a
lso

 
as

sis
t w

ith
 bu

dg
eti

ng
, p

rov
ide

 as
sis

tan
ce

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 ille
ga

l m
on

ey
 le

nd
ing

, a
dv

ise
 on

 en
erg

y 
sa

vin
g m

ea
su

res
, p

rov
ide

 ad
vic

e o
n s

wit
ch

ing
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

an
d, 

he
lp 

sig
np

os
t to

 ot
he

r 
us

efu
l a

ge
nc

ies
 e.

g. 
cit

ize
ns

 ad
vic

e. 
�
 

Th
e C

BH
-le

d F
ina

nc
ial

 In
clu

sio
n W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p m
ee

ts 
reg

ula
rly

 an
d a

lso
 ho

lds
 re

gu
lar

 
mo

ne
y a

dv
ice

 dr
op

-in
 ev

en
ts 

at 
loc

ati
on

s a
cro

ss
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

Am
on

gs
t o

the
r a

cti
vit

ies
 C

BH
 

ha
ve

 co
nti

nu
ed

 to
 pr

om
ote

 ba
sic

 ba
nk

 ac
co

un
ts 

an
d c

on
ten

ts 
ins

ura
nc

e. 
W

e h
av

e a
lso

 be
en

 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 C
red

it U
nio

n t
o p

rov
ide

 an
oth

er 
me

an
s o

f s
av

ing
 an

d 
res

po
ns

ibl
e b

orr
ow

ing
 fo

r c
us

tom
ers

. 
�
 

In 
Se

pte
mb

er 
CB

H 
we

re 
de

lig
hte

d t
o w

elc
om

e 3
 ap

pre
nti

ce
s t

he
 w

ork
for

ce
. 2

 of
 th

e n
ew

 
ap

pre
nti

ce
s a

re 
cu

rre
ntl

y u
nd

ert
ak

ing
 a 

2 y
ea

r a
pp

ren
tic

es
hip

 in
 re

sp
on

siv
e r

ep
air

s. 
1 o

f th
e 

ap
pre

nti
ce

s w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

ing
 18

 m
on

ths
 in

 co
mm

un
ity

 in
vo

lve
me

nt.
  

�
 

CB
H 

ha
s l

au
nc

he
d n

ew
 w

ork
 cl

ub
s i

n S
t. P

au
l’s 

an
d H

es
ter

’s 
W

ay
 af

ter
 jo

ini
ng

 fo
rce

s w
ith

 
Jo

bC
en

tre
 Pl

us
. T

he
 cl

ub
s p

rov
ide

 pr
ac

tic
al 

su
pp

ort
 to

 he
lp 

res
ide

nts
 fin

d w
ork

 an
d p

rep
are

 
for

 a 
ret

urn
 ba

ck
 in

to 
wo

rk.
 

�
 

A l
ea

fle
t e

xp
lai

nin
g t

he
 im

pa
cts

 of
 W

elf
are

 R
efo

rm
 w

as
 pr

od
uc

ed
 by

 C
BH

 al
on

gs
ide

 a 
me

dia
 

ca
mp

aig
n a

nd
 ot

he
r in

itia
tiv

es
 to

 ad
vis

e o
f c

ha
ng

es
 an

d t
o p

rov
ide

 gu
ida

nc
e a

nd
 as

sis
tan

ce
 

to 
ten

an
ts.

 
�
 

CB
H 

ha
s m

ad
e c

on
tac

t d
ire

ctl
y w

ith
 th

os
e t

en
an

ts 
aff

ec
ted

 by
 th

e u
nd

er 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y b

en
efi

t 
red

uc
tio

ns
 to

 ad
vis

e t
he

m 
of 

the
 ch

an
ge

s a
nd

 to
 ad

vis
e o

n p
ote

nti
al 

op
tio

ns
.  

Page 44



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n  

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

2/
13

 
St

ren
gth

en
ing

 ou
r 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
  

Co
mm

un
itie

s f
ee
l s
afe

 
an
d a

re 
sa
fe.
 

�
 

Th
e S

afe
r E

sta
tes

 Te
am

 w
as

 re
vie

we
d t

his
 ye

ar 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t p
roc

es
se

s a
nd

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s 
we

re 
fit 

for
 pu

rpo
se

 an
d t

ha
t C

BH
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 de
live

r a
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

se
rvi

ce
 fo

r a
ll c

us
tom

ers
. 

�
 

On
e i

ns
tan

ce
 of

 th
e S

afe
r E

sta
tes

 Te
am

 in
 ac

tio
n s

aw
 th

e c
ou

rag
e o

f n
eig

hb
ou

rs 
an

d t
he

 
wo

rk 
of 

off
ice

rs 
fro

m 
CB

H 
lea

din
g a

 ju
dg

e t
o g

ran
t a

 pr
iso

n s
en

ten
ce

 fo
r C

BH
 te

na
nt 

for
 

dis
tur

bin
g n

eig
hb

ou
rs 

wit
h a

rgu
me

nts
 an

d n
ois

e i
n t

he
 ea

rly
 ho

urs
. T

his
 w

as
 gr

an
ted

 
fol

low
ing

 br
ea

ch
es

 to
 th

eir
 ex

ist
ing

 an
ti-s

oc
ial

 be
ha

vio
ur 

inj
un

cti
on

, a
nd

 fo
llo

we
d o

n f
rom

 a 
28

 da
y s

us
pe

nd
ed

 se
nte

nc
e i

n A
pri

l 2
01

2. 
Ca

se
s a

re 
oft

en
 pu

bli
ciz

ed
 to

 he
lp 

rea
ss

ure
 

ten
an

ts 
tha

t w
e t

ak
e A

SB
 co

mp
lai

nts
 ve

ry 
se

rio
us

ly.
 

�
 

Fre
e R

es
tor

ati
ve

 Ju
sti

ce
 tra

ini
ng

 fo
r S

afe
r E

sta
tes

 an
d H

ou
sin

g M
an

ag
em

en
t C

oll
ea

gu
es

 
pro

vid
es

 an
 ab

ility
 fo

r e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti

on
 to

 fin
d a

 so
lut

ion
 to

 AS
B r

ed
uc

ing
 tim

e a
nd

 co
st 

in 
de

ali
ng

 w
ith

 ca
se

s. 
�
 

PC
C 

fun
din

g i
s n

ow
 be

ing
 us

ed
 fo

r S
up

po
rt f

or 
Sa

nc
tua

ry 
Sc

he
me

 in
cre

as
ing

 se
cu

rity
 fo

r 
vic

tim
s o

f d
om

es
tic

 ab
us

e. 
�
 

Vic
tim

s a
nd

 w
itn

es
s s

up
po

rt g
uid

e h
as

 be
en

 pr
od

uc
ed

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 si
gn

po
sti

ng
 

for
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

the
 se

rvi
ce

. 
�
 

Th
is 

ye
ar 

sa
w 

a r
e-l

au
nc

h o
f s

afe
r e

sta
tes

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ies

 en
co

ura
gin

g 
im

pro
ve

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng

 a 
an

d p
rov

idi
ng

 a 
mo

re 
eff

icie
nt 

se
rvi

ce
. 

�
 

An
 AS

B t
ac

klin
g e

ve
nt 

wa
s h

os
ted

 by
 C

BH
 on

 be
ha

lf o
f th

e S
oc

ial
 La

nd
lor

ds
 C

rim
e a

nd
 

Nu
isa

nc
e G

rou
p (

SL
CN

G)
. T

he
 ev

en
t ru

ns
 qu

art
erl

y a
nd

 lo
ok

s f
or 

wa
ys

 of
 ta

ck
lin

g A
SB

 an
d 

als
o p

rov
ide

s a
n o

pp
ort

un
ity

 fo
r la

nd
lor

ds
 to

 sh
are

 ex
pe

rie
nc

es
, s

uc
ce

ss
es

 an
d f

rus
tra

tio
ns

. 
�
 

Du
rin

g 2
01

2/1
3 1

8 c
as

es
 of

 se
rio

us
 AS

B w
ere

 re
po

rte
d t

o t
he

 sa
fer

 es
tat

es
 te

am
 an

d w
ere

 
res

po
nd

ed
 to

 w
ith

in 
the

 ta
rge

t p
eri

od
 of

 1 
wo

rki
ng

 da
y. 

Du
rin

g t
he

 sa
me

 pe
rio

d 2
18

 ca
se

s o
f 

les
s s

eri
ou

s A
SB

 w
ere

 re
sp

on
de

d t
o w

ith
in 

the
 ta

rge
t 5

 w
ork

ing
 da

y p
eri

od
. 

�
 

Du
rin

g 2
01

2/1
3 a

ll A
SB

 ca
se

s r
ep

ort
ed

 re
ce

ive
d a

 w
ritt

en
 ac

tio
n p

lan
. 

�
 

Po
lice

 an
d P

CS
Os

 ar
e i

nv
ite

d t
o a

nd
 at

ten
d n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 ev

en
ts 

wh
ere

ve
r p

os
sib

le 
he

lpi
ng

 bu
ild

 a 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wit
h t

he
 co

mm
un

ity
 th

ey
 se

rve
. 

�
 

In 
the

 pa
st 

ye
ar 

the
 no

ise
 nu

isa
nc

e p
rot

oc
ol 

ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d b
y t

he
 Sa

fer
 Es

tat
es

 Te
am

 to
 

en
su

re 
a c

on
sis

ten
t a

nd
 cl

ea
r a

pp
roa

ch
. 

�
 

Th
is 

ye
ar 

CB
H 

ho
ste

d t
he

 So
uth

 W
es

t W
ard

en
 N

etw
ork

 C
on

fer
en

ce
 at

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Fo

otb
all

 
Clu

b. 
Th

e a
tte

nd
ee

s i
nc

lud
ed

 Al
lia

nc
e H

om
es

, P
lym

ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nc

il, 
Fo

res
t o

f D
ea

n 
Co

un
cil 

an
d W

es
t B

erk
sh

ire
. T

his
 ev

en
t is

 a 
va

lua
ble

 w
ay

 to
 sh

are
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce

 an
d o

bta
in 

he
lp 

an
d a

dv
ice

 in
 de

ali
ng

 w
ith

 sp
ec

ific
 is

su
es

 in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

. 
Pe
op
le 
ha
ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 

de
ce
nt 
an
d a

ffo
rd
ab
le 

ho
us
ing

. 
�
 

30
 ne

w 
co

un
cil 

ho
me

s w
ere

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 St

. P
au

l’s 
an

d a
ll a

re 
no

w 
oc

cu
pie

d b
y t

en
an

ts.
 

Ad
dit

ion
all

y a
 fu

rth
er 

18
 sh

are
d o

wn
ers

hip
 pr

op
ert

ies
 w

ere
 so

ld.
 O

ve
r 9

0%
 of

 ne
w 

oc
cu

pa
nts

 
reg

ard
ed

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 th

eir
 ne

w 
ho

me
 as

 go
od

 or
 ve

ry 
go

od
. A

rou
nd

 74
% 

of 
ne

w 
oc

cu
pa

nts
 

reg
ard

ed
 th

eir
 ne

w 
ho

me
s a

s c
os

t e
ffe

cti
ve

 to
 ru

n. 

Page 45



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n  

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

2/
13

 
�
 

Pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 ha

s b
ee

n g
ran

ted
 to

 bu
ild

 tw
o a

nd
 th

ree
 be

dro
om

 ho
me

s a
cro

ss
 fo

ur 
sit

es
. T

he
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 w
ork

 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Su

mm
er 

20
14

. 
Pe
op
le 
are

 ab
le 
to 
lea

d 
he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
. 

�
 

A c
om

mu
nit

y g
ard

en
 w

as
 cr

ea
ted

 th
rou

gh
 a 

tra
ns

for
ma

tio
n o

f th
e c

om
mu

na
l a

rea
 at

 
Cle

ve
do

n S
qu

are
 fla

ts.
 Th

is 
wa

s c
om

ple
ted

 w
ith

 th
e v

ery
 ki

nd
 as

sis
tan

ce
 of

 15
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

Ba
rne

tt W
ad

din
gh

am
 st

aff
 as

 pa
rt o

f a
 la

rge
r V

isio
n 2

1 p
roj

ec
t. T

he
 ga

rde
n i

s e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 

pro
du

ce
 a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

fru
it a

nd
 ve

g f
or 

the
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

en
joy

. 
�
 

A r
ec

en
t 1

2 m
on

th 
rev

iew
 by

 th
e C

en
tre

 fo
r H

ou
sin

g a
nd

 Su
pp

ort
 (C

HS
) a

ss
es

se
d C

BH
’s 

sh
elt

ere
d h

ou
sin

g s
erv

ice
 as

 “e
xc

ell
en

t” a
nd

 co
nti

nu
ing

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
hig

h q
ua

lity
 se

rvi
ce

. 
 

Ou
r r
es
ide

nts
 en

joy
 a 

str
on
g s

en
se
 of
 

co
mm

un
ity
 an

d a
re 

inv
olv

ed
 in
 re
so
lvi
ng
 

loc
al 
iss

ue
s. 

�
 

Th
is 

ye
ar 

CB
H 

we
lco

me
d o

ur 
firs

t le
as

eh
old

er 
on

to 
the

 C
BH

 Bo
ard

. C
BH

 re
co

gn
ise

s t
he

 
im

po
rta

nc
e o

f re
pre

se
nta

tio
n a

cro
ss

 a 
wid

e s
pe

ctr
um

 of
 C

BH
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

. 
�
 

Th
e C

om
mu

nit
y I

nv
olv

em
en

t T
ea

m 
su

pp
ort

s m
an

y c
us

tom
er 

gro
up

s i
nc

lud
ing

, th
e S

he
lte

red
 

Ho
us

ing
 Fo

rum
, T

en
an

t S
cru

tin
y I

mp
rov

em
en

t P
an

el 
(TS

IP)
, th

e D
isa

bil
ity

 Fo
rum

,  o
the

r 
res

ide
nts

 as
so

cia
tio

ns
 an

d r
ec

en
tly

 th
e n

ew
 Po

lish
 C

om
mu

nit
y F

oru
m 

an
d. 

Th
es

e g
rou

ps
 al

l 
fee

db
ac

k t
o C

BH
 an

d e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 cu
sto

me
r is

 at
 th

e h
ea

rt o
f e

ve
ryt

hin
g w

e d
o. 

�
 

Th
e P

ittv
ille

 Pa
rk 

Ea
ste

r E
gg

 H
un

t w
as

 ho
ste

d b
y C

BH
, h

elp
ing

 to
 br

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 to

ge
the

r 
an

d p
rov

ide
 an

 op
po

rtu
nit

y f
or 

res
ide

nts
 to

 m
ee

t a
nd

 ch
at 

wit
h C

BH
 st

aff
. 

�
 

Th
e H

ob
art

 H
ou

se
 C

om
mu

nit
y G

ard
en

s r
eg

en
era

tio
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n s
tar

ted
 w

ith
 re

sid
en

ts.
 As

 
pa

rt o
f th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n a

 BB
Q 

ho
ste

d b
y C

BH
 w

as
 ar

ran
ge

d, 
inv

itin
g v

iew
s o

n p
lay

 
eq

uip
me

nt 
wh

ich
 w

ill b
e i

nc
orp

ora
ted

 in
to 

the
 ga

rde
n. 

 
�
 

Th
e t

ran
sfo

rm
ati

on
 of

 th
e r

ea
r G

ard
en

 of
 St

. P
au

l’s 
Co

mm
un

ity
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 ac
hie

ve
d b

y t
he

 
eff

ort
s o

f 1
0 Y

ou
ng

 Pr
inc

e’s
 Tr

us
t V

olu
nte

ers
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 C
BH

. 
�
 

Th
e a

nn
ua

l C
BH

 O
ak

ley
 Fu

n D
ay

 w
as

 th
e b

es
t a

tte
nd

ed
 ev

er 
wit

h p
erf

ec
t w

ea
the

r a
ss

ist
ing

. 
On

 Fr
ida

y 2
7 J

uly
 hu

nd
red

s o
f lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
de

sc
en

de
d o

n C
lyd

e C
res

ce
nt 

an
d t

rie
d t

he
ir 

ha
nd

 at
 a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

ou
tdo

or 
ga

me
s a

nd
 en

joy
ed

 th
e m

ini
-m

oto
s, 

bo
un

cy
 ca

stl
e, 

an
 ar

ray
 of

 
art

 an
d c

raf
ts 

sta
lls 

an
d m

uc
h m

ore
. T

he
 ev

en
t o

ffe
rs 

a g
rea

t c
ha

nc
e f

or 
CB

H 
to 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 

loc
al 

res
ide

nts
, n

ot 
jus

t te
na

nts
, a

nd
 ge

t p
eo

ple
 ou

t a
nd

 m
ixin

g t
og

eth
er 

in 
a f

un
, o

pe
n 

en
vir

on
me

nt,
 he

lpi
ng

 to
 bu

ild
 st

ron
ge

r c
om

mu
nit

ies
 an

d p
rov

ide
 su

pp
ort

 an
d g

uid
an

ce
 w

he
re 

po
ss

ibl
e. 

�
 

Ov
er 

20
0 t

en
an

ts 
an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

att
en

de
d t

he
 fir

st 
CB

H 
Fe

sti
va

l h
eld

 at
 th

e t
ow

n h
all

 
de

sp
ite

 th
e c

old
 w

ea
the

r. T
he

 fe
sti

va
l w

as
 an

oth
er 

ch
an

ce
 fo

r te
na

nts
 an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

to 
me

et 
wit

h C
BH

 st
aff

 bu
t a

lso
 pr

ov
ide

d e
nte

rta
inm

en
t fo

r c
hil

dre
n, 

wo
rks

ho
ps

 on
 w

elf
are

 
ref

orm
, in

for
ma

tio
n a

bo
ut 

CB
H 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 si

gn
po

sti
ng

 to
 ot

he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on

s t
ha

t p
rov

ide
 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

Th
e f

ee
db

ac
k r

ec
eiv

ed
 w

as
 on

 th
e w

ho
le 

ve
ry 

po
sit

ive
. 

�
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ac
tio

n d
ay

s h
av

e s
tar

ted
 at

 C
oa

tes
 H

ou
se

 an
d E

lga
r H

ou
se
. 

 

Page 46



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n  

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

2/
13

 
�
 

Ov
er 

13
0 t

en
an

ts,
 le

as
eh

old
ers

 an
d s

taf
f tu

rne
d o

ut 
for

 th
e a

nn
ua

l C
BH

 “C
om

mu
nit

y H
ero

es
” 

ev
en

t h
eld

 th
is 

ye
ar 

at 
the

 Th
ist

le 
Ho

tel
. T

he
 ev

en
t re

co
gn

ise
s t

he
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n o

f in
div

idu
als

 
an

d g
rou

ps
 in

 th
e n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
s C

BH
 m

an
ag

es
. T

his
 ye

ar 
the

re 
we

re 
8 a

wa
rd 

ca
teg

ori
es

: 
Te

na
nt 

of 
the

 Ye
ar,

 Yo
un

g T
en

an
t o

f th
e Y

ea
r, C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

Aw
ard

, G
ree

n A
ch

iev
er 

Aw
ard

, C
om

mi
tm

en
t &

 D
ete

rm
ina

tio
n A

wa
rd,

 C
om

mu
nit

y A
wa

rd,
 Em

bra
cin

g T
ec

hn
olo

gy
 

Aw
ard

, a
nd

 Sh
ap

ing
 Se

rvi
ce

s A
wa

rd.
 

�
 

Ju
nio

r W
ard

en
s f

rom
 O

ak
wo

od
 an

d G
lou

ce
ste

r R
oa

d P
rim

ary
 Sc

ho
ols

 ha
ve

 be
en

 en
ga

gin
g 

we
ll w

ith
 re

sid
en

ts 
at 

Po
pe

s C
los

e S
he

lte
red

 Sc
he

me
 . 

�
 

CB
H 

ha
ve

 be
en

 w
ork

ing
 cl

os
ely

 w
ith

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 Pr
ob

ati
on

 an
d h

av
e b

ee
n i

nv
olv

ed
 

wo
rki

ng
 on

 sp
ec

ific
 pr

oje
cts

 w
ith

 th
e s

erv
ice

. 
En

ha
nc

ing
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
 of

 ar
ts 

an
d c

ult
ur

e. 
Ar
ts 
an
d c

ult
ur
e a

re 
us
ed
 as

 a 
me

an
s t
o 

str
en
gth

en
 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
str
en
gth

en
 th
e 

ec
on
om

y a
nd
 en

ha
nc
e 

an
d p

ro
tec

t o
ur
 

en
vir
on
me

nt.
 

 

En
su

rin
g w

e 
pr

ov
ide

 va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne

y s
erv

ice
s 

tha
t e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

me
et 

the
 ne

ed
s o

f 
ou

r c
us

tom
ers

. 
  

Th
e c

ou
nc
il d

eli
ve
rs 

ca
sh
ab
le 
sa
vin

gs
, a
s 

we
ll a

s i
mp

ro
ve
d 

cu
sto

me
r s
ati
sfa

cti
on
 

ov
era

ll a
nd
 be

tte
r 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
ro
ug
h 

the
 ef
fec

tiv
e 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of
 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

�
 

At 
en

d Q
3 1

00
% 

of 
Em

erg
en

cy
 R

ep
air

s, 
99

.85
% 

of 
Ur

ge
nt 

Re
pa

irs
 an

d 9
9.2

5%
 of

 R
ou

tin
e 

Re
pa

irs
 w

ere
 co

mp
let

ed
 on

 tim
e. 

Th
is 

pu
ts 

CB
H 

in 
the

 to
p 2

5%
 of

 ho
us

ing
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
for

 
the

se
 ca

teg
ori

es
 us

ing
 H

ou
se

ma
rk 

Be
nc

hm
ark

ing
. (o

ut 
of 

ap
pro

x 2
65

) 
�
 

10
0%

 of
 re

pa
ir a

pp
oin

tm
en

ts 
ma

de
 w

ith
 cu

sto
me

rs 
we

re 
ke

pt 
by

 C
BH

. 
�
 

At 
en

d Q
3 t

he
 av

era
ge

 re
-le

t ti
me

 ex
clu

din
g m

ajo
r v

oid
s w

as
 15

.76
 da

ys
. T

his
 pu

t C
BH

 in
 th

e 
top

 25
% 

of 
ho

us
ing

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

tha
t h

ad
 su

bm
itte

d d
ata

 (o
ut 

of 
19

1).
 

�
 

% 
ren

t lo
st 

du
e t

o d
we

llin
gs

 be
co

mi
ng

 va
ca

nt 
wa

s 0
.54

% 
at 

en
d Q

3. 
Th

is 
wa

s i
n t

he
 to

p 2
5%

 
of 

ho
us

ing
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
tha

t s
ub

mi
tte

d d
ata

. (o
ut 

of 
20

2).
 

�
 

At 
en

d Q
3 0

.04
% 

of 
ten

an
ts 

we
re 

ev
ict

ed
 fo

r re
nt 

arr
ea

rs 
an

d c
urr

en
t te

na
nt 

arr
ea

rs 
wo

rke
d 

ou
t a

t 1
.50

% 
of 

ren
tal

 in
co

me
. B

oth
 of

 th
es

e i
nd

ica
tor

s p
ut 

CB
H 

in 
the

 to
p 2

5%
 of

 ho
us

ing
 

pro
vid

ers
 fo

r lo
w 

ev
ict

ion
 ra

te 
an

d l
ow

 ar
rea

rs.
 

 
  

Page 47



Page 48
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 1 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Cheltenham Plan – Regulation 18 Scope Consultation 
Report of Leader 

 
Accountable member Councillor Jordan -  Leader Cheltenham Borough Council 
Accountable officer Tracey Crews – Head of Planning 
Ward(s) affected ALL 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary The Joint Core Strategy for Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury (“the 

JCS”) will set out strategic planning policies and proposals for the area to 
2031.  To complete the Local plan it will be necessary for each of the 
constituent councils to prepare local-level plans that will take forward those 
strategic proposals in greater detail - put flesh on the bones as it were -
whilst also addressing non-strategic planning issues of relevance to the 
locality.   
The Cheltenham Borough Local Plan was adopted in 2006 and, having 
regard to the emerging JCS and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), it is increasingly out of date.  In a plan-led system, an out-of-date 
development plan diminishes the council’s ability to direct and manage 
development. For these reasons the council needs to begin preparation of 
the Cheltenham Plan. 
Plan preparation is a statutory process.  In accordance with regulations, the 
first step is to prepare and consult publicly upon the scope of the proposed 
plan.  In other words: which planning matters should be covered in the plan.  
That is the purpose of this report and the accompanying consultation 
document.  

Recommendations That Cabinet has considered the Cheltenham Plan Scope consultation 
document and approved it for public consultation  
That Cabinet allows for any minor amendments to the document prior 
to consultation to be agreed by the Head of Planning 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones – head of Finance,  
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Agenda Item 6
Page 49



 

   

$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 2 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Legal implications The Council is required to have an up to date development plan for its area 
and must prepare it in accordance with legislative requirements, including 
ensuring the compliance with the Statement of Community Involvement. 
Contact officer:          cheryl.lester@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 01684 272013 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications 
Contact officer:  Julie McCarthy, HR Manager (West),  
Julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26 4355 

Key risks Corporate risk CR81:  If the Council does not progress as quickly as 
possible to preparing the Cheltenham Plan, then the Borough will be 
exposed to the risk of inappropriate development. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Corporate Action ENV 6: We will commence preparation of a Cheltenham 
Plan.   
Progressing with this stage of consultation will allow the Cheltenham Plan 
to progress in accordance with its timescales.  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

This is an early stage of the Cheltenham Plan which does not set any 
policy or strategy and therefore implications are limited.  However, there 
may be implications for future versions of the Cheltenham Plan as policies 
in the Plan may address environmental issues and climate change.  

Property/Asset 
Implications 

Not applicable within the context of this report, however at the next stage 
of plan making property/asset implications may emerge  
 

 
Background 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement to prepare a Local Plan for an area.  Whilst the Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) will provide the strategic planning 
framework for the Borough, a new Cheltenham Plan is required to guide development at a local, 
non-strategic level.   

1.2 The Localism Act and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) have brought about major 
changes to the planning system and reintroduce the term ‘Local Plan’ for the suite of planning 
policy documents to replace the previously used term ‘Local Development Framework’.  The 
NPPF states that each Local Planning Authority (LPA) should produce a Local Plan for its area, 
based upon and reflecting, the presumption in favour of sustainable development, with clear 
policies that will guide how the presumption should be applied.  Cheltenham’s Local Plan will 
contain at least two policy documents: the strategic JCS and the local Cheltenham Plan, see 
Appendix 2 for an explanatory diagram.  

1.3 The amount of weight that can be attributed to the existing Cheltenham Borough Local Plan 
Adopted 2006 (saved policies) and associated Supplementary Planning 
Guidance(SPGs)/Supplementary Planning Documents(SPDs) and Development Briefs varies 
and, in the most part, will diminish over time as the plan was prepared under old planning 
legislation.  Cheltenham Borough is not unique in its position, around half of the councils in 

Page 50



 

   

$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 3 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

England have Development Plans which predate the most recent planning legislation and as at 
March 2013 fewer than 7% of councils had adopted plans that have been judged by inspectors to 
fully comply with the government's NPPF.  However, in order to ensure that development within 
Cheltenham is ‘plan-led’ rather than ‘appeal-led’, it is essential to produce a new, up to date; 
NPPF compliant plan based on objectively assessed evidence within the context of the JCS as 
quickly as possible. 

1.4 The Cheltenham Plan will replace the need for the Site Allocations DPD and Development 
Management Policies DPD which were previously included within the Local Development Scheme 
and would have covered the same topics.    

1.5 The Cheltenham Plan will be expected to help deliver the vision, aims and objectives of 
Cheltenham’s Strategic Partnership, Corporate Strategy and the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS).  It will provide the long term borough wide development 
plan over a 15- 20 year period, and will set out local policies and non-strategic, smaller allocations 
which will guide development management.  This will include policies on scale of development, 
design, conservation, local infrastructure and deliverability.  

1.6 The Cheltenham Plan will be informed by the broader strategic planning framework, including  
• The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2005 (as amended) 
• The Localism Act 2011 
• Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
• National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
• Emerging Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 
• Existing Cheltenham Borough Council policies and strategies, where still relevant 
• Existing Evidence Base, where still relevant 
• Internal and external consultation 
 

1.7 The proposed Cheltenham Plan Scope consultation is the first stage in preparing the Cheltenham 
Plan and is a statutory requirement under the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012.  The Regulations require Local Authorities to consult with people as 
to what the Cheltenham plan ought to contain.  The scope consultation comprises of a relatively 
short document setting out the topic areas which the Cheltenham Plan will contain with a brief 
explanation, and early thoughts on a new vision and objectives for the borough, which the public 
and stakeholders will be asked to comment on. 

1.8 It is important to remember that, at this stage, the detail is not the main focus of consideration, for 
example the Scope will include the types of policies to be covered but not the specific wording of 
the policies, more detailed consultation opportunities will be available later.  That said we will also 
be looking for initial views as to the vision and objectives to help inform preparation.  

1.9 Cheltenham’s Local Plan will initially comprise two documents - the Joint Core Strategy and the 
Cheltenham Plan – together with any supporting documents, please see Appendix 2 for a 
diagram.  An initial timetable for the production of the Cheltenham Plan is included at Appendix 3 
and below:  
Consultation on Scope of Cheltenham Plan   Summer 2013  
Consult on draft Cheltenham Plan    Spring 2014  
Consult on proposed submission Plan   Winter 2014 
Submission and examination of Plan   Winter/Spring 2015 
Adoption      Summer/Autumn 2015 

  

2. Reasons for recommendations 

Page 51



 

   

$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 4 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

2.1 It is a requirement to have a Local Plan in place for the Borough. The Cheltenham Plan, in 
conjunction with the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, will enable the 
council to fulfil this requirement.  Approving this first stage document for consultation will allow the 
progression of the Cheltenham Plan.  

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 This stage of consultation is a statutory requirement and therefore there are limited alternative 

options.   
3.2 One option that was considered was to go to public consultation without asking for views on the 

vision and objectives for Cheltenham, however it was felt that the opportunity to gauge public and 
stakeholder opinion early on in the process, on such an important matter, was one that should not 
be missed.  

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Internal consultation has been held on the draft scope, visioning and objectives of the 

Cheltenham Plan with members and officers.  This includes 
• Planning and Liaison Scrutiny Task Group – A cross party group with a remit to consider 

and advise on the emerging Cheltenham Plan and provide guidance and feedback to 
Planning Committee, Cabinet and Council as appropriate.  The Task group has had a 
number of opportunities to comment on the working drafts in addition to a full member 
session held in January 2013.  

• Internal officer working group - made up of officers from across the council with a remit to 
work with, consider, advise and inform the emerging Cheltenham Plan and request 
information from, and provide feedback to, individual teams as appropriate.  This group 
has had the opportunity to feed into the draft scope, visioning and objectives exercise. 

• The Cheltenham Partnership – regular updates and discussions with officers leading 
preparation of the Cheltenham Plan 

Feedback from the above groups has been considered and incorporated where appropriate.  
4.2 The formal stage of consultation must follow the regulations and consultation on the draft Scope 

of the Cheltenham Plan will be in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  Members of the public and organisations 
will be given a period of 8 weeks to comment on the document.  Comments will be invited from all 
contacts on our Planning database and copies of the document will be made available (in paper 
format) at the Council’s deposit locations and electronically via the Councils website.  Every effort 
will be made to make the public aware of the consultation through media releases, engagement 
with C5 group, via council networks to alert groups to help cascade information, leafleting etc.  
Given the very early, non-specific, nature of the Scope document it is not intended to hold public 
consultation events, this will occur during the later stages of consultation.  

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 This is not a policy document in itself, it merely asks what should be in the Cheltenham Plan and 

as such will not be monitored, however the responses will be used to inform the production of the 
Cheltenham Plan.  

5.2 The Council will regularly monitor the effectiveness of the Cheltenham Plan in the planning 
process and use the results to review policies and practices.  If necessary, the Council will review 
the Cheltenham Plan.  

Page 52



 

   

$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 5 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Report author Contact officer Claire Cullen-Jones/David Halkyard 
claire.cullen-jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 
David.halkyard@cheltenham.gov.uk  
01242 264235/01242 774988 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment  
2. Diagram showing Cheltenham’s Local Plan and supporting 

documents 
3. Cheltenham Plan draft timetable 
4. Draft Cheltenham Scope Consultation paper  

Background information 1. Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012. 

2. Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 
3. Cheltenham Borough Local Development Scheme 

http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/site/scripts/download_info.php?fileID
=3268 

 

Page 53



 

   
$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 6 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR81 Corporate risk:  If the 
Council does not 
progress as quickly as 
possible to preparing the 
Cheltenham Plan, then 
the Borough will be 
exposed to the risk of 
inappropriate 
development. 

Mike 
Redman 

21.03.13 3 4 12 Reduce Set up Scrutiny Task 
Group to advise and 
challenge on the 
development of a 
Cheltenham Plan 

 Tracey 
Crews 

Corporate 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 54



 

   
$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 7 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Appendix 2  
Diagram showing Cheltenham’s Local Plan structure and supporting documents 
 

Local 
Development 
Scheme 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement

Authorities 
Reports

Supplementary 
Planning 
documents 

Cheltenham’s Local Plan and supporting 
documents

Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint 
Core Strategy

Cheltenham 
Plan

Adopted 
Policies Map

Any other Plans 
which may be 
prepared

  
 
 

 
 

Cheltenham Plan draft timetable                Appendix 3  

P
age 55



 

   
$5hn3p3d1.doc Page 8 of 17 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

 
Cheltenham Plan draft timetable 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Task O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A
Agree Scope & Vision of Cheltenham 
Plan                                                                       
Consult on Scope Document                                                                      
Review of Existing Local Plan                                                                       
Evidence Base Review                                                                      
Prepare Cheltenham Plan                                                                      
Sustainability Appraisal of draft plan                                                                      
Consult on Draft Plan                                                                       
Prepare proposed submission                                                                       
Consult on proposed submission Plan                                                                       
Submission and Examination                                                                       
Adoption of Cheltenham plan                                                                       
v4. 29.05.13                                     

P
age 56



 

 9 

Appendix 4  
Draft Cheltenham Scope Consultation paper 
 

 
The Cheltenham Plan 
 
A public consultation on the scope of the plan in accordance 
with Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

 
Introduction 

 
1.0 What is the “Cheltenham Plan”, what is it for and why is the council preparing 

it now? 
 

1.1 The Cheltenham Plan will help to guide development of the borough over the 
next 15-20 years.  It will be used in making decisions on planning applications 
and will be a key part of “place-shaping” Cheltenham.  Planning is often as 
much about what doesn’t get built as what does. And it’s also about making 
sure we stay competitive, inclusive and sustainable in economic, 
environmental and social terms. It’s important therefore that we try to get the 
balance right between what can often seem to be conflicting or competing 
objectives.  That’s a core function of our development plan. 

 
1.2 The council is very keen to bring forward the Cheltenham Plan as soon as 

possible.  One reason for this is that the amount of weight that can be 
attributed to Cheltenham Borough Local Plan Adopted 2006 (saved policies) 
and associated Supplementary Planning Guidance(SPG’s)/Supplementary 
Planning Documents(SPD’s) and Development Briefs varies and, in the most 
part, will diminish over time.  It is therefore essential to produce a new, up to 
date, NPPF compliant plan based on objectively assessed evidence to ensure 
that development within Cheltenham is ‘plan-led’ rather than ‘appeal-led’.   

 
2.0 The council is also involved with Tewkesbury and Gloucester in 

preparing the Joint Core Strategy – how does that relate to the 
Cheltenham Plan? 

 
2.1 The Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) 

deals with strategic-level planning.  For example, the JCS will set out how 
many houses and jobs need to be provided in Cheltenham over the next 15 -
20 years, identify locations for major development e.g. for development of 
sites over 450 new homes, to meet that need and set out how and when 
development will be delivered, including any major infrastructure 
requirements.  See JCS website for more information http://www.gct-jcs.org/ 

 
2.2 Whilst the Cheltenham Plan will complement the JCS by effectively “filling in 

the details”, it will also be a more locally-focused document dealing with 
Cheltenham-specific issues such as supporting the work of the Cheltenham 

Page 57



 

 10 

Development Task Force and protecting and conserving the town’s built 
heritage and recognising the importance of our parks and gardens .  

 
3.0 What is meant by the “scope” of the plan and why is the council 

consulting me on it? 
 

3.1 The scope of the plan essentially means the planning matters it will cover – 
housing, jobs and transport for instance.  More detail on this is provided 
below.  The council is consulting you on this not only because it is legally 
required to but because it wants to ensure that the people of Cheltenham 
have a say in what’s in their development plan.   

 
3.2 It’s important to bear in mind though that because this is a development plan 

it has a very specific remit.  In other parts of this note we discuss what issues 
the plan can (and can’t) address, and explain some of the reasons for that. 

 
4.0 How can I get involved and how will my views be taken into account? 

 
4.1 Later on at section 11 we set out some contact details and related information 

for you.  There’s a response form you can fill out – you can tear that off, fill it 
out and send it in or, if you prefer, there’s an online version you can complete 
hyperlink to be inserted. Your views will be taken into account in preparation 
of the next stage of the plan and your responses, in full or in summary, will be 
reported to the council as well as being published on the council’s website.  
Planning officers are here to help and they’re available during normal office 
hours to answer any questions you might have about making your views 
known. 
 
The Cheltenham Plan – legal context and “material planning 
considerations” 

 
5.0 Preparation of a development plan is a “statutory process” governed by 

legislation1.  Consultation on the Cheltenham Plan must accord fully with 
legislative requirements.  These include rules about: 
• consulting on the scope of the plan; 
• publishing the plan; 
• consideration of representations; and 
• independent examination of the submitted plan by a Planning Inspector. 

 
 

5.1 The “material planning considerations” that have to be taken into account in 
preparing a development plan are numerous.  “Material” in this context just 
means that an issue is (a) relevant to planning and (b) is not trivial or 
inconsequential.  Localism is a significant material consideration as is the 
national planning policy framework and particularly paragraphs 150 -185 

                                                
1 Principal legislation is the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

Page 58



 

 11 

which deal specifically with plan-making. These paragraphs include guidance 
on a range of issues that we will return to several times over the coming 
months such as: 
• using a proportionate evidence base in relation to housing, business, 

infrastructure, the environment and many other areas; 
• ensuring viability and deliverability; 
• ensuring that the plan is “positively prepared; justified; effective and 

consistent with national policy” and otherwise sound. 
 
The Cheltenham Plan – process, timetable and key consultation stages 

 
6.0 The diagram overleaf outlines the main stages the plan needs to pass 

through together with a draft timetable.   

 
 

 
 
 

Do you have any views on that?  Let us know.  Need to remember that this 
is a statutory process as discussed above, so it’s not easy to cut corners to 
save time.

Page 59



 

 12 

 
Cheltenham Plan draft timetable 2012 2013 2014 2015
Task O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J 
Agree Scope & Vision of Cheltenham 
Plan                                                                    
Consult on Scope Document                                                                   
Review of Existing Local Plan                                                                    
Evidence Base Review                                                                   
Prepare Cheltenham Plan                                                                   
Sustainability Appraisal of draft plan                                                                   
Consult on Draft Plan                                                                    
Prepare proposed submission                                                                    
Consult on proposed submission Plan                                                                    
Submission and Examination                                                                    
Adoption of Cheltenham plan                                                                    
v4. 29.05.13                                   

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 60



 

 

13

The Cheltenham Plan – Vision and Objectives  
 

7.0 The Plan needs to have a Vision and set of objectives to act as a foundation for its policies and 
proposals. At present there are two existing vision statements that will need to be taken into 
account in preparing a Vision for the Cheltenham Plan. 
 

7.1 The council shares its “corporate” vision for 2010 – 2015 with that of “Our Future, Our Choice: 
Cheltenham’s Sustainable Community Strategy”: 
We want Cheltenham to deliver a sustainable quality of life, where people, families, their 
communities and businesses thrive; and in a way which cherishes our cultural and natural 
heritage, reduces our impact on climate change and does not compromise the quality of life of 
present and future generations   
 

7.2 The JCS vision is: 
Our vision is to produce a strategy which fosters growth in the local economy and provides 
sufficient homes, including affordable homes, in sustainable locations, without increasing the risk 
of flooding, or harming high quality landscape, whilst maintaining and enhancing the separate 
vitality, identity and character of individual settlements. 
 

7.3 As a development plan affecting the town the JCS vision obviously is the most directly relevant to 
the Cheltenham Plan.  Whilst it will not be acceptable for the Cheltenham Plan to contradict the 
JCS in terms of its vision, objectives, policies or proposals, it is right that the Cheltenham Plan 
vision reflects more local planning issues and concerns.  So we need to strike a balance 
between, on one hand, conforming with the JCS Vision and, on the other, ensuring that our plan 
Vision is more than just an off-the-peg set of platitudes that could apply anywhere in the country.   

 
7.4      Some councillors from each political group represented on the council have formed a Working 

Group to guide preparation of the plan.  The Group is considering these visions and will be keen 
to hear your views on which elements, if any, we should incorporate into a vision for the 
Cheltenham Plan.   
 

7.5      We’re also beginning to think about whether a vision might be better represented by taking a 
“themed” approach rather than having an all-encompassing (and perhaps rather bland) statement 
that is perhaps overambitious in its aspirations.  If we focused on three or four key themes each 
supported by a set of delivery objectives, would that be more realistic?  For example, one theme 
might be something like “increase opportunities for local jobs by seeking to attract a broader 
range of employers into Cheltenham”.  The delivery objectives would perhaps include things like 
having an up-to-date economic strategy accompanied by an “offer” of sites tailored to delivering 
the outcomes of that strategy that could be allocated in the Cheltenham Plan.   

 
7.5 Whether it’s in the form of an all-encompassing statement or a set of interrelated themes, a 

Vision alone is not enough.  We need to “unpack” that Vision and decide what objectives we 
need to pursue so that we can move from Vision to reality. 

 

Let us know what you think about the idea of a “themed” Vision and about your Vision for the 
future of Cheltenham. 

Getting the balance right between strategic and local is quite difficult….!  How do you think we 
should approach it? 

Page 61



 

 

14

7.6 Each of the existing Visions has an accompanying set of objectives:   
 

Corporate objectives are: 
•  enhancing and protecting our environment 
•  strengthening our economy 
•  strengthening our communities 
 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/info/200009/performance_and_improvement/815/performance_ma
nagement/2  
 
“Our Future, Our Choice” objectives are: 
• Promoting community safety 
• Promoting sustainable living  
• Promoting a strong and sustainable economy  
• Building healthy communities and supporting older people 
• Building stronger communities and supporting housing choice 
• A focus on children and young people 
• Investing in environmental quality 
• Investing in travel and transport 
• Investing in arts and culture 
 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/downloads/file/3151/sustainable_community_strategy  
 
JCS objectives include: 
• Allocate strategic development in support of sustainable urban and rural communities and the 

conservation of strategic open space 
• Conserve and improve the built environment 
• Conserve and improve the natural environment 
• Foster economic growth 
• Provide for local housing need 
• Address social inequality, inclusivity and provide for healthier and safer communities 
• Improve skills and educational attainment 
• Increase access to jobs/services via sustainable transport modes 
 
http://consult.gct-jcs.org/consult.ti/JCSDPO/consultationHome  
 

7.7 Whilst it does not set out a vision, the existing Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (adopted 2006) 
contains thirty-six objectives including: 

 
• to achieve a high standard of design in new development 
• to reduce crime and the fear of crime 
• to make provision for identified development needs 
• to create more sustainable patterns of development, with priority use of previously-developed 

land 
• to meet the needs of the elderly and people with disabilities 
• to conserve and improve Cheltenham’s architectural, townscape and historical heritage 
• to conserve and improve Cheltenham’s landscape character and green environment 
• to prevent the coalescence of Cheltenham with other settlements 
• to reduce waste and energy consumption and conserve natural resources 
• to maintain and enhance the economic vitality of the borough 

Page 62



 

 

15

• to safeguard land and buildings in existing employment use, or if unoccupied, last in 
employment use 

• to meet housing requirements, including the need for affordable housing 
• to maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre as a sub-regional 

shopping centre 
• to increase the range of facilities for recreation and leisure 
• to encourage provision of a range of facilities and attractions for tourists 
• to encourage the retention and provision of a range of community facilities and services 
• to promote sustainable transport 
• to ensure infrastructure in development is provided to a satisfactory standard 
 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/downloads/file/778/cheltenham_borough_local_plan_second_revi
ew_2006  

 
 

The Cheltenham Plan – potential planning policy areas 
 

8.0 Once we have our Vision and Objectives in place, the next thing we need is a suite of policies 
and proposals that will enable us to deliver them “on the ground”.  In formulating our policies and 
proposals we need also to remember the legal context and “material planning considerations” 
outlined above.  Many policy areas are common to both the JCS and the Cheltenham Plan – 
matters such as housing and employment.  A critical issue will be to clarify precisely what 
aspects will be dealt with in the JCS and what will be picked up by the Cheltenham Plan.  Also 
important is what should not be included as it is appropriately dealt with via the National Planning 
Policy Framework 
 

8.1 We think the range of policy areas we need to cover is: 
• the overarching presumption in favour of sustainable development, as required and defined 

by the national Planning Policy Framework; 
• economy and employment – including tourism and leisure uses, non-strategic policy2 and site 

allocations;  
• retail – town, district and neighbourhood centres – designation of primary and secondary 

shopping frontages and non-strategic policy and allocations;  
• sustainable transport – local parking matters, car parks, walking, cycling; 
• communications infrastructure such as mobile phone masts and adaptability to new 

technology; 
• housing – non strategic policy and site allocations, house space standards, self-build, 

(affordable housing policy will be set out in the JCS) 
• design – design codes to ensure quality of development;  
• healthy communities – air quality, green space and community facilities; 
• climate change and flooding - including renewable energy, energy efficiency and adapting to 

climate change; 
• natural environment –  any non-strategic policy and land allocations/designations e.g local 

nature reserves;  
                                                

2 the term “non strategic” refers to matters that primarily are local in nature and not addressed by the Joint Core 
Strategy or the NPPF 

What do you think of these objectives?  In your view have we delivered on them? Is there 
anything missing?  Anything that’s wrong?  How can we make the objectives more 
“Cheltenham specific”?  If you had to prioritise just ten, which ones would you choose and 
why?  Remember too that we need to be able to show a Planning Inspector that our objectives 
are relevant, realistic and deliverable. 

Page 63



 

 

16

• historic environment – any non-strategic policy and allocations/designations 
• local Infrastructure – non-strategic provision including recreational space;  
• deliverability and implementation – viability appraisal 
• monitoring  
• adopted policies map 
 

  
The Cheltenham Plan – delivery 
 

9.0 This is arguably the most critical part of the plan.  It’s all very well having visions, objectives, 
policies and proposals but the acid test is whether they deliver on their promises.  One of the 
most important tasks for the Cheltenham Plan is therefore to be realistic about delivery.  And this 
is an issue the government via the National Planning Policy Framework and the Planning 
Inspectorate is particularly focused on.   

 
9.1 If we have doubts about the deliverability of any aspect of our plan we need to examine the 

reasons for that as soon as the issue emerges and put it right.  If we can’t – we need to rethink 
the objective or policy and be prepared to take a different tack. 
 

9.2 One of the most effective ways of understanding the deliverability of a development plan is 
through viability assessment.  We may be expecting a significant amount of high quality 
infrastructure to come forward in the plan period funded largely by developer contributions. The 
assessment needs to be undertaken when the plan proposals are beginning to emerge and will 
need to be done iteratively i.e. in stages so that any adjustments to the plan can be made and 
then re-tested.  It will tell us, for instance, whether we will be endangering the economic viability 
of a particular site or of the entire suite of plan proposals because the developers will simply not 
be able to make enough contributions while taking a reasonable profit (on the basis of accepted 
industry standards).   
 

9.3 Other methods of assessing the effectiveness and deliverability of the plan are through 
monitoring of, say, housing completions or differentials in completions and through annual 
processes such as the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA for short) and 
the Strategic Economic Land Availability Assessment (SELAA). 

 
9.4 Thinking about these land assessment processes, it is unlikely that Cheltenham will be able to 

provide enough sites to meet the “objectively assessed need” for development within the 
borough3.  For it to do so, land will need to be identified in neighbouring authority areas.  Whilst 
the JCS will rightly deal with much of this, it will be expected that as much land within the 
borough as is reasonable having regard to material planning considerations should be released 
to contribute to meeting the identified development need.  The next phase of the plan – the 
consultation draft – will put these sites forward for public consideration. But it is likely that most if 
not all of the sites have already come to the attention of the council through the SHLAA and 
SELAA processes. 

 
 

 
                                                

3 This will be set out in the JCS. 

What do you think? Have we missed anything?  Bear in mind that the JCS will deal with a 
considerable number of issues – such as major development sites. 

How do you think we can best deliver our objectives?  What do you think the issues are? 

Page 64



 

 

17

The Cheltenham Plan – so what’s next? 
 

10.0 Your comments on the proposed scope of the Cheltenham plan will be considered by officers and 
a response report will be provided on the Council’s website, at the offices and at libraries around 
the town, see below for the full list.  The response report will summarise the issues raised as part 
of the consultation and will provide the council’s response.  
 

10.1  The comments will be used to inform the preparation of the draft Cheltenham Plan, which will 
form the second stage of consultation next Spring.  This next stage will start to set out the detail 
on the policies and allocations proposed for Cheltenham and so it will be an important 
consultation to look out for - 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/info/1004/planning_policy/1034/the_cheltenham_plan   

  
10.2 The key stages for the Cheltenham plan are shown on the timetable above and summarised 

below:  
 

Consultation on Scope of Cheltenham Plan   Summer 2013  
Consult on draft Cheltenham Plan     Spring 2014  
Consult on proposed submission Plan    Winter 2014 
Submission and examination of Plan    Winter/Spring 2015 
Adoption       Summer/Autumn 2015 
 

10.2  Details of future consultation events, both for the Cheltenham Plan and the Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy will be included on the Cheltenham Borough 
and GCT JCS websites, if you would like to be notified directly of consultations, please contact 
the Planning Policy team and asked to be added to our database.  
 
How to get involved: 
 

11.0 Comments to be submitted by DATE either by post, email or via the online database.  
 

Contact the Planning policy team:  
 Email: slu@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01242 264379 
Post Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL50 9SA 
Insert weblink to inovem  

 
If you are not already registered on the database and would like to do so, please follow the link to 
Insert weblink to inovem  

 
A response form has been included for your convenience  
 
INSERT RESPONSE FORM 

Page 65



Page 66
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 1 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Cheltenham Plan – Revised Statement of Community Involvement 
Report of Leader 

 
Accountable member Councillor Jordan – Leader Cheltenham Borough Council 
Accountable officer Tracey Crews – Head of Planning 
Ward(s) affected ALL 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary The Council is legally required to prepare and adopt a Statement of 

Community Involvement (SCI), the purpose of a SCI is to set out the 
opportunities by which the public and organisations can engage with the 
planning system.  
The Council currently has a SCI which was adopted in 2006, however, as a 
result of changes to legislation it is now necessary to revise the existing SCI.  
This report introduces the revised draft SCI which is intended to form the 
basis of public consultation prior to adoption by the Council.  
Once adopted the Local Planning Authority must comply with the SCI when 
preparing new Local Plans and Supplementary Planning Documents and 
when consulting on planning applications.  

Recommendations That Cabinet has considered the updated Statement of Community 
Involvement and approve for public consultation.   
That Cabinet allows for any consequential minor amendments to the 
document to be agreed by the Head of Planning prior to submission of 
the final document to Council for adoption. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones – head of Finance,  
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Legal implications The Council is required to have a Statement of Community Involvement 
and it  is good practice to keep the statement under review to reflect 
changes in legislation etc 
Contact officer:  cheryl.lester@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 01684 272013 

Agenda Item 7
Page 67



 

   

$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 2 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications 
Contact officer:  Julie McCarthy, HR Manager (West),  
Julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26 4355 

Key risks Corporate risk CR81:  If the Council does not progress as quickly as 
possible to preparing the Cheltenham Plan, then the Borough will be 
exposed to the risk of inappropriate development. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Corporate Action ENV 6 We will commence preparation of a Cheltenham 
Plan.   

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

The Statement of Community Involvement does not have any impact on 
CBC owned property assets.  

Page 68



 

   

$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 3 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

1. Background 
1.1 The Council is legally required to prepare and adopt a Statement of Community Involvement 

(SCI) under Section 18 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (as amended). 
1.2 The purpose of an SCI is to set out the opportunities by which the public and organisations can 

engage with the planning system, including the procedures and methods the council will use to 
consult on the planning applications we receive and when we are preparing new Local Plans and 
Supplementary Planning Documents.  Cheltenham’s Local Plan will contain at least two policy 
documents: the strategic JCS and the local Cheltenham Plan, see Appendix 2 for an explanatory 
diagram.  

1.3 The Council currently has an SCI which was adopted in 2006 and was one of the first documents 
prepared by Cheltenham Borough Council under the regulations of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act (2004).  However, as a result of changes to legislation including the provisions of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), the Localism Act 2011 and the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, as well as the 
principles and requirements of National Planning Policy Framework 2012, it is now necessary to 
revise the existing SCI.  

1.4 This report introduces the revised draft SCI which is intended to form the basis of public 
consultation prior to adoption by the Council.  

1.5 Once adopted the Local Planning Authority must comply with the SCI when preparing new Local 
Plans and Supplementary Planning Documents and when consulting on planning applications.  

1.6 The principles of the adopted SCI have not been altered, and changes have primarily related to:  
• Changes in planning terminology to reflect those made at a national level; 
• Changes to the stages of plan preparation and consultation, as set out in the new regulations; 
• Removal of references to the now abolished regional and County tiers of planning, including 

the Regional Spatial Strategies and the Structure Plan; 
• Updates to the consultee contacts, as set out in the new regulations; 
• Updates to reflect changes in internal advisory groups. 
 

1.7 The Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Team has produced a 
Consultation Statement (November 2011) that sets out the approach that will be taken to public 
consultation during the production of the Joint Core Strategy, however this is not appropriate to be 
used for Cheltenham specific consultations as it relates to consultations covering the three 
districts of Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury.  

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The existing SCI is now out of date, approval of this draft for consultation will allow for an updated 

SCI to be adopted by the Council.  
2.2 In order that members of the public and organisations are able to engage with the planning 

process it is important that we know the best way to reach, and consult, with people.  Consulting 
on the revised SCI enables the public and stakeholders an opportunity to comment on how they 
wish to be involved in the future.   

 

Page 69



 

   

$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 4 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 As the SCI is a requirement under legislation, alternative options have been limited.  One 

alternative would have been to revise the SCI for approval by Council without public consultation.  
However, as the SCI is a document about how the public and organisations will be involved in the 
planning process it seemed more appropriate to provide an opportunity for their comments to be 
fed into the review to ensure that the SCI is as effective as possible. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The original SCI was consulted on prior to its adoption in 2006.  The adopted SCI has formed the 

basis of this revised SCI, updated to take account of changes to regulations.  Internal consultation 
with planning officers has taken place.   

4.2 Following approval by Cabinet and Council (24th June 2013) it is intended that the SCI will be 
available for comment for an 8 week period, alongside the Cheltenham Plan Scope Document 
(also for consideration at Cabinet on 18th June and Council on 24th June).  

4.3 As part of the consultation process, members of the public and organisations will have the 
opportunity to be added to the Council’s planning consultation database in order to be involved in 
any future consultation events.  

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 The Council will regularly monitor the effectiveness of community involvement in the planning 

process and use the results to review policies and practices.  If necessary, the Council will review 
the SCI, including any minor amendments to meet regulatory or statutory changes over time. 

Report author Contact officer Claire Cullen-Jones/David Halkyard – Senior Planning 
Officers 
claire.cullen-jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 
David.halkyard@cheltenham.gov.uk  
01242 264235/01242 774988 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment  
2. Diagram showing Cheltenham’s Local Plan structure and supporting 

documents 
3. Draft Cheltenham Statement of Community Involvement, 2013  

Background information 1. Adopted Statement of Community Involvement, 2006 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/downloads/file/3250/statement_of_com
munity_involvement_2006 

2. GCT JCS Consultation Statement (November 2011) 
http://www.gct-
jcs.org/Documents/PublicConsultation/ConsultationStatement141111d
oc.pdf 

 

Page 70



 

   
$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 5 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the Council does not 
progress as quickly as 
possible to preparing the 
Cheltenham Plan, then the 
Borough will be exposed to 
the risk of inappropriate 
development. 
 

Mike 
Redman  

21.3.13 3 4 12 Reduce Set up Scrutiny Task 
Group to advise and 
challenge on the 
development of a 
Cheltenham Plan  

 Tracey 
Crews 

Corporate 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 71



 

   
$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 6 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Diagram showing Cheltenham’s Local Plan structure and supporting documents 
 

Local 
Development 
Scheme 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement

Authorities 
Reports

Supplementary 
Planning 
documents 

Cheltenham’s Local Plan and supporting 
documents

Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint 
Core Strategy

Cheltenham 
Plan

Adopted 
Policies Map

Any other Plans 
which may be 
prepared

 

P
age 72



 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Local Development 
Framework 

 
Statement of Community Involvement  

 
Adopted 2006 

        Revised May 2013 
v9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
P. O. Box 12 

Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 

Gloucestershire 
GL50 1PP 

 
telephone: 01242 264379    facsimile: 01242 264140    DX: 7406 

Cheltenham 1 
web site: www.cheltenham.gov.uk      email: slu@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 74



 

  
$zj2fgwb2.doc Page 2 of 35 Last updated 06 June 2013
 

CONTENTS 
 

 
 

Section 1 
 
Section 2 
 
Section 3 
 
Section 4 
 
Section 5 
 
Section 6 
 
Section 7 
 
Section 8 
 
Section 9 
 
Section 10 
 
 
Section 11 
 
Section 12 
 

 

 
 
Introduction 
 
Who could we consult? 
 
Duty to Cooperate 
 
Local Plans 
 
Older Plans 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
General Overview of Consultation Arrangements 
 
Minimum Standards for Consultation 
 
Interpreting the Regulations: Local Plans 
 
Interpreting the Regulations: Supplementary Planning 
Documents 
 
Development Control: Planning Applications 
 
Resourcing and Reviewing the Statement of Community 
Involvement 
 
 

 

Page 
 
3 
 
4 
 
4 
 
4 
 
5 
 
6 
 
6 
 
8 
 
9 
 
11 
 
 
12 
 
18 

 
 
Appendix 1 
 
Diagram 1 
 
Appendix 2 

 
Appendix 3 

 
 
Summary of key terms 
 
The Local Plan and Supporting Documents 
 
Consultees 
 
Where can the Statement of Community Involvement be 
viewed? 
 
 
 

 
 
19 
 
21 
 
22 
 
26 
 
 

 
 

Terms printed in GREY are defined in the summary of terms.  

Page 75



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

3 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This document sets out the opportunities by which the public and 
organisations can engage with the planning system, including the procedures 
and methods we will use to consult on planning applications we receive and 
when we are preparing new Local plans (LP) and Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs). 

 
1.2 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was one of the first 

documents prepared by Cheltenham Borough Council under the regulations 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). The first Cheltenham 
SCI was adopted in 2006. 

 
1.3 We have revised the text of our SCI to reflect current legislation including the 

provisions of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended), the Localism Act 2011, 
the Town and Country Planning Local Planning Regulations 2012 as well as 
the principles and requirements of National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) 2012. 

 
1.4 This document explains: 

 
� how the planning system operates and how we will manage the 

planning process (see sections 7, 9 and 10); 
� how we will consult people regarding the production of  

Local development documents and Supplementary Planning 
Documents (see sections 9 and 10); and 

� how we will consult people regarding planning applications (see  
section 11). 

 
1.5 The Council would like to hear the views of all the community within 

Cheltenham and also those outside Cheltenham Borough who are affected 
by the policies and proposals of the Local Plan and planning applications for 
development within the borough. This SCI sets out the way in which we aim 
to achieve this.  

 
Neighbourhood Plans 
 

1.6 The Localism Act 2011 introduced the ability for communities who meet the 
basic criteria defined in the act to draw up their own neighbourhood plans 
which can add detail and local objectives to the strategic elements of local 
development documents where resources allow. Cheltenham Borough 
Council will support neighbourhoods in the preparation of their plans where 
this is appropriate, and under these circumstances will set out procedures 
and guidance for this support as the need arises. However, procedures on 
this work are outside the scope of the SCI and will be dealt with on a case by 
case basis.    

 
Monitoring  
 

1.7 The council will regularly monitor the effectiveness of community involvement 
in the planning process and use the results to review policies and practices. 
If necessary, the Council will review the Statement of Community 
Involvement, including any minor amendments to meet regulatory or 

Page 76



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

4 

statutory changes over time. 
 
 

2. WHO COULD WE CONSULT?  
 

2.1 Depending on the type of plan or application being considered there are a 
number of bodies and groups in the community that we can consult and 
invite to participate in the preparation of local development documents or to 
comment on relevant planning applications. 

 
2.2 These include ‘specific’ and ‘general’ consultation bodies, as listed at 

Appendix 2, as well as members of the public and groups representing those 
‘hard to reach’ who traditionally do not engage with the planning process who 
are contained on our planning database. 

 
3. DUTY TO COOPERATE 

 
3.1 Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out a new ‘duty to co-operate’. It is 

a requirement that local planning authorities engage with one another and 
other statutory bodies to consider joint approaches to plan-making. 
Cheltenham Borough Council is committed to meeting this duty to ensure 
that planning delivers the best outcomes for our area by working closely with 
partner organisations and stakeholders.  See Appendix 2 for a list of 
consultation bodies. 
 

4. LOCAL PLANS AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Local plans  
 

4.1 Local planning authorities must prepare a local plan which sets the planning 
policies for a local authority area. Local Plans are important tools for deciding 
planning applications. Independent planning inspectors must examine in 
detail all local development documents prepared by local authorities in 
England to ensure that they are sound. This examination is the last stage of 
the process for producing a local plan. By the time a plan reaches 
examination, the process should have fully involved everyone who has an 
interest in the document and they should have had the chance to comment 

 
4.2 Local plans must be positively prepared, justified, effective and consistent 

with national policy in accordance with section 20 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
4.3 The council is currently producing the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS), which will form the strategic vision, 
objectives and polices for the wider area.  The JCS forms part of the Local 
Plan for Cheltenham, see Diagram 1. 

 
4.4 The council is also working on the Cheltenham Plan, which will deal with 

planning issues specific to the Borough and contain more detailed policy and 
guidance for the local area.  

 

Page 77



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

5 

4.5 All Local Plans also require a Sustainability Appraisal, which is produced in 
tandem with the Local Plan to assess its environmental and social impact. 
These appraisals are usually consulted on and examined at the same time 
as Local Plans. 

 
4.6 In addition to Local Plans, other supporting documents (which are given less 

importance in planning terms) are listed below: 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) 

 
4.7 These are locally produced documents which provide additional information 

relating to a specific policy or proposal within a Local plan or the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Local Development Scheme (LDS) 

 
4.8 This is a three year work programme which illustrates which local plans (and 

sometimes other related documents) will be produced and a timetable for 
their production. 

 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
 

4.9 This sets out how the Council will engage and involve the community at 
every stage in the production of the Plan making process. 

 
Authorities Monitoring Report (AMR) 
 

4.10 This monitors the success of planning policies and demonstrates how the 
council is performing in terms of the Local Development Scheme. From 2012 
onwards it will contain a statement regarding the progress on Cheltenham’s 
duty to co-operate with other authorities and prescribed bodies.  

 
5. OLDER PLANS 

 
5.1 The Cheltenham Borough Local Plan Second Review was adopted in July 

2006 and covers a plan period to mid-2011. It deals with development, 
helping to conserve the special environment of Cheltenham and identifying 
land which will be needed for future development. The policies set out in the 
plan influence decisions on planning applications and support the council's 
proposals for managing traffic in the town. 

 
5.2 Under the provisions of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, the 

policies within this plan are saved until they are replaced by subsequent 
Local Plan Documents.  

 
5.3 The Draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (RSS) and the 

Gloucestershire Structure Plan Second Review have now been revoked 
and are no longer relevant.   

 
6. NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

6.1 The government published the National Planning Policy Framework on the 
27 March 2012. This framework is a key part of the government's reform of 

Page 78



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

6 

the planning system and replaces all previous planning policy statements 
(PPS), with the exception of PPS 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste 
Management, until it is replaced at a later date.  

 
6.2   As a local planning authority, we have to take the National Planning Policy 

Framework into account in the preparation of local and neighbourhood plans, 
and it is a material consideration in planning decisions. 

 
6.3 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the implementation 

strategy for dealing with existing and emerging plans and in decision taking 
on planning applications (Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework). As Cheltenham Borough’s Adopted Local plan was adopted in 
accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, due weight can 
be given to policies depending on how consistent they are with the 
framework. As such, in considering planning proposals the existing Local 
Plan must be considered in the context of the framework, ignoring all 
references to planning policy statements (PPS), until the policies within the 
plan are replaced by the Joint Core Strategy, the Cheltenham Plan or any 
subsequent local plan.  

 
7. GENERAL OVERVIEW OF CONSULTATION ARRANGEMENTS   
 

7.1 The preparation of a plan will involve evidence gathering and an initial stage 
of consultation on the proposed scope of the plan, that is, asking people 
what the plan ought to contain.  

 
7.2 At an early stage, the Council will explore the most appropriate methods of 

consulting hard to reach groups and attempt to engage these groups in the 
early stages of the process. This work will involve an internal audit of existing 
relationships with external bodies and an assessment of the types of 
consultation which have proven most successful.  

 
7.3 Specific and General consultees, as listed in Appendix 3, and members of 

the public registered on our database will be consulted on all the various 
Local plans and Supplementary Planning Documents produced as indicated 
in Tables 1 and 2. 

 
7.4 It is recognised that some groups may wish only to be involved in the early 

stages of the decision making process but participation from all groups will 
be encouraged at every stage.  

 
7.5 The Council will prepare local plans which seek to reflect comments received 

during work with groups, organisations and individuals during the plan 
preparation stage. These documents will be subject to further public 
consultation as set out in the regulations. Where required by relevant 
legislation, documents will be accompanied by a Sustainability 
Appraisal/Strategic Environmental Assessment. All new local plans and 
SPDs will be accompanied by a Statement of Compliance to demonstrate 
how the Council has complied with this SCI. 

 
7.6 Each period of consultation will last a minimum of 4 weeks for an SPD or 6 

weeks for a Local Plan and will be advertised on the Council’s website 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk.  Where appropriate, notices will be placed in the 

Page 79



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

7 

local press.  Links to the consultation document(s) will be made available on 
the Council’s website. Any notices and advertisements will clearly identify the 
dates by which representations must be submitted to the Borough Council. 
Specific and General Consultees and other relevant groups and individuals 
on our updated consultation database will be contacted at the beginning of 
the statutory consultation period to let them know that the consultation is 
taking place. 

 
7.7 Paper copies of the documents will be available at each of the libraries within 

Cheltenham, at the Municipal Offices and at other locations within the 
Borough, known as Deposit Locations (see appendix 4). There may be a 
charge to purchase some documents to reflect printing costs. Electronic 
copies will be made available via the council’s website. 

 
7.8 The Council will hold public exhibitions where appropriate at accessible 

locations within the Borough, such as supermarkets and municipal buildings 
and at other locations which attract large numbers of community members. 
We will seek to make local plan documents as accessible as possible to 
people with reading or writing difficulties or who are visually impaired. Some 
translation of local plans or SPD’s into other languages may be possible, 
subject to reasonable cost limits.   

 
7.9 Comments and representations may be received via a form provided on the 

Council’s website, by fax, e-mail, by post or simply handed in to the reception 
at the Municipal Offices during opening hours. Representations received will 
be made available to view on the Council’s website. 

 
7.10 Views expressed at consultation events will be recorded and fed into the plan 

preparation. These views will be documented and made available in 
summary form on the website and at all deposit locations. All formal 
representations (those to documents on deposit) received will be considered 
and responded to through a response report, this will be available on the 
website and at all deposit locations. 

 
7.11 Views and objections will be taken into account wherever possible in the 

preparation of local plans. Representations will need to be valid and 
appropriate to be considered by emerging policies and proposals.  

 
7.12 The response report will be prepared by officers supported by any relevant 

Project Management Boards/Working groups and input from councillors and 
stakeholders where appropriate. The response report will provide a 
summary of the issues raised and the council’s response. There will not be 
an individual response to each comment.   

 
 

Online Database 
 
7.13 There is an online database where groups and individuals can register their 

interest in being notified of consultations and also respond online. 
Response reports will be available on the website and at all deposit 
locations. Where respondents have responded via the online system they 
will be notified of their unique respondent number which will enable them to 

Page 80



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

8 

navigate through to their individual representation(s).  To register go to 
INSERT WEBLINK. 

 
 

8. MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CONSULTATION 
 

8.1 Cheltenham Borough Council will ensure that minimum standards for 
community involvement as set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 are met in the production of Local 
Plans or other planning documents. A summary of these requirements are 
set out below. 
 
Gloucestershire Compact Agreement  

 
8.2 Cheltenham Borough Council has signed up to the Gloucestershire 

Compact, the Compact is an agreement between some of the County's 
public agencies and the Voluntary and Community Sector to support and 
improve partnership working between sectors and is underpinned by six 
Codes of Practice which contain specific undertakings for the public sector 
and the voluntary and community sector, as well as a series of joint 
undertakings, to improve partnership working.  The agreement seeks to 
achieve a 12 – week consultation period, where possible.  This agreement 
will be considered when setting consultation periods for local development 
documents.  

 
 

Page 81



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community Consultation  
9 

 
9.0 INTERPRETING THE REGULATIONS: Who the council will involve and how they will involve them in the production of Local 

development documents (LDDs).  
 
Please note that this table contains an overview of consultation methods available for each stage of Local Plan preparation. Not all methods 
will be used in each case, but those most suitable and appropriate given the scale and nature of the consultation will be employed.  
 
9.1 Table 1 
 

P
age 82



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community Consultation  
10 

Stage  Preparation  Who How 

Preparation 
of a local 
plan  
(Regulation 
18) 

Evidence gathering  
Notify and consult on Scope 
of the plan  

• Specific and general Consultees, 
• Those registered on the Council’s 

database  
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations, or other persons 
carrying out business in the area 
that the Council consider 
appropriate.  

Letter, email, internet, forums 
or community networks, 
internal and joint working 
teams, press releases, 
deposit locations. 

Publication 
of a local 
plan  
(Regulations 
19 and 20)  

Consult on proposed 
submission document 

• Specific and general Consultees, 
• Those registered on the Council’s 

database  
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations, or other persons 
carrying out business in the area 
that the, Council consider 
appropriate. 

Letter, email, internet, press 
releases, touring exhibitions, 
questionnaires, forums or 
community networks or 
events, Planning for Real 
exercises, internal and joint 
working teams, deposit 
locations 

Submission 
of 
documents 
and 
information 
to the 
Secretary of 
State 
(Regulation 
22) 

Submission of Local Plan and 
all associated documents in 
accordance with Regulation 
22.  

• Specific and general Consultees 
• Those registered on the Council’s 

database  
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations, or other persons 
carrying out business in the area 
that the Council consider 
appropriate. 

• Those who have responded 
previously/asked to be notified of 
submission 

Letter, email, internet, deposit 
locations 

Independent 
examination 
(Regulation 
24) 

Independent examination of 
plan by an appointed 
Inspector 

• All those who made representations Letter, email, internet, press 
releases, deposit locations. 

Adoption  
(Regulation 
26) 

Adoption of the plan by the 
Local Planning Authority  

• All those involved in the process Letter, email, internet,  press 
releases, deposit locations. 
 

Monitoring  • Specific consultees 
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations, or other persons 
carrying out business in the area 
that the Council consider 
appropriate. 

 

Letter, email, internet, internal 
and joint working teams. 

P
age 83



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community Consultation  
11 

 
 

9.2 Wherever sustainability appraisal work is undertaken by the Council at the various stages, it will be included as part of the material 
that is subject to community involvement.  For further details on the stages see 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 84



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community Consultation  
12 

 
10.0 INTERPRETING THE REGULATIONS: Who the council will involve and how we will involve them in the production of 

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs).  
 
Please note that this table contains an overview of consultation methods available for each stage of the Local Plan preparation process. Not 
all methods will be used in each case, but those most suitable and appropriate given the scale and nature of the consultation will be 
employed.  
10.1 Table 2 
 
Stage Preparation  Who How  

Preparation 
stage 

Evidence gathering 
Preparing draft SPD  

• Any relevant consultees, residents 
wishing to make representations or 
other persons carrying out business in 
the area that the Council consider 
appropriate. 

Letter, email, Internet, 
meetings 
 

Public 
participation 
stage 
(Regulation 
12) 

Consult on draft SPD  • Specific and general Consultees 
• Those registered on the Council’s 

database  
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations or other persons 
carrying out business in the area that 
the Council consider appropriate  

Letter, email, internet, press 
releases, touring exhibitions, 
questionnaires, forums or 
community networks or 
events, Planning for Real 
exercises, Internal and joint 
working teams, deposit 
locations 

Adoption 
(Regulation 
14) 

Adoption of the plan by the Local 
Planning Authority 

• All those involved in the process Letter, email, internet, press 
releases, deposit locations 
 

Monitoring  • Specific consultees 
• Any other residents wishing to make 

representations or other persons 
carrying out business in the area that 
the Council consider appropriate. 

 

Letter, email, internet, 
internal and joint working 
teams.  
  

P
age 85



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

13 

 
11   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL: Dealing with planning applications 

 
11.1 The Council is aware of the importance of consultation with the community 

and of the need to allow the widest possible dissemination of information 
about planning proposals. The Council is required to consult various 
organisations and bodies and is advised to consult others depending on the 
type of application as set out in the The Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 for more 
information see http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2184/made 

 
Methods of consultation 

 
11.2 Neighbour notification by letter: the principal method.  Neighbours 

bordering the site and across the road are targeted as a minimum, with 
more extensive consultation as appropriate to each case.  Comments are 
required to be made within 21 days.  The letter includes brief information 
about the proposal and gives guidance on the process for comment, 
including a list of considerations that are material to the planning process. 
The Council will take account of all the representations received to a 
planning application and assess the proposal in light of the comments 
received and other material considerations. 

 
11.3 Parish Councils: each Parish Council receives a copy of every application 

within or affecting its area.  There is a statutory 14 day period for comment 
but decisions are not made before the 21 days allowed for neighbour 
comment. Cheltenham Borough Council will draw up a local agreement with 
Parish Councils to move away from the 14 day period of consultation to 21 
days to bring it in to line with other consultees. 

 
11.4 Site Notices: these are a formal requirement for applications within 

conservation areas, major applications and listed building applications.  
They are also used to supplement letters. They are a highly visible 
indication of a planning proposal. Site notices are not used for all 
applications. The statutory requirements call for all applications to be 
consulted upon through the use of neighbour notification or a site notice. It 
is considered that neighbour notification is more useful as it directly consults 
those who are likely to be most affected by a planning proposal. 

 
11.5 Newspaper advertisements: these are a statutory requirement for 

applications in conservation areas, major applications and listed building 
applications.  Cost restricts the use of advertisements to the statutory 
requirement.  The Gloucestershire Echo is supplied with a list of all 
applications and publishes details, although this is dependent on editorial 
considerations. 

 
11.6 Weekly list: this details every application received in the preceding week 

and specifies whether a decision is expected to be made by Planning 
Committee or delegated to planning officers. The weekly list is emailed to 
Councillors, Parish Councils and any other addresses on request.  It is also 
posted on the Council’s web site, which provides a facility for anyone to 
generate their own weekly list using parameters such as outline 
applications, a specific agent, or a defined road. 

Page 86



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

14 

 
11.7 Residents’ Associations: arrangements are made with individual groups 

for applications to be sent as and when submitted in their area of interest. 
 

Availability of application documents 
 

11.8 Applications are available for inspection throughout office hours at the built 
environment reception desk in the Council offices on the Promenade. 
Copies of documents can be made for a small charge. A Customer Liaison 
Officer is available to help interpret applications.  

 
11.9 Libraries 

 The Cheltenham Central Library receives a copy of all planning applications 
and relevant outlying libraries receive copies of applications. 

 
11.10 Website 

Software on the Council’s website allows anyone with access to the 
internet at home or through local libraries to search planning application 
records. The Council is working towards 100% availability of documents 
via the website. 

 
Planning Applications 

 
11.11 Planning applications are either determined at planning committee by 

Council Members who sit on the committee or they are delegated to case 
officers and are determined without the need to be reported at planning 
committee. All planning applications are available for delegation. Triggers 
for a committee decision include: 

 
� Applications submitted by Council Members,  
� Applications submitted by Gloucestershire County Council, 
� Applications submitted by Council staff working in the Built 

Environment Directorate, 
� Requests from Members within 21 days of the consultation 

start date,  
� Conflict with parish council opinion, 
� Officer request to seek committee decision. 

 
Types of application 
 
Significant applications 

11.12 These are defined as: 
 
� Applications for 50 or more dwellings; 
� Applications which are a departure from the Local Plan; 
� Applications which propose more than 1,000 square metres of 

floor space; 
� Buildings or structures which exceed 15m in height; 
� Applications which are accompanied by an Environmental 

Statement; 
� Other applications which the Council considers would have a 

significant impact on the environment or a residential area. 
 

Page 87



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

15 

An Environmental Statement describes the likely significant effects of the 
development on the environment and proposed mitigation measures.  In 
Cheltenham they are required for all projects likely to give rise to 
significant environmental effects.  
Not all significant applications are determined by committee. 

 
Prior Approval Applications 

11.13 These proposals include some types of telecommunications mast and 
agricultural buildings. Prior approval means that the proposal is in 
principal permitted development. The Council can consider only the siting 
and design of the structure. There is a fixed 28 day timescale for 
agricultural buildings and a 56 day timescale for telecommunications 
masts. If no decision is made within this period, the application is 
approved. 

 
Prior approval applications for telecommunication masts include all 
ground based masts that do not exceed 15m in height and which are 
outside the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Conservation Areas. 
The Mobile Operators’ Association has independently published its 10 
Commitments, which include policy on consultation with local 
communities: www.mobilemastinfo.com/index.html 

 
 

Tree Applications and Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) 
11.14 Some trees are afforded special protection by Tree Preservation Orders 

because of the contribution they make to public amenity. Where trees are 
covered by TPOs, any works to them require statutory notification. When 
a tree preservation order is made, there is a statutory requirement to 
inform all land owners and interested parties and send them a copy of the 
order.  All directly adjoining neighbours also receive a copy of the order.  
Nearby neighbours, relevant consultee groups and ward councillors 
receive a copy of the schedule and plan. There is a statutory 28 day 
consultation from the date of the service of the notice. All representations 
are considered by the members of the planning committee who make the 
decision as to whether or not the order is confirmed. 

 
11.15 Tree applications are those which relate to works for the management 

and/or removal of trees for those trees which are protected by Tree 
preservation orders (TPOs). There is a distinction between conservation 
area notifications and tree preservation order applications. With all 
applications/notifications, the consultation period is 21 days and officers 
have delegated authority to determine all applications with the exception 
of: 
� applications on Council owned land, 
� notifications or applications from council employees, 
� when a member specifically asks for an item to be referred to 

the Planning Committee within the consultation period.  
 
The Council will consult the Cheltenham Tree Group and the Cheltenham 
Civic Society on any planning application which the Council’s Senior Tree 
Officer is consulted on. This will include planning applications where it is 
identified that a TPO is present and any application where it is declared 
that trees are to be removed. 

Page 88



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

16 

 
11.16 Whilst there is no statutory requirement to consult the wider community in 

respect of work to trees, the Council has adopted a policy to consult as 
widely as possible. The procedure closely follows that for planning 
applications and is often a mixture of neighbour/local interest group letters 
and site notices. Works to trees are not published in the local press. A 
weekly list is published and sent to the ward councillors, parish councils 
and local interest groups on request. In particular, at their request, 
Cheltenham Tree Group and Cheltenham Civic Society receive a copy of 
the weekly list. All recipients of the list are given 21 days to comment. 

 
11.17 As with planning applications, both objectors and supporters can address 

the members of the Planning Committee. Following a decision (which may 
be delegated) letters will be sent to all neighbours/parish councils who 
made representations on the application/notification informing them of the 
outcome. A copy of the decision notice (in the case of a TPO application) 
or a letter informing of the outcome of a conservation area notification is 
sent to the applicant. 

 
11.18 Notifications/applications for amendments to works to trees are very rarely 

received.  No further consultations are carried out unless the amendment 
is for more drastic work, e.g. from an original scheme to prune a tree; to 
felling it. The tight time limit for conservation notifications does not allow 
for further consultation to take place. 

 
11.19 An appeal can only be lodged against a refusal of consent for, or 

conditions attached to, works to trees covered by a tree preservation 
order (TPO).  All previous consultees are informed. TPO appeals are dealt 
with in a similar fashion to a planning appeal. There is no right of appeal in 
respect of conservation area notifications. The appeals procedure is 
explained at paragraph 4.29. 

 
Hedgerow Removal Applications 

11.20 As Cheltenham is an urban authority, Hedgerow Removal Applications 
notifications are rare. Applications under the Hedgerow Regulations 1997 
will be determined within 6 weeks of receipt of a removal notice. 
Consultation letters will be sent out to all relevant statutory bodies in 
addition to the local ward members and Parish Council. All comments 
received will be taken into account in making a decision as to whether or 
not the removal should be granted. 

 
Consultations 
 

11.21 Applicants are encouraged to carry out their own consultation with the 
community, which might include public meetings, newsletters, 
questionnaires and exhibitions, before the application is submitted.  This 
allows amendments to be incorporated into the final submission.  
Applicants should consider the benefits of wide consultation on schemes 
likely to impact on residents or the environment, regardless of whether the 
proposal falls below the thresholds listed above. 

 
11.22 Public meetings: if a meeting is held, officers will attend as observers 

and to provide information when requested. 

Page 89



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

17 

 
11.23 Design advice: the Civic Society and the Panel of Architects of 

Gloucestershire Architectural Association meet regularly to provide 
comment on a range of applications. 

 
11.24 Consultation on amendments: at the discretion of the officers, 

amendments may be publicised, usually by letter or a site notice. It is 
customary to allow 14 days for comments although this period may be 
reduced, according to the application timetable. The Council is drawing up 
an amended plans procedure which will set out a standard approach in 
this matter. 

 
11.25 Internal consultation: advice and comments may be sought from Parks 

and Landscape, Conservation, Car parks, Community Safety, 
Environmental Health, Housing, Property, Strategic Land Use, Tourism, 
Economic Development, Urban Regeneration, Urban Design, Trees, and 
from the Building Control Division.  

 
Public speaking at Planning Committee 
 

11.26 Planning Committee papers are available five working days before 
planning committee at the Council offices and on the internet. Objectors 
and supporters may address the Planning Committee for a period of up to 
3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to speak, arrangements are 
made to consolidate the comments so that there is a maximum of two 
speakers, one for the proposal and one against. Council Members and 
Parish Councillors have a right to speak at Committee. 

 
Determining planning applications 
 

11.27 The following text sets out the procedures adhered to following the 
decision made on any type of planning application. All responses received 
to a planning application are assessed as material considerations in the 
determination of the application. A summary of the comments received 
are included within the officer report for each planning application and 
when an application is determined by Planning Committee a copy of the 
letter is circulated to Members with the committee papers. Those people 
who have written comments on applications receive a letter after the 
committee meeting informing them of the decision and explaining how to 
see more details. Results are published in the Committee minutes and 
made available on the Council’s website. 

 
Enforcement 

 
11.28 Most enforcement cases arise following a referral from a member of the 

public. All referrals are treated confidentially. There is no consultation with 
the public on enforcement cases. Cases are often sensitive so the 
anonymity of the complainant is essential. Cases are often resolved by 
the submission of a planning application which is then publicised in the 
normal way.  

 
 
 

Page 90



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

18 

Appeals 
 

11.29 Anyone who has submitted a planning application has a right of appeal 
against the decision to refuse an application, a condition attached to a 
permission of the non determination of a planning application. There is no 
third party right of appeal. The case is examined by an independent 
planning inspector from the Planning Inspectorate. When an appeal is 
received the Council notifies all who wrote about the original application, 
with information about how to make their views known to the Inspector. 
Previous correspondence is forwarded to the Inspectorate and Ward 
Members are notified. When an appeal proceeds by way of a hearing or 
inquiry, the date and venue are publicised by site notice and newspaper 
advert. 

Page 91



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                                 Statement of Community 
Consultation  

19 

12 RESOURCING AND REVIEWING THE STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT 

 
Resource implications 
 

12.1 The majority of the work for Local Plan preparation will be undertaken by 
the Council’s Planning Policy team, supported by other relevant divisions of 
the Council and key stakeholders. Consultation associated with major 
planning applications will be undertaken by the Built Environment Division 
of Cheltenham Borough Council.  

 
12.2 Some pre application consultation may be undertaken by developers for 

larger applications before planning applications are submitted. This 
consultation is not within the Council’s control and representations on these 
consultations should be sent to the relevant party, not the council, in the first 
instance.  

 
12.3 A positive relationship with stakeholders and the community will help to 

overcome any implications derived from these limitations, and the Council is 
committed to maximising those resources available to it. Consultation 
opportunities will be maximised through the use of the Council’s established 
relationships with Cheltenham Partnership, business, health and education 
sector networks. 

 
Reviewing the SCI 
 

12.4 The Council will monitor the effectiveness of the consultation undertaken on 
Local Plans and Supplementary Planning documents to assess whether a 
balanced representation of the community has been involved in the 
process. The SCI will be reviewed if it considered that the consultation 
methods are insufficient or new practices are implemented. The 
effectiveness of the SCI will be assessed through the work of the Annual 
Monitoring Report. The SCI itself will be reviewed as appropriate, and 
updated as and when required, for example to reflect any new legislation.  

 
12.5 The Council will consider any representations made to this document and 

make any necessary amendments.  
 

 

Page 92



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                              Statement of Community Consultation 
Submission Version 

20 

Appendix 1 Summary of terms 
 
A guide to the terminology used in this document 
 
Adopted Policies Map A map of the Local Planning Authority area 

which illustrates on an Ordnance Survey 
base map all the policies and proposals 
contained in the relevant ocal development 
document.   
 

Authorities  Monitoring 
Report (AMR) 

A report on how the Council is performing in 
terms of the local plans for supplementary 
planning documents as specified in the 
Local Development Scheme.  It includes a 
review of the Local Development Scheme’s 
timetable and monitors the success, or 
otherwise of the local development 
document policies. 
 

Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Sets out the long term vision for the district 
and provides the strategic policies and 
proposals to deliver that vision. 
 

Local Development 
Document (LDD) 

Any document prepared by a local planning 
authority, which deals with one or more of:  

• the development and use of land  
• the allocation of sites for a particular type of 

development or use;  
• any environmental, social, design and 

economic objectives which are relevant to 
the attainment of the development and use 
of land  

• development management and site 
allocation policies, which are intended to 
guide the determination of applications for 
planning permission; 
 

Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) 

A three year plan which shows the local 
development documents to be produced and 
the timetable for their production. 
 

Local Plan  Any document which can be considered as 
a Local Development Document (above) 
 

Cheltenham Partnership 
(formerly the Local 
Strategic Partnership, 
LSP) 

The Cheltenham Partnership is a non-
statutory, non-executive organisation which 
operates at a level enabling strategic 
decisions to be taken and is close enough to 
individual neighbourhoods to allow actions 
to be determined at community level.  
 

Page 93



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                              Statement of Community Consultation 
Submission Version 

21 

Material considerations Material considerations are factors which 
are important to the decision taking process. 
Legally, section 54A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 sets out that the 
local planning authority must determine 
planning applications in accordance with the 
local plan unless other material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Material 
considerations include issues such as the 
siting of buildings, mass and design, 
availability of infrastructure and traffic 
considerations and other relevant 
documents.  
  

Planning Inspectorate 
(PINS) 
 

The government agency responsible for 
scheduling independent examinations.  The 
planning inspectors who sit on independent 
examinations are employed by PINs. 
 

Soundness Test To be sound a local development document 
should be:  

• positively prepared 
• justified  
• effective  
• consistent with national policy 

 
Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) 

A document which sets out how the Council 
will consult and involve the public at every 
stage in the production of the local 
development documents.  It also applies to 
major development control applications.   
 

Statement of Compliance This will set out in detail exactly how the 
authority has met its community involvement 
requirements for any particular local plan as 
set out in the Statement of Community 
Involvement. 
 

Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) 

An appraisal of the impacts of policies and 
proposals on economic, social and 
environmental issues, required by European 
legislation.   
 

Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) 

Provides additional advice and information 
relating to a specific policy or proposal in a 
local development document.   
 

Page 94



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                              Statement of Community Consultation 
Submission Version 

22 

Sustainability Appraisal 
(SA) 

These are required under national legislation 
for emerging policy and include 
consideration of social & economic impacts 
as well as impacts on the environment.  This 
incorporates Strategic Environmental 
Assessments into the definition. 
 

Page 95



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
23 

Diagram 1: Showing Cheltenham’s Local Plan and supporting documents  

Local 
Development 
Scheme 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement

Authorities 
Reports

Supplementary 
Planning 
documents 

Cheltenham’s Local Plan and supporting 
documents

Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint 
Core Strategy

Cheltenham 
Plan

Adopted 
Policies Map

Any other Plans 
which may be 
prepared

  

P
age 96



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
24 

Appendix 2 Consultees 
 
The following contains a list of consultees as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 and shows Cheltenham specific groups as currently held 
on our database.  This list focuses on relevant consultees to Cheltenham and community and 
local-based groups and organisations but should not be considered as exhaustive. The list will be 
subject to revision as and when it is necessary to keep it up to date and relevant. The Planning 
Policy team within the Council maintain a database of contact details for all other interested 
individuals and organisations who will be consulted where relevant.   
  
Contact the Planning Policy team if you would like to be added or removed from the database. 
 
Specific consultation bodies (where relevant to Cheltenham Borough): 

• the Environment Agency 
• the Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (known as English Heritage) 
• Natural England 
• Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (company number 2904587) 
• the Highways Agency,  
• a relevant authority any part of whose area is in or adjoins the local planning authority’s area,  
• any person—  

o to whom the electronic communications code applies by virtue of a direction given under 
section 106(3)(a) of the Communications Act 2003, and  

o who owns or controls electronic communications apparatus situated in any part of the 
local planning authority’s area,  

• if it exercises functions in any part of the local planning authority’s area—  
o a Primary Care Trust established under section 18 of the National Health Service Act 

2006(9) or continued in existence by virtue of that section;  
o a person to whom a licence has been granted under section 6(1)(b) or (c) of the Electricity 

Act 1989 
o a person to whom a licence has been granted under section 7(2) of the Gas Act 1986 
o a sewerage undertaker 
o a water undertaker 

• The Homes and Communities Agency 
 
For Cheltenham Borough this includes the following: 
 
� Badgeworth Parish Council 
� Bishops Cleeve Parish Council 
� Boddington Parish Council 
� British Telecommunications Plc 
� Charlton Kings Parish Council 
� Coberley Parish Council 
� Commission for Rural Communities 
� Cotswold District Council 
� Dowdeswell Parish Council 
� Relevant Electricity and Gas Companies 
� The Environment Agency 
� Forest of Dean District Council 
� Gloucestershire County Council 
� Herefordshire Council 
� Highways Agency 
� Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (English Heritage) 
� Leckhampton with Warden Hill Parish Council 
� Monmouthshire County Council 
� Natural England 
� NHS South West 
� Oxfordshire County Council 
� Prestbury Parish Council 

Page 97



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
25 

� Severn Trent Water  
� Sevenhampton Parish Council 
� Shurdington Parish Council 
� Southam Parish Council 
� South Gloucestershire Council 
� Staverton Parish Council 
� Stoke Orchard Parish Council 
� Strategic Rail Authority 
� Stroud District Council 
� Swindon Borough Council 
� Swindon Village Parish Council 
� Relevant Telecommunications Companies 
� Tewkesbury Borough Council 
� Uckington Parish Council 
� Up Hatherley Parish Council 
� Warwickshire County Council 
� Whittington Parish Council 
� Wiltshire County Council 
� Worcestershire County Council 

 
 
General Consultation bodies: 
 
o voluntary bodies some or all of whose activities benefit any part of the local planning 

authority’s area,  
o bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups in the 

local planning authority’s area,  
o bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the local planning 

authority’s area,  
o bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the local planning authority’s 

area, 
o bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on business in the local planning 

authority’s area;  
 

For Cheltenham Borough this includes the following: 
 
� B & Q Plc 
� Canal and River Trust (Formerly British Waterways) 
� Cheltenham Business Partnership 
� Cheltenham Chamber of Commerce (Planning & Transport Committee) 
� Cheltenham Civic Society 
� Cheltenham Cycle Campaign 
� Cheltenham Borough Council Disability Group 
� Cheltenham Disability Forum 
� Cheltenham Hospitality Association 
� Cheltenham in Bloom 
� Cheltenham Strategic Partnership 
� Cheltenham Centre for Change 
� Cheltenham Tree Group 
� Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment 
� Corporate Property Services Gloucestershire County Council 
� Cotswolds Conservation Board 
� Cottesloe Property Co Limited 
� Council for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE) 
� Dialogue 
� Disability Forum 
� Diocese of Gloucester 
� Federation of Small Businesses 

Page 98



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
26 

� Federation of tenants and leaseholders 
� Friends of Leckhampton Hill and Charlton Kings Common (FOLK)  
� Freight Transport Association 
� Friends of Montpellier Bandstand and Gardens 
� Cheltenham Friends of the Earth 
� Gay Cheltenham 
� George Bence & Sons 
� Gloucester City Council 
� Gloucestershire Association for Community and Voluntary Action (GAVCA) 
� Gloucestershire Chamber of Commerce and Industry  
� Gloucestershire Constabulary 
� Gloucestershire County Council (Integrated Transport Unit) 
� Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service 
� Gloucestershire First 
� Gloucestershire Geoconservation Trust 
� Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
� Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust 
� Government Communication HQ 
� Help the aged 
� Home Builders Federation 
� Living Streets 
� Keyway (Gloucester) United 
� Mobile Operators Association 
� National Playing Fields Association 
� Network Rail 
� NHS Estates South 
� Pensioner’s Forum 
� Planning Aid 
� Ramblers Association 
� Regen South West 
� Road Haulage Association 
� Royal Mail 
� RSPB 
� Salmon Harvester Properties Ltd. & Interbrew UK Ltd. 
� SecondSite Property Holdings Ltd. 
� Signcraft (Cheltenham) LTD 
� South West RSL Planning Consortium 
� Sport England South West  
� Stagecoach West 
� Swindon Village Society 
� The Governors of St Benedicts Catholic College 
� Tidy Cheltenham Group 
� Tourism South West 
� UCAS 
� University of Gloucestershire 
� Woodland Trust 
� Zurich Financial Services 

 
Duty to Co-operate consultees (where relevant to Cheltenham Borough): 
 
o the Environment Agency;  
o the Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (known as English 

Heritage) 
o Natural England;  
o the Homes and Communities Agency;  
o each Primary Care Trust established under section 18 of the National Health Service Act 

2006(2) or continued in existence by virtue of that section;  
o the Office of Rail Regulation  

Page 99



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
27 

o each highway authority within the meaning of section 1 of the Highways Act 1980(6) 
(including the Secretary of State, where the Secretary of State is the highways authority); 
and  

o local enterprise partnership.  
 
An updated free standing list of consultees will be produced as necessary. Please note, these lists 
also relate to successor bodies where re-organisations occur.  From time to time consultation lists 
will be reviewed and updated, this does not however require a review or update to the SCI. 

Page 100



 

Cheltenham Borough Council                                                  Statement of Community Consultation  
28 

Appendix 3 
 
Documents will be deposited for the purposes of public consultation at the following 
locations 
 
� Charlton Kings Library 
� Cheltenham Main Library 
� Hesters Way Library 
� Prestbury Library 
� Up Hatherley Library 
� Bishop’s Cleeve Library 
� Hesters Way Neighbourhood Project 
� Health Resource Centre 
� Lower High Street Resource Centre 

 
Copies of the SCI are available for inspection free of charge on the Cheltenham Borough Council 
website www.cheltenham.gov.uk and at: 
 
 Gloucestershire 

County Council 
Environment 

Department Reception 
Shire Hall 

Gloucester  GL1 2TH 
Monday to Friday  
8.30am to 5.00pm 

 
 

 

Cotswold District 
Council 

Development and 
Heritage Dept. 

Reception 
Trinity Road 
Cirencester 
GL7 1PX 

Monday to Friday 
9.00am to 5.00pm 

 

Cheltenham Borough 
Council 

Environmental Services 
Reception 

Municipal Offices 
Promenade  
Cheltenham 
GL50 1PP 

Monday, Tuesday, 
Thursday, Friday 

9.00am to 5.00pm 
9:30am - 5:00pm on 

Wednesday 
 
 

Forest of Dean District 
Council 

Main Reception 
Council Offices 

High Street  
Coleford 

GL16 8HG 
Monday to Friday 8.30am 

to 5.00pm 

Gloucester City 
Council 

Reception 
Herbert Warehouse 

The Docks 
Gloucester    
GL1 2EQ 

Monday to Thursday 
8.45am to 5.00pm & 

Friday 8:45am to 
4:30pm 

Stroud District Council 
Planning Reception 

Ebley Mill 
Stroud 

GL5 4UB 
Monday to Thursday 
8.45am to 5.00pm & 

Friday 8.45am to 
4.30pm 

Tewkesbury Borough 
Council  

Development Services 
Reception 

Council Offices 
Gloucester Road 

Tewkesbury  
GL20 5TT 

Monday to Thursday 
8.30am to 5.00pm & 

Friday 8.30am to 4.00pm 
 

 

 

 

Page 101



Page 102
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 1 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

Accountable member Councillor Steve Jordan, Leader 
Accountable officer Tracey Crews – Head of Planning 
Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary The purpose of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is “to ensure that 

costs incurred in providing infrastructure to support the development of an 
area can be funded (wholly or partly) by owners or developers of land” 
(Section 205, Planning Act 2008). CIL enables the local planning authority 
to charge a tariff on most new development. This goes into a locally-held 
fund it administers and uses to pay for infrastructure which is needed as a 
result of permitting development in its area. 
The principal expression of CIL is via a statutory Charging Schedule that is 
subject to formal public consultation and examination.  The Charging 
Schedule sets out the amount to be levied from various types of 
development together with a list of infrastructure schemes that may require 
CIL funding. 
This report seeks authorisation in principle for officers to begin preparation 
of a draft CIL Charging Schedule for Cheltenham and to continue to work 
collaboratively with all Gloucestershire districts to consider solutions for the 
delivery of strategic infrastructure priorities.   

Recommendations That Cabinet authorises in principle the preparation of a draft CIL 
Charging Schedule for Cheltenham to be produced having regard to 
the provisional timetable set out in the report; and 
That Cabinet agree in principle to investigating options for the delivery 
of strategic priorities which have implications beyond the 
administrative boundaries of Cheltenham Borough. 

 
Financial implications CIL is a statutory process subject to formal consultation and public 

examination.  The cost of this process is estimated by CLG to be around 
£100,000 initially and around £75,000 annually thereafter (see report).  
However, there is provision in the CIL regulations for recovery of 
administrative costs arising from preparation of the Charging Schedule.  
This provision, moreover, allows for the recovery of the costs of ongoing 
operation, monitoring, maintenance, and review.  Whilst initial financial 
investment clearly is required, it appears that Government intends CIL to 
be largely self-funding once it is operational. 
Contact officer: Paul Jones – Head of Finance,                
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Agenda Item 8
Page 103



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 2 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Legal implications The statutory process is outlined at paragraph 2.1 of the report. 
Once a charging schedule takes effect planning obligations may not 
constitute a reason for granting planning permission for development to 
the extent that the obligation provides for funding or the provision of 
“relevant infrastructure”.  If the Council has published a list of infrastructure 
projects or types of infrastructure that it intends will be, or may be, wholly 
or partly funded by CIL “relevant infrastructure” will be those projects or 
types of infrastructure.  Otherwise, it will be any infrastructure. 
“Infrastructure” is defined as including (a) roads and other transport 
facilities, (b) flood defences, (c) schools and other educational facilities, (d) 
medical facilities, (e) sporting and recreational facilities, and (f) open 
spaces. 
Further, once a charging schedule takes effect or as of 6 April 2014 (or 6 
April 2015 should proposed reforms be implemented), which ever is the 
earlier, a planning obligation may not constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission to the extent that it provides for the funding of an 
infrastructure project or type of infrastructure, if five or more planning 
obligations have been entered into on or after 6 April 2010  that provide for 
the funding or provision of that project or type of infrastructure.  It should 
be noted that this provision is not by reference to “infrastructure” and not to 
“relevant infrastructure.   
Contact officer: Cheryl Lester - Solicitor        
cheryl.lester@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272013 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising. 
Contact officer: Sarah Flury, sarah.flurry@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 
265215 

Key risks April 2014 cut-off for pooling s.106 contributions from more than five 
developments.  May have impact, for example, on being able to provide 
strategic infrastructure arising out of JCS proposals.  The Government is 
currently reconsidering this date which may be extended to April 2015. 
If CIL not pursued, Council may lose a significant amount of revenue from 
development slipping through the s.106 net that would be caught by CIL.  
Perhaps not a risk as such, but certainly a missed opportunity and one that 
will have an impact on delivery of infrastructure that could enhance 
Cheltenham’s “offer” in general terms. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Development of a clear framework to manage and coordinate the 
community infrastructure levy will enable the council to deliver several 
outcomes; most notably “Cheltenham is able to balance new development 
with enhancing and protecting the natural and built environment”, “Carbon 
emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the impacts of 
climate change”, “People are able to lead healthy lifestyles” and “Our 
residents enjoy a strong sense of community and are involved in resolving 
local issues.”  For example, in terms of the latter outcome, neighbourhoods 
would be able to allocate some of the levy through their local parish 
council (point 5.3 below).   

Page 104



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 3 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Poor-quality infrastructure – owing to underfunding or resource constraints 
- will not assist in mitigating the effects of climate change and may 
exacerbate existing problems.  For example, underprovision of transport 
infrastructure may increase congestion and exhaust emissions. 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

N/A 

 1. Introduction 

1.1 Introduced in 2010 and subject to ongoing legislative evolution1, the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) is effectively a local tariff on development “to ensure that costs incurred in providing 
infrastructure to support the development of an area can be funded (wholly or partly) by owners 
or developers of land” (Section 205, Planning Act 2008).  Where it is in force it relates to new 
buildings and extensions to buildings which have at least 100 square metres of gross internal 
floor space. In this way money is raised from development to help the Council pay for strategic 
and local infrastructure such as highways improvements, schools, leisure and other community 
facilities.  

1.2 Funding derived from CIL is administered by the local planning authority and used to deliver 
infrastructure identified as needed to deliver development plan policies. For Cheltenham this 
would be via the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy and the 
Cheltenham Plan. This may include; 
• Provision of new infrastructure (roads, transport, flood defences, schools, medical 

facilities, sporting and recreational facilities and open space) 
• Improvements to existing infrastructure if deficiencies will be made worse by the new 

development; or 
• Increase in capacity of or repair/maintain existing infrastructure needed to support the 

new development 
1.3 The Council currently collects contributions from developments or requires developers to enter 

into planning obligations via s.106 Agreements. This secures, via often protracted negotiation, 
funding for specific items that enable the development to be implemented and the necessary 
infrastructure provided.  

1.4 Unlike Section 106, once it is in force CIL is non-negotiable, so applying and collecting it is 
largely an administrative process. The charge is calculated at the time the planning permission is 
granted and becomes due when development commences.  Also in contrast with Section 106, 
very many more developments are potentially required to contribute than currently are subject to 
obligations. 

1.5 The main focus of CIL is its Charging Schedule.  This sets out the tariff rate and lists 
infrastructure items that may be funded from revenue collected.  The Charging Schedule is 
discussed in more detail below. 

1.6 CIL revenue from a particular scheme can be spent by the Council on any community 
infrastructure required to support growth – it is not tied to a particular project, even where not 
                                                

1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 came into force on 25 April 2013 and the 
Government is currently considering making further reforms 

Page 105



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 4 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

listed in the Charging Schedule provided the item is not also subject to s.106 (which would 
amount to double counting).  However, it should be noted that CIL does not relate to the provision 
of affordable housing. That still needs to be secured via s.106 as does provision of on-site 
infrastructure - for example, the provision of public open space within a site. 

1.7 The Council can “top-slice” up to 5% of CIL receipts to pay for administrative costs including the 
development and adoption of the Charging Schedule and its ongoing running and maintenance. 

1.8 Finally, whilst CIL is discretionary, the restriction from April 2014 on pooling of s.106 contributions 
from more than five developments makes it compelling particularly in respect of provision of 
strategic-level infrastructure.  On 15 April 2013 the Government published a consultation 
document on further reforms to CIL. These potential reforms include allowing councils that have 
not adopted the levy to continue to pool contributions from different planning obligations for an 
extra year – April 2015. 

 
1.9 As noted above, the potential for CIL to yield exponentially greater revenue than s.106 is self-

evident.  And it may also emerge where an authority approaches government for funding of an 
infrastructure item but is not operating CIL it may struggle to make a persuasive case.   

 
2. Developing the CIL Charging Schedule – process and procedure 
2.1 CIL is a statutory process. Preparation of the Charging Schedule must follow Regulations and 

statutory guidance.  The basic steps are: 
• Preparation of and public consultation on a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule; 

o based on appropriate available evidence of infrastructure requirements and 
viability assessment; 

o statutory consultees, stakeholders and the public consulted 
o no time-period stipulated in Regulations but guidance is at least six weeks required 

• Preparation of and publication of Draft Charging Schedule: 
o minimum of four weeks (may be changed to 6 weeks under further reforms) for 

representations to be made following publication 
o respondents must be heard at the Examination if they so wish 

• Statement of modifications prior to Examination; 
o although there is statutory provision, modification of draft Charging Schedule 

between publication and Examination is discouraged in statutory guidance,  
o should not be used to make significant changes 
o where modifications made, public allowed at least four weeks to make 

representations starting from the date the Schedule is submitted to the Examiner 
• Examination in Public; 

o examiner focuses on compliance with statutory procedures; that the Charging 
Schedule is supported by appropriate evidence; that proposed rates are consistent 
with and informed by the viability assessment; evidence shows that the proposed 
rate would not put at serious risk the overall development of the area 

o examiner must recommend either approval, modification or rejection of the 
Charging Schedule culminates in Examiner’s Report 

• Approval by full Council. 
o The Council may not approve a charging schedule if the examiner recommends 

rejection  
o If the examiner recommends modification to remedy non-compliance the Council 

may only approve if it does so with modifications that are sufficient and necessary 
to remedy non-compliance (whether these are the modifications recommended by 
the examiner or not) 

o No other modification, save any additional ones recommended by the examiner 
may be made should the draft be approved 

 

Page 106



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 5 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

 
2.2 CIL regulations require authorities to set rates, which strike “an appropriate balance” between the 

desirability of funding CIL infrastructure and the potential effects on “economic viability of 
development across its area”. Robust evidence is required at examination to show how economic 
viability has been assessed. Rates should not be set so high as to put development at risk. 

2.3 In addition to viability assessment, a key requirement is that the Charging Schedule rests upon a 
sound and appropriate available evidence base.  In most cases this will be an Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan (or its equivalent) accompanying an up-to-date development plan.  The IDP will set 
out matters including what infrastructure is needed to deliver the plan, the timescale for delivery, 
where it is needed, who will provide it and how much it will cost. Consultants ARUP are currently 
commissioned on behalf of all Gloucestershire districts to deliver this evidence base. 

3. Costs of developing a CIL Charging Schedule 
 
3.1 While bearing in mind the ability to recover administrative expenses, an impact assessment 

relating to the preparation of CIL carried out by the Department of Communities and Local 
Government indicates that principal costs are: 
• Viability Assessment – between £25,000 and £70,000; 
• Consultation – between £10,000 and £20,000; 
• Examination – between £30,000 and £40,000; and  
• Printing – between £500 and £1,500. 

 
Clearly this does not take account of officer time or the use of consultants (other than in respect 
of viability assessment) if deemed necessary.  It also does not take into account the possibility of 
cost savings by, for example, joint Examination of two or more Charging Schedules. 

 
The following table is extracted from the CLG assessment: 
 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
charging scenario  

Year 1 – outside London  Year 2 onwards 
- outside London 

Set-up costs  £91,000  n/a 
On-going costs  £16,700  £75,700 
Total  £107,700  £75,700 

Source: CLG January 2011 
 
4. The Cheltenham CIL Charging Schedule – provisional timetable 

 
4.1 As detailed above, the Charging Schedule must be based upon evidence.  Inevitably therefore, it 

is neither sensible nor feasible to take preparation forward in advance of that evidence becoming 
available.  It follows therefore that progress of the Charging Schedule through its public 
consultation and examination phases must be more or less conjoined with the very similar 
process governing preparation of the development plan.  The current JCS timetable is as follows: 

 
Preferred Option Plan agreed August 2013 
Preferred Option Plan Consultation September – November 2013 (6 weeks) 
Pre-Submission Plan consultation Spring 2014 
Submission for Examination Autumn 2014 

 
Taking this as the lead, and bearing in mind the need for the evidence base to be stable (i.e. 
arguably therefore not before the development plan has reached submission stage), the 
Cheltenham CIL Charging Schedule timetable would theoretically be: 

  
Preparation of Preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule 

Winter 2013/14 

Page 107



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 6 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 
consultation 

Spring 2014 
Draft Charging Schedule consultation Summer 2014 
Submission for Examination Autumn 2014 

 
  
5. CIL in Gloucestershire 
 
5.1 There is no statutory provision for joint preparation or joint adoption of a single Charging 

Schedule. Consequently each Charging Authority must act independently (although note the 
statutory facility to hold joint Examinations). Whilst all the Gloucestershire charging authorities 
are working together to develop a common methodology, none of them has as yet begun 
preparation of a CIL Charging Schedule. At time of writing it is understood that only Tewkesbury 
Borough Council and Cotswold District Council formally have undertaken to begin that process. 

 
5.2 There are several advantages to developing a common CIL methodology for Gloucestershire: 

• there is strength in having a consistent approach in the county; 
• the need to demonstrate at Examination that development plans are sound in terms of 

their ability to deliver strategic development; 
• the Duty to Co-operate; and 
• the need, on the basis that the county council is not a Charging Authority, to take into 

account the funding of strategic-level infrastructure for the good planning of the county. 
 
 5.3 In looking for a CIL methodology that would satisfy these requirements, an officer working group 

was set up some time ago reporting to the County Strategic Planning Issues Group.  The working 
group developed an approach that is being described as a “layer cake” methodology.  In basic 
terms this means that each Charging Schedule would comprise three “layers” – neighbourhood, 
local and strategic.   

 
5.4 The neighbourhood level is relatively straightforward. Charging Authorities will soon be required 

under amended Regulations to pass 15% (capped) of revenue to Parish and Town Councils 
where CIL is operating and 25% where CIL is operating and a Neighbourhood Plan is in place.  
There naturally are other criteria relating to the implementation and administration of this that 
need not be dwelt upon here2. 
.   

5.5 The local level is straightforward too in the sense that it would be the “default” position - taking 
what remained from allocations at the levels above and below it. 

 
5.6 However, whilst there is consensus that there needs to be provision at strategic level the method 

by which this can be achieved is yet to be agreed and discussion is ongoing.  On 20th March 2013 
the County Strategic Planning Issues Group met to further consider a more strategic approach to 
CIL.  The following recommendations were agreed to be presented to Leadership 
Gloucestershire: 
 
• There was a high degree of urgency for starting work on a model for CIL given the risks of 

not having a CIL in place after April 2014 and the lead times. 
• It would be sensible to ensure an integrated approach between the infrastructure delivery 

plan work and the work on building up a CIL. 
• It was agreed that there was a benefit in having a common contractor for CIL 

development work across Gloucestershire possibly costing around £80,000 but 

                                                

2 see for instance paragraphs 6 and 9 of Explanatory Note accompanying  The Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) Regulations 2013  http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/9780111534465/contents  

Page 108



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 7 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

recognising that the cost will depend on how much councils were prepared to do 
themselves rather than relying on the contractor. 

• It was felt that there would be a benefit in a commonly agreed structure for CIL across 
Gloucestershire with district specific content and charging schedules. 

• A proposal would be put to Leadership Gloucestershire that a common approach to CIL is 
taken and that the County Planning Officers Group works up a specification for engaging 
consultants, a timetable for the CIL work and a proposal for splitting the fee. 

• Finally that consideration should be given at the appropriate time to the layer cake 
approach to CIL i.e. addressing strategic, local and neighbourhood requirements where 
funding can be pooled for shared priorities across Gloucestershire and/or individual local 
authorities. 

 
5.7  Subsequently, Leadership Gloucestershire met and agreed the following: 
 

(1) County Strategic Planning Issues Group be asked to prepare a presentation for Leadership 
Gloucestershire in June on the strategic principles/options.  

 
(2) County Strategic Planning Issues Group also be asked to advise on a timetable to develop a 

common approach to CIL.  
 
5.8 As set out in paragraph 2.3 above, in determining CIL, evidence will be drawn from the emerging 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) currently being prepared by ARUP.  This will pull together all 
requirements for infrastructure provision, including strategic infrastructure. The process is 
therefore in place to identify the genuinely strategic nature of significant elements of 
infrastructure, however what is not in place is the apportionment of the costs arising. 

5.9 There is still much more work to do in considering the practical application of the ‘layer cake’ 
methodology and the practicalities of dealing with the strategic layer in respect of identifying 
strategic priorities which relate to two or more districts and proportionality of contributions across 
the County.  However, in informing the recommendation by the County Strategic Planning Issues 
Group to Leadership Gloucestershire, Cabinet is asked to agree to the principle of working 
collaboratively and providing officer support to help find an appropriate solution to the delivery of 
strategic infrastructure.  
 

6. CIL nationally 
 
6.1 At time of writing the position is: 
 
 

 Number of Local Authorities  
Local Authorities already charging CIL 12 
CIL plans at examination stage 18 
Draft charging schedule published for 
consultation 

12 
Preliminary draft charging schedule published 
for consultation  

80+ 
 

Source: Planning Resource April 2013 
 
7. Reasons for recommendations 
7.1 Officers consider that the case for preparing a CIL Charging Schedule is persuasive.  Whilst it 

may take some time to deliver a Charging Schedule for the reasons set out in the report, officers 
consider it is important that the Council signals its intent and commits now to the process.  That 
will allow this major piece of work to be properly programmed alongside other workstreams. 

Page 109



 

   

$1rqfxunk.docFINAL Page 8 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

8. Alternative options considered 
8.1 Operation of CIL is discretionary.  One option is simply not to pursue it.  However, for the reasons 

set out above officers advise that this risks failure to provide sufficient infrastructure to ensure the 
impact of development on existing facilities is minimised.  It also would mean that a potentially 
significant amount of money available as a result of new development is not being captured.   

9. Consultation and feedback 
9.1 Strategic Leadership Team and Planning Liaison Scrutiny Task Group have considered and 

commented upon this report.  The draft report also has been circulated to partner JCS authorities 
and the County Planning Officers Group.  Recommendations from this report will be reported to 
County Strategic Planning Issues Group and Leadership Gloucestershire. 

10. Performance management –monitoring and review 
10.1 CIL will be required to be closely monitored and the Charging Schedule kept up to date. 

Report author Contact officer: David Halkyard – Senior Planning Officer,                
david.halkyard@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774988 

Appendices  1. Risk Assessment 
2. Some advantages & disadvantages of CIL 

Background information https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmentdata/fil
e/36743/Community_Infrastructure_Levy_guidance_Final.pdf  
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmentdata/fil
e/6037/1829714.pdf  
 
http://www.parliament.uk/briefing-papers/SN03890  

 

Page 110



 

   
$1rqfxunk.doc Page 9 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 
 
 
CIL would constitute a new commitment for the council and, as such, there is no extant corporate risk assessment.   
 
The report above together with Appendix 2 below does touch upon some risks that may be associated with CIL.  It may be suggested at this stage that these 
are largely: 
• Financial – in the sense, for example, that preparation of CIL does involve some initial outlay (although recoverable) but that not adopting CIL may also 

carry the risk of significant amounts of revenue not being captured; and relatedly 
• Environmental – in the sense, for example, that not expecting all qualifying3 developers to pay for mitigation of the infrastructural impacts of their 

schemes may exacerbate environmental degradation specifically and/or generally. 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                

3 i.e. those developments that would be “caught” by CIL 

P
age 111



 

   
$1rqfxunk.doc Page 10 of 10 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Some advantages and disadvantages of CIL             Appendix 2 
 
Advantages Disadvantages 
CIL requires contributions from all development which is not exempt or over a 
certain size threshold.  Whilst no figures are readily available, it can be 
assumed that many developments that metaphorically would be caught in the 
CIL net are currently getting though the wider s.106 mesh.  The reasons for 
this may be complex and vary from case to case 

CIL is statutory process that culminates in public examination of the Charging 
Schedule prior to adoption.  It is subject to similar tests of evidence and 
soundness.  If it is envisaged along similar lines to producing a development 
plan document, this means that CIL may be: 
• expensive to produce; 
• lengthy from inception to adoption – it includes formal public 

consultation, for example; and 
• vulnerable to change or derailment during the preparation/adoption 

process. 
 
However, bear in mind top-slicing.to recover development costs 

CIL is a more equitable way of ensuring that all qualifying development 
contributes to mitigation of cumulative impact on existing infrastructure 

CIL is likely to yield considerably greater revenue from contributions than 
s.106. 

It is possible to stipulate what infrastructure items are to be included in the 
CIL Charging Schedule – for example, cross-boundary “big ticket” items such 
as major road schemes or education facilities may be prime candidates – it 
does not necessarily have to deal with everything. 

CIL rests upon a dynamic set of development and economic circumstances.  
It is not a “once and for all” exercise.  It will be critical that it is kept up to date.  
This means that the evidence base it rests upon will need to be regularly 
reviewed to ensure that the calculations underpinning the charging schedule 
and tariff remain legitimate.  It may be necessary to undertake formal periodic 
reviews.  Failure to do so may undermine the credibility of the CIL and render 
it vulnerable to challenge.  The danger here is that a discredited CIL will 
potentially fail universally or over an entire area rather than simply in one 
isolated case – as in a single s.106 agreement for instance.  The implications 
of that are self-evident. 

CIL is not “tied” to a particular development and is not subject to the 
restrictions in that regard applying to s.106.  The tariff is pooled and can be 
used to fund infrastructure provision anywhere within the relevant area 

CIL can be used retrospectively to reimburse costs already incurred through 
funding infrastructure that has been delivered to “unlock” development. 

Whilst there is a degree of flexibility, a CIL tariff, once set, is less vulnerable to 
hard negotiation in the development process because it has passed through 
formal Examination and adoption. 
 
 

P
age 112



 

   

Food Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 1 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Food Safety Service Plan 
 

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Deputy Housing and Community 
Safety 

Accountable officer Sarah Clark, Public & Environmental Health Team Leader 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Food Standards Act 1999 requires the Council to produce a Food 

Safety Service Plan 
The Food Safety Service Plan is the Council’s expression of commitment to 
the delivery of an improving cost effective and efficient regulatory food 
service.  
This Food Safety Service Plan is an annual operational plan giving details of 
how Cheltenham is going to execute its statutory food safety functions within 
the Public Protection service under Grahame Lewis as Executive Director.    

 
Recommendations I therefore recommend that Cabinet approve the attached service plan 

for 2013-14. 
 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. The Food 

Safety Service plan will be met within the financial resources detailed in 
the plan. 
 
Contact officer: Sarah Didcote 
sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264124 

Legal implications  It is a statutory requirement to produce this plan on an annual basis. 
 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi 
sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

 There are no HR implications arising from this report.  
 
Contact officer: Donna Sheffield 
donna.sheffield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774972 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

None 
Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 9
Page 113



 

   

Food Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 2 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Key risks The capacity issues experienced in recent years have recently been 
addressed with all food safety posts occupied since the end of April 2013. 
Reactive services will given their inherent nature always contain the 
potential for an element of risk.  An unplanned event (e.g. a food poisoning 
outbreak) will require the diversion of resources away from scheduled 
plans.  However, this is and will remain the essence of the service we 
deliver and will be tolerated and monitored throughout the plan with priority 
given to the appropriate control of high risk issues. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 The Food Safety Service Plan supports the council’s community 
objectives: 

• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
• Strengthening our communities. 

Our food safety service contributes to all of these in the overall 
improvement in the wellbeing of those who live, visit and work in 
Cheltenham. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None.  

1. Background 
1.1 The White Paper “The Food Standards Agency – A Force for Change” identified the Food 

Standards Agency as having a key role overseeing local authority enforcement activities.  This 
plan is required by the Food Standards Agency (FSA) as part of their monitoring and auditing 
systems. 

1.2 Service plans are seen to be an important part of the process to ensure national priorities and 
standards are addressed and delivered locally. Service plans also: 
Ï focus debate on key delivery issues; 
Ï provide an essential link with financial planning; 
Ï set objectives for the future, and identify major issues that cross service boundaries; and 

 Ï provide a means of managing performance and making performance comparisons. 
3.3 The plan follows a standard format provided by the FSA and is required to be submitted to 

Members for approval 
2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 It is a statutory requirement to produce a Food Safety Service Plan.  

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 No other alternatives are available as this plan relates to the delivery of a statutory function.  
4. Consultation and feedback 

Page 114



 

   

Food Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 3 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

4.1  A copy of the plan is made available on the Council website. 

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 Performance against the Food Safety Service Plan takes place on a monthly basis with the 

production of an annual statutory data return.  

Report author Contact officer: Sarah Clark, Public & Environmental Health Team 
Leader, sarah.clark@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264226 

Appendices Risk assessment 
Background information Food Safety Service Plan 2013-14 
 

Page 115



 

   
$3vzcllhw.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1 Any risks associated with 
equality impact  

SC 04.06.13 1 1 1 A N/A – acceptable risk    

2 Any environmental risks SC 04.06.13 1 1 1 A N/A – acceptable risk    
3 Lack of staff resource due 

to vacant post/s or staff 
illness resulting in failure to 
carry out planned 
interventions or investigate 
food incidents/complaints 

SC  06.06.13 4 2 8 R Contingency plan: a)re-
deployment of dual-
competency staff to 
cover short-term 
resource issues (eg 
from EP, H&S or 
management) b) 
temporary contract with 
agency staff (as they 
will be suitably qualified 
and competent) c) use 
of resource from 
neighbouring district 
short term 
d) request authorisation 
to recruit into vacant 
post if situation occurs 
 

In place SC Already on 
dept risk 
register 

4 Lack of resource due to 
major emergency or 
food/infection related 
incident resulting in failure 
to carry out planned 
interventions or investigate 
food incidents/complaints 

SC 06.06.13 3 3 6 R Likely to be short-term 
if risk is realised so can 
reduce risk with 
mitigation: a) mutual 
aid from neighbouring 
districts to cover high 
risk interventions or 
complaint investigation 
(arrangement through 
Glos Food Safety 
Liaison Group)  b) 
notification to FSA of 

In place SC Yes - dept 

P
age 116



 

   
$3vzcllhw.doc Page 5 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

incident and possible 
impact on performance 
c) use of agency 
contract staff to backfill 
if necessary 

5 Loss of Idox Uni-Form as a 
stable case management 
system (ie risk data relating 
to any business in 
Cheltenham cannot be 
accessed and planned 
interventions cannot be 
programmed) 

SC 06.06.13 5 4 20 R  Reduce risk by: a) 
reporting all issues to 
ICT and user group rep 
b) have now produced 
paper versions of 
inspection forms and 
Legal Notices etc  c) 
reliance on paper files 
d) Idox consultant 
booked regarding 
statutory returns do not 
work from Uniform (visit 
cannot take place until 
current stability issues 
resolved by ICT/Idox – 
June 2013 hopefully) 

Determined 
by ICT 

SC Yes – dept 
but also 
flagged on 
business 
continuity 
etc for past 
18 months 
approx 

6 Change of direction in 
guidance from central 
Government (eg review on 
official controls) 

SC 06.06.13 2 3 6 A Accept risk as must 
follow statutory 
guidance. Current 
ROOC indicates 
present regime will not 
change in short term 
future. If guidance is 
released mid-year, it is 
unlikely to take effect 
until following financial 
year thus allowing time 
for strategic planning.  

N/A SC On dept 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 

P
age 117



 

   
$3vzcllhw.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

 
P

age 118



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 1 of 14  

 
 

FOOD SAFETY 
SERVICE PLAN 

2013–2014 
 
 
 

Page 119



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 2 of 14  

1. FOOD SAFETY SERVICE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
1.1  Background, Aims and objectives  
 
 
Background 
 
The requirement to have a Service Plan is laid down by the Food Standards 
Agency (FSA) in its Framework Agreement on Official Feed and Food Law 
Controls by Local Authorities, Amendment number 5. The FSA is an independent 
monitoring and advisory body that issues guidance to ensure local authorities’ 
delivery of official controls is ‘effective, risk-based, proportionate and consistent’.  
 

 
Aim 
 
The key food safety function of Cheltenham Borough Council is to ensure that the 
food sold, offered and stored for sale and entering the Borough is wholesome and fit 
for human consumption.  
 
Our objectives include: 
 
The regular control of food premises within the Borough. 
 
The investigation of the safety and fitness of food including all complaints about the 
operation of businesses within the Borough. 
 
To sample foods within the Borough whilst participating in local, regional and national 
food sampling programmes.  
 
To ensure we license, approve and register all food premises within the Borough as 
required by legislation. 
 
To undertake appropriate and proportionate food safety enforcement action within 
the Borough. 
 
To undertake Home and Originating Authority duties within the Borough. 
 
To promote food safety by way of advice and assistance to all food businesses, 
citizens and visitors of the Borough. 
 
1.2  Links to Council Strategy 2010-2015 
 
The Council strategy sets out three community objectives: 
 

• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
 
• Strengthening our communities. 

 
Our food safety service contributes to all three of these objectives in the overall 
improvement in the wellbeing of those who live, visit and work in Cheltenham. 
 

Page 120



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 3 of 14  

The work of the team also supports the following outcomes identified in the 
Corporate Action Plan 2013-14: 
 

• Cheltenham has a strong and sustainable economy 
 

• People are able to lead healthy lifestyles 
 
The cross-cutting objective of ensuring we provide value for money services that 
effectively meet the needs of our customers is at the core of our food service 
delivery plan.

Page 121



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 4 of 14  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1  Profile 
 
Cheltenham is an attractive and vibrant town serving an extensive catchment area in 
central and eastern Gloucestershire and the South Midlands. It is ranked in the top 
thirty regional shopping centres in the UK, third in the South West and has the 
eighteenth highest consumer expenditure in Great Britain.    
 
The Borough is based on the town of Cheltenham and is mainly urban with some 
areas of surrounding countryside. It covers an area of approximately 4,680 hectares 
and has a population of over 110,000. 
 
Cheltenham has an ever-increasing wealth of restaurants and eating places. Twice a 
month it hosts a farmers market offering a valuable opportunity to sample local 
produce.  The town offers a wide range of educational and employment 
opportunities, a year-round programme of festivals and events plus a strong cultural 
and sporting profile. 

 
2.2  Organisational Structure 
 
The food safety service is within the Public and Environmental Health team of the 
Public Protection Department. The structure is shown in Appendix 1.  
 
 
2.3  Scope of the Food Service 
 
The Council is not a Unitary Authority and therefore shares its duties under the Food 
Safety Act with the Trading Standards Department of Gloucestershire County 
Council. Cheltenham Borough Council aims to provide a full range of services within 
its remit offering a balanced approach between education and enforcement.  
 
The Borough Council food safety service is provided by three appointed and 
authorised officers in accordance with the requirements of the FSA code of practice.  
These officers are also responsible for infectious disease control along with other 
environmental health functions in all food premises within the Borough. These 
activities usually include health and safety inspections, accident investigation, 
complaint investigation and drainage issues.  The officers are also responsible for 
food safety advice at events and festivals in the district of Cheltenham.  
 
Specialist services such as public analyst and food examiner are provided externally 
by Worcester Scientific Services, Worcester and The Public Health England Food, 
Water & Environmental Laboratory, Birmingham, respectively. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 5 of 14  

 
Demands on the Food Safety Service 
  
The Service Delivery Point: 

 
There is an out of hours emergency service available which addresses the 
emergency closure of premises, food product withdrawal and outbreaks of food 
associated disease.  
 
On 31st March 2013 there were 992 food businesses on our database - the profile is 
given in the table below: 

 
 NO. OF PREMISES 
PRIMARY PRODUCERS 1 
MANUFACTURERS + PACKERS 1 
IMPORTERS/EXPORTERS 0 
DISTRIBUTORS/TRANSPORTERS 10 
RETAILERS 165 
RESTAURANTS AND CATERERS 815 

 
As is expected for a town like Cheltenham the hospitality and catering sector 
predominates, the majority being small or medium sized enterprises.  

 
With such a small team, the programmed food hygiene intervention plan for any 
given year can be severely disrupted by food poisoning investigations, national food 
alerts, food sampling and non food related matters such as health and safety 
accident investigation. 
 
2.4 Enforcement Policy and Regulatory Reform 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council has adopted and published a corporate enforcement 
policy which will form the basis of all enforcement action undertaken by the Food 
Safety Service. 
 
In recent years there have been a number of reviews conducted that have resulted 
in a change to the nature of regulation.  The emphasis being that the regulatory 
system as a whole should use comprehensive risk assessment to concentrate 
resources in the areas that need them most.   
 

In terms of food safety, this means concentrating efforts on those businesses that do 
not meet the minimum legislative standards, with alternative interventions in those 
that generally comply.  This was further developed in the Regulatory Reform Act 
2006 Compliance Code, which encompasses the criteria of the Enforcement 
Concordat of being transparent, accountable, proportionate and consistent with the 
additional element of being targeted only at cases in which action is needed. 

Address Hours  Contact details 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 9SA 

Mon, Tue, Thurs 
and Fri  
(09.00-17.00) 
Wed  
(09.30- 17.00) 

 
01242 775020 
env.health@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

Page 123



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 6 of 14  

There is a suite of interventions that focus on outputs and continued improvements 
in food safety.  This allows us to choose the most appropriate action to be taken to 
drive up levels of compliance of food establishments with food law.  
 
3. SERVICE DELIVERY 
 
3.1  Food Premises Regulation 
 
The regulation of food premises is undertaken in accordance with the Food Safety 
Act 1990 Code of Practice.  The interventions are focus on guidance issued by the 
Food Standards Agency to reduce the risk of e-coli 0157 form cross-contamination 
between raw and ready to eat foods. All food premises are subject to a detailed 
assessment based on particular criteria including types of food and method of 
handling, consumers at risk, level of current compliance in terms of practices, 
procedures including cleanliness and confidence in management.. This numerical 
calculation is transferred into the categorisation of premises from A to E. Category A 
premises are inspected a minimum of every 6 months, category B every year, 
category C every 18 months, category D every two years and category E premises 
every 3 years.   
 
The food safety team aim to inspect all non-compliant food businesses within our 
area within 28 days of the due date.  This includes all newly registered premises as 
they are deemed non-compliant until the first visit and a risk assessment has been 
undertaken. All non-compliant category A and B premises, i.e. those that fall 
significantly short of broad compliance will be visited by the due date.  Other 
categories of premises that are broadly compliant will be addressed by a combination 
of official controls and other interventions. 

 
Further official control visits are made to premises where there are food safety 
concerns, in particular where the level of current compliance in food safety practices 
and procedures fall below satisfactory or there is little or no confidence in 
management. Other visits to food premises may follow a request for advice, 
complaint or an alleged food poisoning incident.

Page 124



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 7 of 14  

Visits are primarily unannounced with evening/weekend inspections undertaken 
when required to accommodate the needs of some food businesses, e.g. those that 
do not open during office hours and markets and festivals held at weekends. 
 
In line with current guidance and the necessity to target ever scarce resource at 
higher risk activities, we operate an alternative enforcement strategy for low risk 
businesses.   
 
Performance monitoring 
Each local authority must submit a statutory return to the FSA on their official 
food controls each year through the Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring 
System. Monitoring tables can be viewed on the FSA website: 
http://www.food.gov.uk/multimedia/pdfs/enforcement/leams_dc although it can 
take some time for the latest data to be published.  
 
The national performance indicator (NI 184) which looked at the level of broad 
compliance within food businesses has been discontinued and has not been 
replaced.  However, the intention of the food service is still to target resources where 
they are needed, i.e. at those premises that are not broadly compliant.  The driving 
up of standards year on year must be demonstrated in the delivery of improvements 
for the community.   
 
This can now be demonstrated through Cheltenham’s participation in the national 
Food Hygiene Rating Scheme, which is a public interface to food hygiene standards 
in premises that sell food direct to the final consumer. Each food business in the 
scheme is given a food hygiene rating ranging between 0 (urgent improvement 
necessary) and 5 (very good) after it has been inspected, and the level of compliance 
with food safety and hygiene legislation is reflected in the rating - a rating of 3 and 
above indicates the premises is broadly compliant. The website can be viewed at 
www.ratings.food.gov.uk 
 
2008/2009 was a baseline year with less than 70% of our food premises being 
broadly compliant.  There followed a year on year increase in this figure, and on 31st 
March 2013, 98% of food premises in Cheltenham in the food hygiene rating scheme 
were broadly compliant, i.e. achieved a rating of 3 or above.  
 
The ‘broadly compliant’ target for 2013-14 (set locally) is 98%. A 100% target is 
not considered realistic as all unrated new businesses are automatically non-
compliant before first intervention.  
 
A target number of interventions is not set on an annual basis as the number of 
premises opening and closing or changing food liability throughout the year means 
such a target would not be meaningful. However, it is useful to asses the percentage 
of planned interventions delivered per risk rating category. Therefore, the following 
targets apply for the percentage of interventions achieved for 2013-14: 
• 100% of unrated new food premises inspected within 28 days of 

registration/opening 
• inspect 100% of Category A premises due for intervention  
• inspect 100% of Category B premises due for intervention 
• inspect 96% of Category C premises due for intervention* 
• inspect 94% of Category D and E premises due for intervention* 

 
*lower targets are given for Category C-E premises as they present a lower risk to 
public health and are more likely to contain a higher mix of seasonal premises.  

Page 125



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 8 of 14  

 
Benchmarking  
The team leader for the food safety service is the lead officer for food safety 
benchmarking for 2013-14 in Gloucestershire. The aim is to establish baseline data 
and agree useful local indicators for future use. Gloucestershire’s food safety 
services are not directly comparable so the county work plan has also identified 
exploring the establishment of benchmarking families.  
 
This data will be published in update reports by the Gloucestershire Food Safety 
Liaison Group and a summary will be provided in Cheltenham’s Food Safety Service 
Plan for 2014-15. This will allow evaluation against 2013-14 peer performance and 
more robust target setting for future years.  
 
 
3.2  Food Complaints 
 
Food complaints are investigated in accordance with the FSA Code of Practice. 
 The number of food complaints fully investigated by the food safety team remains in 
the region of 20 per year with around 100 receiving at least partial investigation 
depending on evidence available.  
 
Performance target 2013-14: to instigate investigation of 96% of food safety 
complaints received within three working days. A target has not been set for the 
resolution of these complaints as that depends upon the most appropriate course of 
enforcement action for each complaint on a case by case basis.  
 
 
3.3  Home Authority Principle  
 
The Council will consult at an appropriate level with the Home and/or Originating 
Authority for any food business, in accordance with the principles laid down in The 
Food Safety Act 1990 Code of Practice and Local Authority Co-ordinators of 
Regulatory Services (LACORS) guidance. 

 
3.4  Advice to Businesses 
  
It is the policy of the Section to provide assistance to local food businesses when 
requested to help them comply with the legislation and to encourage the use of best 
practice. This is achieved through a range of activities including: 

 
• Advice given during inspections and other visits to premises 
• Provision of advisory leaflets 
• Responding to service requests and enquiries 
• Attendance at Event Consultative Groups to advise on food safety at public and 

community events. 
 
Whilst the resources of the Food Safety Service will always be used in proportion to 
the risk to public health, every effort will be made to accommodate requests for 
advisory visits to food premises. Performance target 2013-14: to respond to 96% of 
such requests for advice within three working days. 
 
 
 

 

Page 126



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 9 of 14  

 3.5 Food Sampling 
 
The food service participates in the LACORS/HPA (now PHE) coordinated cross-
regional food sampling programmes as well as national studies. In 2012-3 this 
included the submission of samples from large scale outdoor events (to inform food 
safety at the Olympics), samples from chopping boards and cloths; ready to eat meat 
pies and vacuum packed meats.  
 
The sampling plan for 2013-14 includes soda from dispensers; dish cloths; salad 
from restaurants and takeaways; imported ready to eat foods; and dishwashers hand 
washing and the hygiene of recently washed items. In addition, the county food 
safety liaison group were successful in obtaining funding for ATP (Adenosine 
triphosphate) monitors for each district. These detect the enzyme present in all 
organic matter and will be used to asses the effectiveness of cleaning regimes. 
Foods are also sampled in response to complaints and food poisoning 
investigations when necessary.  
 
Performance target 2013-14: to participate in 100% of local, sub-regional and 
national sampling studies in 2013-14 as agreed by Gloucestershire Food Safety 
Liaison Group and to follow up 100% of any unsatisfactory results with the respective 
businesses.  
 
3.6 Control & Investigation of Outbreaks & Food Related Infectious Disease 
 
The measures to be taken to control the spread of infectious diseases are contained 
in various acts of Parliament and their associated Regulations. This legislation 
places a duty on local authorities to control the spread of food poisoning and food 
and water borne diseases. 

 
Annual notifications vary from year to year with a noticeable increase in Norovirus 
outbreaks in recent years. These outbreaks are often associated with care homes, 
day nurseries and other similar settings which have a more vulnerable group of 
clients.  Intervention in these outbreaks takes up a significant amount of officer time. 

 
The objectives in respect of this service are: 

 
• To administer and implement our statutory responsibilities relating to the control 

of infectious disease. 
• Investigate all notifications of food poisoning cases and likely sources of  
     infection whether confirmed or not at the earliest opportunity. 
• Where a source is identified take appropriate action to ensure risk of spreading is  
     controlled. 
• Protect the well-being of individuals at risk by taking action to contain the  
     spread of infection and provide advice and information regarding personal  
     hygiene, food handling and control of infection. 
• Exclude food handlers and people working with high-risk groups in  
     consultation with the Consultant for Communicable Disease Control (CCDC).    
• A Countywide “Outbreak Control Plan” is operated including standardised  
     food poisoning investigation questionnaires. 

 
Performance target 2013-14: to action 100% of infectious disease notifications 
within one working day (with the exception of Campylobacter which has been put on 
reduced surveillance by the local health protection unit from May 2013.  

 

Page 127



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 10 of 14  

3.7 Food Alerts 
 
The Food Standards Agency operates a system to alert the public and food 
authorities to serious problems concerning food that does not meet food safety 
requirements.  

 
Food alerts vary in significance and require an appropriate response.  Some are of 
high priority and require immediate action.  This may involve contacting and/or 
visiting food premises and taking immediate action under powers contained in the 
Food Safety Act 1990. Others are for information only. 

 
All alerts are received directly from the Food Standards Agency via a secure 
dedicated computer network system and via the Public and Environmental Health 
Managers mobile phone text messaging service. The Manager will instigate the 
necessary response and provide the necessary out of hours cover for this service.  
 
Where the Council becomes aware of a serious localised incident or a wider food 
safety problem, it will notify the Food Standards Agency in accordance with the 
Code of Practice. 

 
It is estimated that around 100 food alerts requiring various levels of action will be 
received on an annual basis. It is difficult to estimate the resource required to meet 
this responsive element of the service as the work associated with individual alerts 
can vary significantly. 

Page 128



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 11 of 14  

3.8  Liaison with Other Organisations 
 
The Council is committed to ensuring that the enforcement approach it adopts is 
consistent with other enforcing authorities. This takes place through regular 
meetings and attendance by the manager at the Gloucestershire Food Safety 
Group. This group comprises of peer representatives of each of the six District and 
Borough Councils in the County, the County Council Trading Standards Service, the 
Food Standards Agency, the local FSA vet and PHE Laboratory Service. 

 
The forum provides a mechanism for discussion of relevant food matters, the 
provision of training on a county-wide basis, the formulation of policy, documentation 
and guidance and co-ordinated responses to Government and Central Agencies. 

 
The Council attends the Gloucestershire Public and Environmental Health Forum 
(previously known as the Consultant in Communicable Disease Committee). By 
means of this forum, which meets half yearly, members are kept informed about 
relevant subjects and are able to benefit from the valuable and very necessary 
liaison between public health and medicine.  
 
A Divisional Veterinary Officer is part of the Forum and is able to brief the group on 
local and national issues regarding animal welfare, disease control and food safety. 

 
Within the Council, the Food Service is also a consultee for the planning, building 
control and licensing functions. 

 
 
4. RESOURCES 
 
4.1  Financial Allocation 
 
The Food Safety service budget for the coming year is £184,000 which includes 
staffing, travel subsistence, I.T. development, legal action and office overheads 
necessary as part of the food safety enforcement function. Specific Food Safety 
related insurances. Recharges for I.T. support, Human Resources, accountancy and 
audit. Corporate insurances, communications, E government and asset 
management. 

 
The Council always seeks to recover costs following successful legal proceedings 
wherever possible. 
 
 
4.2  Staffing Allocation 
 
All food safety officers are appropriately trained and competent to work within this 
field. Officers are authorised according to their competency and experience.  There 
are 3 FTEs dedicated to the delivery of the food safety service.  
 
The food safety service is led by Sarah Clark who is EHRB registered. 
 
There are two SEHOs and one senior technical officer in the food safety team.  Chris 
Fawcett is EHRB registered and widely experienced in food safety.  Bernadette Reed 
has recently joined the team in April 2013 (following a six month vacant post after the 
previous post holder transferred to a new role).  Bernadette is an experienced officer 
with over 25 years experience in local authority environmental health. The senior 

Page 129



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 12 of 14  

technical officer is Stephen Edwardson.  Stephen is EHRB registered and specialises 
in food safety enforcement.  
 
Additionally, the Public Protection Heads of Service, Barbara Exley and Yvonne 
Hope, are EHRB registered and widely experienced in food safety enforcement. 
 
4.3  Staff Development Plan 
 
The Council has an annual review system of staff, this process includes training 
needs. The food safety team holds regular meetings to review and distribute 
workloads in addition to monthly 1-2-1 meetings for all the team.  Any training needs 
required for new legislation, guidance etc are discussed and actioned at these 
meetings.  
 
Food safety regulators are required to achieve a minimum of 20 hours of continued 
professional development every year. The service encourages cascade training as a 
mechanism to disseminate new guidance and further staff development.  
 
 
5. QUALITY ASSESSMENT 

 
Local and national performance indicators are reviewed annually. 

  
All officers use standard inspection/audit forms and have undergone consistency 
training.  
  
Customer satisfaction surveys are provided to businesses we deal with in 
accordance with National Indicator 182 (the percentage of customers satisfied with 
regulatory services - Environmental Health is one such regulatory service). In 2012-
13, 88% of customers were satisfied with the food safety service they received.  
Performance target for 2013-14: to achieve 90% customer satisfaction with EH 
regulatory service.  
 
The Uni-Form database (which also forms the Public Register of food premises) is 
audited on a fortnightly basis for data accuracy before upload to the Food Hygiene 
Rating Scheme portal.  
 
6. REVIEW* 
Last year’s progress in food safety includes: 

- increase in broadly compliant businesses included in the food hygiene rating 
scheme to over 98% (at time of report publication there were no 0 rated 
premises) 

- intervention at the majority of premises scheduled for inspection  
- prioritisation of visits to non-compliant food businesses and use of alternative 

enforcement strategy 
- 418 written warnings of non-compliance with food hygiene legislation 
- participation in national and regional food sampling programmes and 

development of staff competencies in this area 
- 41 unplanned food visits carried out 
- received 229 infectious disease notifications.  
 
- * this review section will be expanded when evaluating 2013-14 (see notes on 

benchmarking and performance monitoring). 
 

Page 130



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 13 of 14  

 
 

Page 131



Appendix 2 

Public Protection Department Page 14 of 14  

 
Appendix 1 – Public Protection May 2013 
 

 

Head of Public Protection 
Barbara Exley & Yvonne Hope (Job share) 

Licensing and Business Support 
Team Leader  
– Louis Krog 

 
Business Support Officers 
  : Laura Oswald 
 : Jane Mitchell 
 : Anna Knight 
 
Senior Licensing : Amelia Mercer 
Officer 
 
Licensing Officer   : Philip Cooper 
   : Phil Bowen 

Public and Environmental Health Team Leader 
– Sarah Clark   

 
Senior Environmental Health 
Officers     : Chris Fawcett 
 : Bernadette Reed 
 : Louise Boyle 
 : Sara Ball  
 : Sadie Hawson 
 : Gareth Jones 
 : Vacant   

 
Contaminated Land Officer   : Paul Scott 
 
Senior Technical Officer             : Steve Edwardson 
                                

Community Protection Team Leader   
– Trevor Gladding (3 days) 

 
Community Protection  
Officers   : Peter Piff (part time) 
 : Clive Evans 
 : Duncan Turner 
 : Brian Daughtrey 
 : Sarah Hughes 
 : Carol Cross  
 
Community Protection  
Officers (Job share)              : Colin Pilsworth 
 : Lisa Jones 
 
 
Civil Enforcement Officers : Binoy Mathew 
 :  Angela Mccoy 
 : 2 vacant posts 
Admin Officer : Maggie Browning 
 
  

Pest Control Officers (0.5FTE)  
 
  
 Paul Carpenter  

P
age 132



 

   

Health & Safety Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 1 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet– 18 June 2013 

Health & Safety Service Plan 
 

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Deputy Housing and Community 
Safety 

Accountable officer Sarah Clark, Public & Environmental Health Team Leader 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Health & Safety at Work etc Act 1974 requires the Council to produce a 

Health & Safety Service Plan.  
The Health & Safety Service Plan is the Council’s expression of commitment 
to the delivery of an improving cost effective and efficient regulatory service. 
This service plan is an annual plan detailing how Cheltenham is going to 
undertake its statutory health & safety regulatory functions. It is an 
operational plan falling within the Public Protection service delivery under 
Grahame Lewis as Executive Director.    

Recommendations I therefore recommend that Cabinet approve the attached service plan 
for 2013-14. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. The Plan will be 

delivered within existing budgetary resources.  
Contact officer:  Sarah Didcote 
sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 262125 

Legal implications  It is a statutory requirement to produce this plan on an annual basis. 
 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi 
sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising from this report.  
 
Contact officer: Donna Sheffield 
donna.sheffield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774972 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

None 
Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 10
Page 133



 

   

Health & Safety Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 2 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Key risks Reactive regulatory services will given their inherent nature always contain 
the potential for an element of risk.  An unplanned event (e.g. a serious 
injury or fatality) will require the diversion of resources away from 
scheduled plans.  However, this is and will remain the essence of the 
service we deliver and will be tolerated and monitored throughout the plan 
with priority given to the appropriate control of high risk issues. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The Health & Safety Service Plan supports the council’s community 
objectives: 

• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
• Strengthening our communities. 

Our health and safety service contributes to all of these in the overall 
improvement in the wellbeing of those who live, visit and work in 
Cheltenham. 

 

1. Background 
1.1 Section 18 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 (HSWA) puts a duty on Local 

Authorities (LAs) to make adequate arrangements for enforcement.  
1.2 The Section 18 Standard sets out the broader requirements for Enforcing Authorities (EAs) when 

complying with this duty.  
1.3 Full compliance with this standard is mandatory for all EAs from 31 March 2011.  This was 

achieved here in Cheltenham by the successful introduction of flexible warranting as part of a 
County wide project.  

1.4 Service plans are seen to be an important part of the process to ensure national priorities and 
standards are addressed and delivered locally. Service plans also: 
Ï focus debate on key delivery issues; 
Ï provide an essential link with financial planning; 
Ï set objectives for the future, and identify major issues that cross service boundaries; and 
Ï provide a means of managing performance and making performance comparisons 
• Implement national statutory guidance such as the recently released National Local Authority 

Enforcement Code. 
 

1.5 The plan is required to be submitted to Members for approval. 
2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 It is a statutory requirement for Local Authorities to make adequate arrangements for enforcement 

under the Health and Safety At Work Act 1974. 
3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 No alternative options are available due to the statutory nature of this service.  

Page 134



 

   

Health & Safety Service Plan Cabinet Report Page 3 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 County and regional initiatives and priorities are discussed with HSE and other LAs in the South 

West region. There is a Gloucestershire workplan for occupational health and safety as well as 
Cheltenham Borough Council specific plan.  

4.2 A copy of the plan is available on the Council website 
5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 Performance against the Health and Safety Service Plan takes place on a monthly basis with the 

production of an annual statutory data return.  

Report author Contact officer: Sarah Clark , Public & Environmental Health Team 
Leader 
sarah.clark@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 77 5002 

Appendices Risk Assessment 
Background information Health & Safety Service Plan 2013-14 

Page 135



 

   
$vuvaavsb.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1 Any risks associated with 
equality impact 

SC 04.06.13 1 1 1 A N/A - accept    
2 Any environmental risks SC 04.06.13 1 1 1 A N/A - accept    
3 Lack of staff resource due 

to vacant post/s or staff 
illness resulting in failure to 
investigate 
fatalities/accidents/health 
and safety related incidents 
and deliver interventions  

SC  06.06.13 4 2 8 R Contingency plan: 
a)re-deployment of 
dual-competency staff 
to cover short-term 
resource issues (eg 
from EP, Food Safety 
or management) b) 
temporary contract 
with agency staff (as 
they will be suitably 
qualified and 
competent) c) use of 
resource from 
neighbouring district 
short term (mutual aid) 
d) request 
authorisation to recruit 
into vacant post if 
situation occurs e) re-
prioritisation of work 
plan to focus on most 
risky activities 
 

In place SC Already 
on dept 
risk 
register 

4 Lack of short term resource 
due to major emergency or 
incident resulting in failure 
to deliver statutory function 
and protect employees and 
the public from risk of injury 

SC 06.06.13 3 3 6 R Likely to be short-term 
if risk is realised so 
can reduce risk with 
mitigation: a) mutual 
aid from neighbouring 
districts to cover high 

In place SC Yes - dept 

P
age 136



 

   
$vuvaavsb.doc Page 5 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

or illness risk notifications or 
complaint 
investigation 
(arrangement through 
Glos H&S Liaison 
Group)  b) notification 
to HSE of incident and 
possible impact on 
performance c) use of 
agency contract staff 
to backfill if necessary 

5 Loss of Idox Uni-Form as a 
stable case management 
system (ie risk data relating 
to any business in 
Cheltenham cannot be 
accessed, complaint 
information cannot be 
retrieved and priority based 
interventions cannot be 
planned)  

SC 06.06.13 4 4 16 R  Reduce risk by: a) 
reporting all issues to 
ICT and user group 
rep b) have now 
produced paper 
versions of inspection 
forms and Legal 
Notices etc  c) 
reliance on paper files 
and internet data to 
produce skeleton 
plans for interventions 
d) Idox consultant 
booked regarding 
statutory returns such 
as LAE1 do not work 
from Uniform (visit 
cannot take place until 
current stability issues 
resolved by ICT/Idox – 
June 2013 hopefully) 

Determined 
by ICT 

SC Yes – 
dept but 
also 
flagged 
on 
business 
continuity 
etc for 
past 18 
months 
approx 

 

 

 

P
age 137



 

   
$vuvaavsb.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

6 Further change of direction 
in guidance from central 
Government or HSE eg 
priority planned inspections 
or poor performers 

SC 06.06.13 2 2 4 A Accept risk as must 
follow statutory 
guidance. Risk score 
of 4 as new HSE 
guidance has been 
released this month to 
inform local authority 
work and no more 
changes indicated for 
this FY. Interim 
guidance if released 
would have an 
implementation 
period.  
 

In place SC On dept 
risk 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 

 

P
age 138



Public Protection Department   Page 1 of 6  

 
 

 
 

HEALTH & SAFETY  
SERVICE PLAN 

2013-14 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



Public Protection Department   Page 2 of 6  

Service Obligations 
 

The Council has a statutory duty to enforce the provisions of the Health and Safety at 
Work etc Act 1974, and associated regulations in all premises for which it has 
enforcement duties under the Health and Safety (Enforcing Authority) Regulations 1998. 
It also has a duty to adequately discharge its function in accordance with mandatory 
guidance from the Health and Safety Executive – section 18 standard. 

 
  

Background to Health & Safety Service Plans 
This Health and Safety Service Plan is a statutory document required under 
Section 18 guidance issued by the Health & Safety Executive (HSE).  
 
This Service Plan sets out how Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC) will fulfil its statutory 
duty within the financial year 2013-2014 and details the priorities, aims and objectives for 
the enforcement of health and safety along with the mechanisms and arrangements for 
ensuring the effective delivery of the service. 

 
 

Section 18 Standard 
Section 18 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 (HSWA) puts a duty on the 
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and Local Authorities (LAs) to make adequate 
arrangements for enforcement. The Standard sets out the arrangements that LAs should 
put in place to meet this duty.  
In complying with their duties under Section 18, Enforcing Authorities (EAs) are required 
to follow the HSE Enforcement Policy Statement (EPS) on the purpose, method and 
principles of enforcement.  
The Section 18 Standard adds to the EPS, setting out the broader requirements for EAs 
when complying with their duty to make ‘adequate arrangements for enforcement’.  

 
Full compliance with the standard was mandatory from 1st April 2011.  This was achieved 
in Cheltenham by working in partnership with neighbouring authorities and the HSE in the 
delivery of Work Well Gloucestershire project.  

 
 

Service Aims and Priorities 
 

Overall Aim of the Service 
 

“To work with others to protect people's health and safety by ensuring risks in the 
changing workplace are managed properly.” 

 
Our key priorities are: 

 
• To manage the risk in high risk, poor performing and/or rogue trader businesses - 
a targeted approach to risk in line with the Better Regulation agenda 

 
• Investigating major injury incidents and fatalities  

 
• To ensure enforcement decisions are consistent with our Enforcement Policy, the 
HSE's Enforcement Policy Statement and the Enforcement Management Model - 
ensures proportionate, consistent, transparent and accountable enforcement 

 
• Train and develop our staff to ensure competence - encourages staff 
retention/recruitment and ensures credibility with local businesses 

Page 140



Public Protection Department   Page 3 of 6  

 
Links to Council Strategy 

 
The Council strategy sets out three community objectives: 

 
• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
 
• Strengthening our communities. 

 
Our health and safety service contributes to all of these in the overall improvement in the 
wellbeing of those who live, visit and work in Cheltenham. 

 
A key driver is that we provide value for money services that effectively meet the needs of 
our customers.   

 
 
Scope of the Service 

 
The Health and Safety (Enforcing Authority) Regulations 1998 determine which 
businesses are enforced by the Council and which are enforced by the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE).  The Council aims to provide a full range of services offering a balanced 
approach between education and enforcement for all work places within our enforcement 
remit.  This Service does not cover Health and Safety for the Council itself which is 
enforced by HSE and does not form part of this plan. 

 
  The majority of commercial premises in the Borough are small or medium sized 

enterprises (SMEs) employing less than 50 staff with retail and office premises 
accounting for a high percentage. These businesses have fewer resources to carry out in-
house monitoring and do not have access to the support and training provided by multi-
national companies. Health and Safety Officers may, therefore, find themselves spending 
a disproportionate amount of time working with smaller businesses than they would with 
much larger companies.   

 
  National, regional and local statistics provide evidence that the topics identified as 

priorities are those that cause injury and ill health at work and the aim is to concentrate 
time and effort on these areas where an impact on the reduction of work related accidents 
and ill health can be shown.  

 
The estimated economic cost of health and safety ill health incidents (accidents and ill 
health) in Cheltenham is between £24.7 million and £37.8 million. The estimated cost for 
accidents in Cheltenham is between £7.6 million and £13.8 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



Public Protection Department   Page 4 of 6  

 
Service Delivery 

 
 The Health and Safety function is delivered by Public Protection Department which 

includes two FTEs dedicated to H&S regulation (NB in 2012-13 the service operated on 
the equivalent of 1.58 FTE due to extended jury service and a secondment).  

 
Competence is an essential aspect of service delivery and must comply with the Section 
18 standard.  All regulators undertake the RDNA (regulators development needs analysis 
tool) which is mirrored in the Council’s Learning Gateway which captures their 
development needs as part of the annual appraisal process.  

 
Officers delivering the service are responsible for the following work areas: 
 

• health and safety regulation, including inspections and requests for service 
• investigation of reported accidents, dangerous occurrences and cases of 

occupational ill health 
• advisory and promotional activities 
• investigation of complaints relating to premises, practices and procedures 
• the responsible authority in relation to public safety for licensing 

applications 
• responsible authority for planning applications 
• attendance at Event Consultative Groups or Safety Advisory Groups as 

necessary to advise on matters of public safety and health and safety at 
work 

• registration/licensing of practices such tattooing, skin piercers, 
acupuncture, electrolysis and the provision of advice to emerging sectors 
such as novel beauty treatments.  

  
We will deliver our H&S service in accordance with recently reviewed Advice/Guidance to 
Local Authorities on Targeting Interventions (now on revision 3):  
http://www.hse.gov.uk/lau/lacs/67-2.htm .  This guidance gives national priorities for both 
proactive and reactive intervention.  National guidance published in the last few years was 
that local authorities must reduce proactive inspections by a third. As a result, the 
emphasis is much more on topic-based inspections according to risk and at only visiting a 
premises when there is a genuine reason to do so. As part of central government’s red 
tape challenge,   the Health and Safety Executive have released a Local Authority 
National Code for enforcement which is a risk based approach for targeting health and 
safety interventions and recognises the respective roles of business and the regulator 
in the management of risk. The Code contains a list of activities/sectors suitable for 
targeting proactive inspection  by Local Authorities. This list has been considered by the 
County Health and Safety Group  when formulating the 2013-14 workplan. (see below). 
 
Performance monitoring and review 
There are no national indicators relating to health and safety enforcement and guidance 
from central government is that proactive inspections are to reduce by a third year on 
year. Therefore, local performance indicators have been chosen that reflect service 
standards for incident and complaint investigation and statutory return fields. An 
evaluation against district and county workplans would be included in the review of 2013-
14 in the 2014-15 service plan. Please see ‘service performance review’ for more further 
details.  
 
A monthly review of performance against those indicators is carried out as part of officer 
121s. Performance is also discussed at team meetings and management meetings as 
well as at the county health and safety liaison group (at which the HSE is represented).  
 
 

Page 142



Public Protection Department   Page 5 of 6  

 

Investigation of Complaints 
 
 Complaints received about workplace activities we regulate are dealt with in accordance 

with the criteria of the Section 18 standard.  A complaint is a concern, originating from 
outside CBC, in relation to a work activity for which we are the enforcing authority, that is 
sufficiently specific to enable identification of the issue and the dutyholder and/or location 
and that either: 

• has caused or has potential to cause significant harm, or alleges the denial 
of basic employee welfare facilities, or  

• appears to constitute a significant breach of law for which we are the 
enforcing authority  

 
Investigation of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences at Work 

 
Over 100 accidents, work related ill health or dangerous occurrences at work are reported 
to CBC each year under the Reporting of Injuries and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR). Reported accidents and incidents are investigated in 
accordance with LAC 22/13 – Incident Selection Criteria Guidance 
http://www.hse.gov.uk/lau/lacs/22-13.htm  
 
Liaison with other organisations  

 
The Health and Safety Service actively participates in liaison arrangements with a number 
of other local authorities, agencies and professional organisations in order to facilitate 
consistent enforcement, share good practice and reduce duplication of effort. 

  
 The service represents and actively participates in the Gloucestershire Health and Safety 

Group, comprising of peer representatives from each of the six District and Borough 
Councils in the County and also a local representative from the Health and Safety 
Executive. The group have produced a workplan to tackle cross-county issues and these 
proactive inspections with be compliant with the new national Code for L.A.s. The priority 
areas for Gloucestershire in 2013-14 are: event safety; legionella, the beauty sector 
(which has seen some deregulation in times of emerging novel special treatments); 
asbestos and gas safety. 

  
 
Service Performance Review 
 
The following table summarises the interventions undertaken in 2012-13: 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Intervention Number of businesses 
reached 

Reactive complaint investigations 33 including 10 visits  
RIDDOR accident investigations 19 
Duty to manage asbestos 
interventions 

10 
Other interventions eg liquid nitrogen, 
gas safety, work-related violence, 
noise at work 

34 

Licensing and planning consultations 11 
Requests for advice 30 

 
 
 

Page 143



Public Protection Department   Page 6 of 6  

Performance targets for 2013-14 
 

Intervention Target for 2013-14 
Reactive complaint investigations  Initial investigation within 3 working days 

for 95% of actionable complaints/requests 
for service 

RIDDOR accident investigations 98% actioned within 2 working days of 
notification where investigation criteria are 
met 

Event safety advice 100% attendance at relevant Event 
Consultative Groups  
 
100% of requests for advice actioned 
within 3 working days 
 

Legionella interventions 95% of planned interventions delivered 
Beauty sector project 95% of target premises to receive specific 

guidance and/or visits 
Asbestos  Action 100% of all ASB5 notifications (for 

asbestos removal) within 3 working days 
or before the 10 day notification period 
begins (whichever is soonest) 
 
Action 98% of Duty to Manage Asbestos 
service requests (DTM) within 3 working 
days 
 

Gas safety in commercial premises Action 98% of referrals of matters of 
evident concern within 3 working days.  

Work related violence Action 100% of referrals from 
Gloucestershire Police where the criteria 
have been met.  

Planning & licensing consultations  98% response within the statutory 
consultation period (varies according to 
application) 

 

Page 144



 

   

   

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Housing Options Review 
Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis, Executive Director 
Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes   
Executive summary Housing Options delivers the Council’s statutory duties towards households 

who are homeless or in housing need, as required under the Housing Act 
1996. The service performs well and the staff work with and provide support 
to some of the most vulnerable people within the community of Cheltenham. 
Last year the Council adopted its new Housing and Homelessness Strategy 
in response to welfare reforms.  The strategy outlines the outcomes the 
Council wishes to achieve to prevent homelessness in the Borough.   
The council has undertaken a review of the Housing Options service to 
make sure that it was fit for purpose and also to consider how the service 
may be commissioned in the future.  A report was presented to Cabinet in 
December 2012 setting out two potential commissioning options available; 
in-house provision or, alternatively, to transfer the service to a registered 
provider, in this case the Council’s Arms Length Management Organisation 
(ALMO), Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH). 
 
The housing options team undertook a systems thinking review following 
which there was a redesign of the way in which they deliver the service to 
meet the challenges arising from welfare reform.  This ensured that the 
current service was delivering the desired outcomes as set out in the 
Housing and Homelessness Strategy.  Once this was completed, work has 
been undertaken to consider the implications of transferring the service to 
CBH and also to develop a service specification based on the redesigned 
provision which will deliver the outcomes as set out in the Housing and 
Homelessness Strategy.   
CBH has an excellent performance record and therefore there are limited 
risks in transferring the service to them.  CBH have already had experience 
of transferring services to them when the estate cleaning service moved to 
them in 2009. The current Housing Options Team will transfer to CBH under 
the Transfer of Undertakings (protection of employment) Regulations 2006 
(TUPE) and therefore there will be continuity of service delivery but also 
over time there will be opportunities to align delivery and look at potential 
service improvements which will further enhance this important service for 
some of our most vulnerable residents.  The council will continue to provide 
its strategic housing function along with its responsibilities relating to 
housing enabling and Supporting People and those aspects which cannot 
be delegated to CBH as set out in the legal implications of this report. 
The intention is to transfer the service with effect from 1 December 2013 
under a contract for services which will expire on 31 March 2020, so that it 
aligns to the existing housing management agreement that the council has 
with CBH. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 145



 

   

   

 

Recommendations 1. To transfer the Housing Options service (as specified in appendix 2) 
to CBH by 1 December 2013 under a contract for services to expire on 
31 March 2020. 
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Commissioning in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Safety to 
finalise the specification and contract for services. 
3. Note that the Council’s Housing Options staff whose roles fall within 
the scope of the list of services outlined in appendix 2 will transfer to 
CBH on the date the services transfer in accordance with the Transfer 
of Undertaking (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006. 

Financial implications The financial implications are set out in section 4 of the report 
Contact officer:   Paul Jones, Head of Finance, GO shared services, 
01242 775154 paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

Page 146



 

   

   

 

Legal implications Part VI and VII of the Housing Act 1996 contain the provisions on the 
council’s functions in relation to allocation of housing and homelessness 
prevention and the legal determination of applications. By virtue of the Local 
Authorities (Contracting Out of Allocation of Housing and Homelessness 
Functions) Order 1996 the Council will be able to authorise CBH to exercise 
those functions contained in Part VI and Part VII of the Housing Act 1996 
with the exception of: 

� Adopting or altering the allocation scheme including the principles 
on which the scheme is made and consulting with Registered 
Providers. 

� Section 179(2) and (3) - power to give assistance to any person 
providing advisory services about homelessness and the prevention 
of homelessness by the means specified in the Section which 
include assistance by way of grant, loan and use of council 
premises or assets. 

� Section 180 – power to give assistance to voluntary organisations 
concerned with homelessness or matters relating to the homeless 
by the means specified in the Section which include assistance by 
way of grant, loan and use of council premises or assets. 

If the service is contracted out to CBH the Council will still have a duty as 
the local housing authority to comply with Sections 1 – 3 of the 
Homelessness Act 2002 (carrying out reviews and publishing new 
homelessness strategies within five years of publication of the current 
strategy) and also to keep the Council’s tenancy strategy under review and 
publish any modifications under Sections 150-151 of the Localism Act 2011. 
The effect of provisions of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 is 
that the Council will still remain statutorily responsible and accountable for 
the discharge of the functions that have been contracted out. Unless an 
exemption relating to criminal proceedings or failure to fulfil contract 
conditions applies, the acts of the contractor are, in effect, the acts of the 
Council. 
As CBH is a company wholly owned by the Council, the Council can engage 
the company to carry out the Housing Options services without having to 
undertake a competitive EU procurement process by relying on the ‘Teckal’ 
case. This case provides an exemption to compliance with the EU 
procurement rules. 
 
If CBH is to undertake this service no changes to its Articles of Association 
will be necessary as they already permit CBH to provide services of any 
description for Cheltenham Borough Council. As there will need to be 
detailed provisions about the services to be contracted out it is advisable to 
enter into a separate contract for services with CBH rather than amend the 
current management agreement. 
 
Contact officer: Donna Ruck, Solicitor, 
donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272696 

Page 147



 

   

   

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

The proposed Transfer of Undertaking (Protection of Employment) 
Regulations 2006. (TUPE) would potentially impact 9 or 10 current 
employees (depending on the timings of a transfer). However Cheltenham 
Borough Homes status as an admitted body for the pension scheme, and 
having no plans for a major restructure post transfer the actual impact on 
the transferring employees would be minimal as they would retain all their 
terms and conditions including pension rights.. 
Contact officer: Richard Hall, HR business partner, GO shared 
services.  01594 812634  richard.hall@fdean.gov.uk 
 

Key risks See appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The outcomes for tackling homelessness are contained within the Council’s 
Housing and Homelessness Strategy adopted by Cabinet on 17 July 2012.  
The commissioning review is an action within CBC’s Corporate Plan.  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background 
1.1 Housing Options delivers the Council’s statutory duties towards households who are homeless, 

threatened with homelessness or in housing need, as required under the Housing Act 1996.  If a 
person is homeless or at risk of losing their home, Housing Options advise on what options exist 
to enable householders to stay in their own home. The team also advise on what other housing 
options may exist for householders. Their priority is preventing homelessness. The team also 
carry out the assessment of homelessness applications and are responsible for determining an 
individual’s homelessness status within the terms of the law and using best practice guidance.  

1.2 The Housing Options Team deliver a number of preventative services to its customers to help 
them avoid becoming homeless in the first instance.  These services include guidance and 
support to increase financial capability which may help householders to remain in their current 
accommodation or secure private rented accommodation. The service also signposts applicants 
to other services/agencies where appropriate and provides advice and guidance on adaptations 
to existing accommodation, again, where this may assist an applicant remaining in their existing 
home. 

1.3 The Housing Options Team also operate Gloucestershire Homeseeker which is the 
Gloucestershire’s Choice Based Lettings system for letting social housing.  It is a partnership 
formed between the 6 Gloucestershire district councils and many of the housing associations and 
social landlords, also known as registered providers. 

2. Strategic Context 
2.1 The strategic context for the review is clearly set out in the Housing and Homelessness Strategy 

2012-17. The Localism Act 2011, and the social housing reform contained within it, brought about 
changes to the statutory homelessness duties and social tenure reform.  The Welfare Reform Act 
2012, legislated for the biggest change to the welfare system for over 60 years. Most significant 
are changes to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) scheme which began in May 2011 leading up 
the introduction of Universal Credit in 2013. 

Page 148



 

   

   

 

2.2 Prior to the significant changes brought about through legislation, Cabinet had already 
determined that it wished to consider how Housing Options services should be commissioned so 
that it could effectively meet the challenges of welfare reform and in recognition that it had already 
made significant savings in the housing area with the reduction of two senior housing 
management posts .Therefore the business case for transferring the service is about service 
resilience and more co-ordinated use of resources than any short term aim of delivering savings. 

2.3 Although the Housing Options service is a statutory function, the council will face further budget 
pressures through the life of the MTFS. CBH is a top performing ALMO and has the capacity and 
resources to ensure that the employees within the Housing Options service have access to the 
necessary support and that they will be operating within a single focused organisation which may 
lead to efficiency savings in the longer term. 

2.4 The rationale for considering transferring the service to CBH include: 

• Alignment of Housing Options and CBH Neighbourhood Services may increase the potential to 
develop solutions of mutual benefit based where there is a shared understanding of the needs 
of both services and also the fact that both services are Cheltenham centric. 

• Increasing tenant, leaseholder and resident relationships, by creating a more seamless service 
from provision of housing advice to the offer of a tenancy. 

• Aligned priorities, e.g., both Housing Options and CBH are working separately to build financial 
capability of households following the implementation of welfare reforms. 

• Existing tenancy management resources/expertise which may assist with the development of 
new initiatives, e.g., Social Lettings Agency for the private rented sector. 

• Greater service resilience in terms of advice and assistance due to wider pool of internal 
expertise. 

• Ability to use resources more effectively enabling CBC to use its strategic housing capacity to 
develop more effective working relationships with all registered providers and private sector 
landlords to assist in mitigating the impacts of welfare reform and its wider housing agenda.  

• Development of a single focus for all housing related activity for delivery of CBC housing 
functions. Over time the council may look to passport other housing related services to CBH if 
there is an appropriate strategic fit. 

• CBH have a track record of delivering services which add social value by improving the 
economic, environmental and social well being of an area.   

3. Commissioning Housing Options – Service Outline 
3.1 Vision 
3.1.1 The Council’s Housing & Homelessness Strategy 2012-17 states that our vision is, ‘for residents 

to be able to access and maintain suitable, affordable accommodation within communities that 
are safer, stronger and healthier.’  

3.1.2 The Housing Options service will play a key role in supporting this vision by focussing on a 
number of outcomes identified within the housing strategy.  

3.2 Outcomes and aims 
3.2.1 The primary outcome of the service is to prevent homelessness. There are also a number of 

secondary outcomes which will support our overall approach to tackling homelessness. These 
outcomes are as follows 

Page 149



 

   

   

 

Primary Outcome: 

• To prevent homelessness 
 
Secondary Outcomes: 

• To reduce unmanageable debt 
• To prevent future debt arising 
• To maximise incomes  
• To improve access into the private rented sector for low income households 

 
 

3.2.2 Officers from CBC are liaising with CBH over the development of a draft specification which will 
form the basis of the contract.  Set out at appendix 2 are functions which will transfer to CBH..  As 
a commissioned service, Cheltenham Borough Council will seek to ensure that the Housing 
Options service maintains its own identity in order to preserve impartiality. We will also wish to 
ensure that it remains flexible and innovative in its approach to responding appropriately to new 
and emerging housing need (e.g. as a result of the Welfare Reform).   

3.3 Priorities for service delivery 
3.3.1 CBH have confirmed that they recognise that the current service is effective and therefore in 

transferring services it is important that the service continues to deliver high quality support to the 
most vulnerable in our community. 

 
3.3.2 It is recognised that the provision of preventative services is more cost effective than tackling 

issues at the point of crisis. This approach will continue with the transfer of the service to CBH as 
it is beneficial both for individual residents and for communities at large. An area of particular 
importance is to continue to develop our ability to alleviate homelessness by accommodating 
households in the private rented sector. 

 
3.3.3 Welfare Reform means that there is a greater risk for our most vulnerable residents to fall into 

debt and become homeless. It will be expected that a clear emphasis on improving the financial 
inclusion and capability of individuals, alongside advice provision about their benefit entitlement, 
will continue to be a critical component of the service’s early intervention homelessness 
prevention work. CBH have invested resources in this area and there will be an opportunity to 
share best practice and ensure advice etc is targeted as appropriate. 

3.3.4 The role of the Housing Options service is to ensure the range of homelessness duties are 
adhered to, in accordance with the homelessness legislation. In order to preserve impartiality, the 
roles within housing options will continue to remain clear and distinct from housing/estate/arrears 
management functions, with the final decision on questions of dispute between housing options 
and housing management functions resting with the Council. 

3.3.5 All households will be given assistance, where required, and will be assessed for eligibility, 
prioritisation, and their circumstances verified in accordance with Gloucestershire Homeseeker 
Allocations Policy.  

3.3.6 Partnership arrangements within the Housing Options service will remain in place whilst they 
remain of benefit to the operational delivery of this service 

3.3.7 The Council will be able to retain adequate access to the operational team in order to ensure that 
operational/strategic links remain intact and that communication remains effective between this 
Service and the retained housing-related elements within the Council 

Page 150



 

   

   

 

3.3.8 The Service will continue to engage with its service-users and find new ways to engage better, 
with a view to bringing about continued service improvement. 

 
4. Financial and HR issues 
4.1 It is proposed that £346,000 of the current 13/14 homelessness budget will be used to pay the 

contract sum for CBH to deliver the housing options service. This balance will be pro rated based 
on the agreed date of transfer.  
The key balances within the annual £346,000 budget to transfer are split as follows:- 
          
    £'000   
       
  Salaries (including employers NI and pension contributions)  240   
  Operational costs e.g. storage and net B&B costs   37   
  Accommodation - rent, service, and admin costs  30   
  Costs relating to deposit/loan & the Sanctuary schemes  20   
  Other overheads  19   
       
    346   
          

4.2 Not all of the costs of the service fall on the general fund as the housing options service already 
charges a proportion of its time to the housing revenue account (HRA) and this process of 
charging time to the HRA will continue in the future.   
In 2013/14, a recharge of £102,000 has been budgeted. The recharge is based upon the 
proportion of staff time dedicated to supporting CBC residents/allocations to CBC property versus 
time spent supporting non CBC residents/allocations to non CBC property. 
The basis for the recharge will be reviewed annually to ensure that it truly reflects the operation of 
the service. 

4.3 CBH has confirmed that it will deliver the service within the existing agreed budget. This is on the 
basis that until the welfare reforms are fully embedded it is hard to anticipate how savings will be 
delivered.  However, CBH will review the service over time and identify opportunities to deliver 
savings for the MTFS where possible.  
CBH will endeavour to deliver future growth in service on a cost neutral basis. Where extra costs 
are necessary, sign off will be sought from CBC prior to any commitment to expenditure. 

4.4 It has been agreed that the budget will be reviewed annually. Any savings/overspends against 
budget during the year will be passed back via the recharge mechanism at the year end. Hence, 
CBH will remain in a cost neutral position. CBH will liaise regularly with CBC on year to date 
progress to ensure that CBC are fully aware of significant variances if and when they arise.  

4.5 The council will continue to have a Housing and Communities Manager who will monitor 
performance of the contract and deliver the councils strategic responsibilities for housing and 
homelessness.  They will manage and oversee the use of the Communities and Local 
Government’s Homelessness Prevention Fund, along with the range of homelessness prevention 
services commissioned by different providers through the provision of this fund.  This will enable 
the council to use its funds more flexibly and undertake joint commissioning with other districts or 
the county council (through supporting people) as appropriate.  This post will oversee the work of 
the housing enabling officer and will continue to have strong links to the planning team within the 

Page 151



 

   

   

 

built environment division. 
4.6 The 10 employees within the Housing Options team will transfer to CBH under TUPE 

arrangements.  The council is experienced in undertaking such a process through previous 
arrangements such as Onelegal, Go shared services, and the more recent ICT shared services.  

4.7 Upon TUPE of staff from CBC to CBH, a pension deficit liability will crystallise within CBC’s 
pension fund. As this liability will initially crystallise as a lump sum liability, CBC will need to liaise 
with the Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund and the actuaries to agree a repayment 
plan going forwards. It should be noted that there may be a potential to recharge some of the 
deficit contributions into the HRA. An appropriate basis for any recharge will need to be 
established.  

4.8 Governance issues 
4.9 The council has a management agreement with CBH for the services it provides in relation to the 

management of the council’s housing stock.  It is proposed however that given that the majority of 
the Housing Options service is in relation to general fund statutory functions that the Council 
enters into a separate contract with CBH. The monitoring of this contract can be carried out 
through the existing management agreement and liaison meetings.  

5. Implementation 
5.1 If Cabinet approve the transfer of the service to CBH then the service specification and contract 

will need to be finalised. CBH also need time to ensure that the service is integrated effectively 
within their own management structures. Staff within the Housing Options Team will be fully 
involved in shaping the implementation timetable to ensure that there is a smooth handover to 
CBH.  It is anticipated that implementation will take five months and therefore the new service can 
be operational from 1 December 2013. 

6. Alternative options considered 
6.1 The Cabinet report in December set out the alternative options for service delivery and at the time 

concluded that the only viable delivery options were in-house and delivery through CBH.  The 
council could choose to keep its housing options functions in house but given that the council has 
identified savings in its MTFS by reducing the number of senior managers, the more services 
which are kept inhouse reduces the ability to make such savings. It would also not align with the 
vision of having CBH as our housing service provider of choice. 

7. Consultation and feedback 
7.1 A small officer project team, comprising the Housing and Communities Manager and members of 

the Housing Options team, plus other officers, conducted the work within phase one of the review.  
Subsequently a project team headed by the Executive Director, Grahame Lewis and including 
representatives from CBH was set up to finalise the business case for the transfer of the service 
to CBH. . Consultation has taken place with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Safety. 

7.2 CBH have taken their own legal advice in relation to the proposals and there were no issues of 
concern which have been raised. 

7.3 The Housing Options Team and CBH management have been informed of the review and will be 
consulted further during the implementation stage. 

7.4 The strategy committee of CBH will be meeting on 5 June and any comments they have will be 
fed back to cabinet at its meeting on 18 June.  A briefing paper has also been issued to all CBH 

Page 152



 

   

   

 

board members. 

8. Performance management –monitoring and review 
8.1 The service will be monitored through the contract arrangements that we currently have in place 

for CBH. This includes regular liaison meetings both at officer and cabinet member level. The 
service will be kept under review to ensure that it is delivering the outcomes which the Council 
wish to be delivered and that it is innovative and flexible to adapt to changes which may arise due 
to legislation, welfare reform or demographics. 

9. Equality impact assessment 
9.1 CBH have a well defined equalities policy and processes in place and the housing options service 

will be delivered in accordance with these policies. There are no equality issues resulting from the 
transfer of employees. 
 

Report author Contact officer: Grahame Lewis, Executive Director and Lead 
Commissioner 
Grahame.Lewis@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264312 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Functions to be contracted to CBH 

Background information  
 

Page 153



Risk Assessment – Housing Options Report – 11 December 2012         Appendix 1  
 

   
\\vmbusdata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\7\AI00005761\$doswa55u.doc Page 10 of 14 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

 
The risk Original risk score 

(impact x likelihood) 
Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to risk 
register 

1 If the Housing 
Options service is 
not commissioned 
so that there is a 
requirement for 
innovation and 
creativity in service 
delivery then 
opportunities may 
be missed to 
increase the 
effectiveness of 
homelessness 
prevention services 

Martin 
Stacy 

30.04.13 3 4 12 Reduce The specification 
or service plan will 
require the 
provider to 
demonstrate the 
ability to 
innovative and 
implement 
creative solutions 
to improve and 
enhance the 
homelessness 
prevention service 
in consultation 
with the Council 
 
The Council will 
retain strategic 
elements of the 
homelessness 
service and 
determine 
spending priorities 
from the CLG 
homelessness 
prevention fund. 
This will be 
conducted in 
consultation with 
CBH. 
 
 
 

01.12.13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

P
age 154



Risk Assessment – Housing Options Report – 11 December 2012         Appendix 1  
 

   
\\vmbusdata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\7\AI00005761\$doswa55u.doc Page 11 of 14 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

  
 

2 If the Council and 
the Housing Options 
Service fail to 
maintain effective 
channels of 
communication, then 
strategic-operational 
links and 
understanding may 
be lost, to the 
detriment of 
maintaining quality 
service delivery and 
effective strategic 
direction. 
 

Martin 
Stacy 

30.4.13 3 4 12 Reduce The specification 
service plan will 
require the 
provider to permit 
the council access 
to the Housing 
Options Team so 
that strategic-
operational 
linkages are not 
lost.  
 
Matters of 
relevance will also 
be considered 
during quarterly 
monitoring 
activities  

01.12.13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

P
age 155



Risk Assessment – Housing Options Report – 11 December 2012         Appendix 1  
 

   
\\vmbusdata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\7\AI00005761\$doswa55u.doc Page 12 of 14 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

3 If the Housing Options 
services once 
commissioned is not 
able to respond quickly 
to changing 
Government priorities 
and emerging local 
needs then this may 
mean the service is not 
able to respond to 
households in housing 
need 

Martin 
Stacy 

20.9.12 3 4 12 Reduce The specification or 
service plan will 
require the provider 
to demonstrate how 
they are able to 
accommodate 
flexibility within their 
service delivery 
arrangements 
 
The Council will 
continue to hold 
CLG homelessness 
prevention fund and 
will determine 
spending priorities 
in accordance with 
its wider strategic 
aims. These 
priorities will be 
determined in 
consultation with 
CBH.  
 
CBH have already 
demonstrated that 
they can be flexible 
to deliver against 
changing priorities 
 
 

01.12.13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

4 If Housing Options is 
transferred to CBH, then 
any operational 
improvements may  
focus more on 
delivering improved 
services to tenants, 

Martin 
Stacy 

30.4.13 3 4 12 Reduce The specification 
service plan will 
require the provider 
to consult with the 
Council on service 
delivery changes.  
 

01.12. 13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

P
age 156



Risk Assessment – Housing Options Report – 11 December 2012         Appendix 1  
 

   
\\vmbusdata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\7\AI00005761\$doswa55u.doc Page 13 of 14 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

which could 
inadvertently be to the 
detriment of other 
service users and non-
CBH (tenant) related 
homelessness 
prevention services 

Strategic elements 
and spending 
priorities will be 
retained with the 
Council and 
determined in 
consultation with 
CBH. 

5 If Housing Options is 
transferred to CBH then 
some residents may be 
unwilling to seek advice 
because they could feel 
the service may not 
treat them on an equal 
basis because of their 
previous 
tenancy/household 
history 

Martin 
Stacy 

4.10.12 2 4 8 Reduce A distinctive housing 
options branding of 
the service and a 
clear separation of 
neighbourhood 
(housing) 
management 
functions may help 
overcome this 
perception. 
However there are 
no legal implications 
for the service being 
delivered by CBH 
and indeed before 
the set up of CBH 
the service was 
successfully 
managed in it’s 
entirety by the 
Council as a joint 
homelessness and 
housing 
management 
function,. 
 

01.12.13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

6 If Housing Options is 
transferred to CBH then 
the Housing Options 
Service’s ability to 

Martin 
Stacy 

30.4.13 1 6 6 Reduce Information could 
still be obtained 
indirectly via 
Housing Benefit 

01.12.13 Housing and 
communities 
manager 

Commissioning  

P
age 157



Risk Assessment – Housing Options Report – 11 December 2012         Appendix 1  
 

   
\\vmbusdata\mgdataroot\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\7\AI00005761\$doswa55u.doc Page 14 of 14 Last updated 06 June 2013 
 

access Housing Benefit 
data directly through 
data sharing 
arrangements will be 
lost as a result of data 
protection legislation. 

staff, although this 
will be a slower 
mechanism.  
Data sharing 
protocol to be 
established 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 158



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

Ho
us

ing
 O

pti
on

s C
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 R
ev

iew
. L

ist
 of

 Le
gis

lat
ion

 an
d f

un
cti

on
s t

o b
e c

on
tra

cte
d t

o C
BH

 
 Th
e L
oc
al 
Au
tho
riti
es
 (C
on
tra
cti
ng
 O
ut 
of 
All
oc
ati
on
 of
 H
ou
sin
g a
nd
 H
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
 Fu

nc
tio
ns
) O
rde

r 1
99
6 p
erm

its
 an
y f
un
cti
on
 of
 an
 au
tho
rity
 

wh
ich
 is
 co
nfe
rre
d b
y o
r u
nd
er 
Pa
rt V

I (a
llo
ca
tio
n o
f h
ou
sin
g a
cc
om
mo
da
tio
n) 
an
d P

art
 VI
I (h

om
ele
ss
ne
ss
) o
f th
e H

ou
sin
g A

ct 
19
96
 to
 be
 

ex
erc
ise
d b
y a
ny
 pe
rso
n (
inc
lud
ing
 co
mp
an
ies
) a
s t
he
 au
tho
rity
 m
ay
 au
tho
ris
e w

ith
 th
e e
xc
ep
tio
n o
f th
e f
un
cti
on
s l
ist
ed
 in
 th
e s
ch
ed
ule
 of
 th
e 

Or
de
r. T

his
 ta
ble
 su
mm

ari
se
s t
he
 pr
ov
isio

ns
 of
 Pa

rt V
I a
nd
 VI
I o
f th
e A

ct 
an
d w

he
the
r th

e f
un
cti
on
s c
an
 be
 co
ntr
ac
ted
 ou
t u
nd
er 
the
 O
rde

r. I
t 

on
ly 
inc
lud
es
 se
cti
on
s r
ela
tin
g s
pe
cif
ica
lly 
to 
co
nfe
rrin

g d
uti
es
 an
d p
ow
ers
 up
on
 th
e a
uth
ori
ty 
an
d o
mi
ts 
all
 ot
he
r s
ec
tio
ns
 as
 th
es
e r
ela
te 
to 

po
int
s o
f d
eta
il (
e.g
. p
rov
isio

ns
 ab
ou
t p
ers
on
s e
lig
ibl
e f
or 
as
sis
tan
ce
, d
efi
nit
ion
s, 
ab
ility

 of
 th
e s
ec
ret
ary
 of
 st
ate
 to
 m
ak
e r
eg
ula
tio
ns
 et
c) 

 St
atu

tor
y P

ro
vis

ion
 

Su
mm

ary
 

Co
ntr

ac
tin

g O
ut 

to 
CB

H 
Pa

rt 
VI 

Al
loc

ati
on

 of
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 

 
 

S1
59
 Al
loc
ati
on
 of
 H
ou
sin
g 

Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

im
po
se
s 
the
 fu
nd
am
en
tal
 o
bli
ga
tio
n, 
wh
ich
 is
 th
at 
loc
al 

ho
us
ing
 a
uth
ori
tie
s m

us
t c
om
ply
 w
ith
 th
is 
Pa
rt 
of 
the
 A
ct 

wh
en
 al
loc
ati
ng
 ho
us
ing
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
. 

Ye
s 

S1
66
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r H
ou
sin
g 

Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

S1
66
(1)
 to
 se
cu
re 
tha
t 

(a)
 ad
vic
e a
nd
 in
for
ma
tio
n i
s a
va
ila
ble
 fre

e o
f c
ha
rge

 to
 

pe
rso
ns
 in
 th
eir
 di
str
ict
 ab
ou
t th
e r
igh
t to
 m
ak
e a
n 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n f
or 
an
 al
loc
ati
on
 of
 ho
us
ing
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
; 

an
d 

(b)
 an
y n
ec
es
sa
ry 
as
sis
tan
ce
 in
 m
ak
ing
 su
ch
 an
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n i
s a
va
ila
ble
 fre

e o
f c
ha
rge

 to
 pe
rso
ns
 in
 th
eir
 

dis
tric
t w
ho
 ar
e l
ike
ly 
to 
ha
ve
 di
ffic
ult
y i
n d
oin
g s
o w

ith
ou
t 

as
sis
tan
ce
. 

(1A
) s
ec
ure

 th
at 
an
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
for
 an
 al
loc
ati
on
 of
 ho
us
ing
 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 is
 in
for
me
d t
ha
t h
e h
as
 th
e r
igh
ts 

me
nti
on
ed
 in
 se
cti
on
 16
6A
(9)
. 

(3)
 Ev

ery
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n m

ad
e t
o a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
for
 

an
 al
loc
ati
on
 of
 ho
us
ing
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 sh
all
 (if
 m
ad
e i
n 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e p
roc
ed
ura

l re
qu
ire
me
nts
 of
 th
e 

au
tho
rity
’s 
all
oc
ati
on
 sc
he
me
) b
e c
on
sid
ere

d b
y t
he
 

au
tho
rity
. 

(4)
 T
he
 fa
ct 
tha
t a
 pe

rso
n i
s a
n a

pp
lica

nt 
for
 an

 al
loc
ati
on
 

of 
ho
us
ing
 a
cc
om
mo
da
tio
n 
sh
all
 n
ot 
be
 d
ivu
lge
d 
(w
ith
ou
t 

Ye
s 

Page 159



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

his
 co
ns
en
t) t
o a
ny
 ot
he
r m

em
be
r o
f th
e p
ub
lic.
 

S1
66
A A

llo
ca
tio
n i
n A

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

All
oc
ati
on
 Sc

he
me
: E
ng
lan
d 

Sp
ec
ifie
s t
ha
t e
ve
ry 
loc
al 
ho
us
ing
 au
tho
rity
 m
us
t h
av
e a
n 

all
oc
ati
on
 sc
he
me
 fo
r d
ete
rm
ini
ng
 pr
ior
itie
s a
nd
 as
 to
 th
e 

pro
ce
du
re 
to 
be
 fo
llo
we
d, 
in 
all
oc
ati
ng
 ho
us
ing
 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 an
d g
ive
s f
urt
he
r d
eta
ils 
on
 w
ha
t m
us
t b
e 

co
nta
ine
d i
n t
he
 sc
he
me
. 

 

No
 

S1
68
 In
for
ma
tio
n a
bo
ut 
all
oc
ati
on
 

sc
he
me
 

S1
68
 (1
) p
ub
lish

 a 
su
mm

ary
 of
 th
e a
llo
ca
tio
n s
ch
em
e a
nd
 

pro
vid
e a
 co
py
 of
 th
e s
um
ma
ry 
fre
e o
f c
ha
rge

 to
 an
y 

me
mb
er 
of 
the
 pu
bli
c w

ho
 as
ks
 fo
r o
ne
. 

(2)
 m
ak
e t
he
 sc
he
me
 av
ail
ab
le 
for
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a
t th
eir
 

pri
nc
ipa
l o
ffic
e a
nd
 sh
all
 pr
ov
ide
 a 
co
py
 of
 th
e s
ch
em
e, 
on
 

pa
ym
en
t o
f a
 re
as
on
ab
le 
fee
, to
 an
y m

em
be
r o
f th
e p
ub
lic 

wh
o a
sk
s f
or 
on
e. 

(3)
  W

he
n t
he
 au
tho
rity
 m
ak
e a
n a
lte
rat
ion
 to
 th
eir
 sc
he
me
 

ref
lec
tin
g a
 m
ajo
r c
ha
ng
e o
f p
oli
cy
, th
ey
 sh
all
 w
ith
in 
a 

rea
so
na
ble
 pe
rio
d o
f ti
me
 ta
ke
 su
ch
 st
ep
s a
s t
he
y c
on
sid
er 

rea
so
na
ble
 to
 br
ing
 th
e e
ffe
ct 
of 
the
 al
ter
ati
on
 to
 th
e 

att
en
tio
n o
f th
os
e l
ike
ly 
to 
be
 af
fec
ted
 by
 it.
 

 

Ye
s 

ex
ce
pt 

Se
cti
on
 

16
8(2

) 
(in
for
ma
tio
n 

ab
ou
t 

all
oc
ati
on
 

sc
he
me
) s
o 
far
 a
s 
the
y 
rel
ate
 to
 

ma
kin
g 

the
 
all
oc
ati
on
 
sc
he
me
 

av
ail
ab
le 

for
 i
ns
pe
cti
on
 a

t 
the
 

au
tho
rity
’s 
pri
nc
ipa
l o
ffic
e 

Pa
rt 

VII
 H

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 

 
 

S1
79
 D
uty
 of
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
to 

pro
vid
e a
dv
iso
ry 
se
rvi
ce
s 

S1
79
(1)
 – 
se
cu
re 
tha
t a
dv
ice
 an
d i
nfo
rm
ati
on
 ab
ou
t 

ho
me
les
sn
es
s a
nd
 th
e p
rev
en
tio
n o
f h
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
, is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
fre
e o
f c
ha
rge

 to
 an
y p
ers
on
 in
 th
eir
 di
str
ict
. 

(2)
 Th

e a
uth
ori
ty 
ma
y g
ive
 to
 an
y p
ers
on
 by
 w
ho
m 
su
ch
 

ad
vic
e a
nd
 in
for
ma
tio
n i
s p
rov
ide
d o
n b
eh
alf
 of
 th
e 

au
tho
rity
 as
sis
tan
ce
 by
 w
ay
 of
 gr
an
t o
r lo
an
. 

(3)
 A 
loc
al 
ho
us
ing
 au
tho
rity
 m
ay
 al
so
 as
sis
t a
ny
 su
ch
 

pe
rso
n—

 
(a)
 by
 pe
rm
itti
ng
 hi
m 
to 
us
e p
rem

ise
s b
elo
ng
ing
 to
 th
e 

au
tho
rity
, 

(b)
 by
 m
ak
ing
 av
ail
ab
le 
fur
nit
ure

 or
 ot
he
r g
oo
ds
, w
he
the
r 

Se
cti
on
 1
79
(1)
 to

 b
e 
co
ntr
ac
ted
 

ou
t.  

Page 160



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

by
 w
ay
 of
 gi
ft, 
loa
n o
r o
the
rw
ise
, a
nd
 

(c)
 by
 m
ak
ing
 av
ail
ab
le 
the
 se
rvi
ce
s o
f s
taf
f e
mp
loy
ed
 by
 

the
 au
tho
rity
. 

 
S1
80
 As

sis
tan
ce
 fo
r v
olu
nta
ry 

org
an
isa
tio
ns
 

S1
80
 (1
) T
he
 Se

cre
tar
y o
f S
tat
e o
r a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g 

au
tho
rity
 m
ay
 gi
ve
 as
sis
tan
ce
 by
 w
ay
 of
 gr
an
t o
r lo
an
 to
 

vo
lun
tar
y o
rga

nis
ati
on
s c
on
ce
rne

d w
ith
 ho
me
les
sn
es
s o
r 

ma
tte
rs 
rel
ati
ng
 to
 ho
me
les
sn
es
s. 

(2)
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
ma
y a
lso
 as
sis
t a
ny
 su
ch
 

org
an
isa
tio
n—

 
(a)
 by
 pe
rm
itti
ng
 th
em
 to
 us
e p
rem

ise
s b
elo
ng
ing
 to
 th
e 

au
tho
rity
, 

(b)
 by
 m
ak
ing
 av
ail
ab
le 
fur
nit
ure

 or
 ot
he
r g
oo
ds
, w
he
the
r 

by
 w
ay
 of
 gi
ft, 
loa
n o
r o
the
rw
ise
, a
nd
 

(c)
 by
 m
ak
ing
 av
ail
ab
le 
the
 se
rvi
ce
s o
f s
taf
f e
mp
loy
ed
 by
 

the
 au
tho
rity
. 

(3)
 A 

“vo
lun

tar
y o

rga
nis

ati
on

” m
ea
ns
 a 
bo
dy
 (o
the
r th

an
 a 

pu
bli
c o
r lo
ca
l a
uth
ori
ty)
 w
ho
se
 ac
tiv
itie
s a
re 
no
t c
arr
ied
 on
 

for
 pr
ofi
t. 

 

No
 

S1
84
 In
qu
iry
 in
to 
ca
se
s o
f h
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
 

or 
thr
ea
ten
ed
 ho
me
les
sn
es
s 

On
ce
 a
n 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 r
ec
eiv
ed
 u
nd
er 

S1
83
 

(A
pp
lica

tio
n 

for
 A

ss
ist
an
ce
) 
the
 n

ex
t 
sta
ge
 i
n 

the
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 
pro

ce
ss
 is
 fo
r t
he
 a
uth
ori
ty 
to 
ma
ke
 e
nq
uir
ies
 

int
o t
he
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n t
o d
ete
rm
ine
 w
ha
t (i
f a
ny
) d
uty
 is
 ow

ed
. 

Th
is 
se
cti
on
 is
 co

nc
ern

ed
 w
ith
 th
e 
am
bit
 a
nd
 co

nd
uc
t o
f 

tho
se
 en
qu
irie
s 

Ye
s 

S1
88
 In
ter
im
 du
ty 
to 
ac
co
mm

od
ate
 in
 

ap
pa
ren

t p
rio
rity
 ne
ed
 

If a
n a
uth
ori
ty 
ha
s r
ea
so
n t
o b
eli
ev
e t
ha
t th

e a
pp
lica

nt 
ma
y 

be
 e
lig
ibl
e 
for
 a
ss
ist
an
ce
, h
om
ele
ss
 a
nd
 in
 p
rio
rity
 n
ee
d, 

thi
s 
se
cti
on
 r
eq
uir
es
 t
ha
t 
the
y 
ha
ve
 t
o 
se
cu
re 

tha
t 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 i
s 
ma
de
 a
va
ila
ble
 f
or 

his
 o
cc
up
ati
on
 

pe
nd
ing
 a
ny
 d
ec
isio

n 
tha
t it
 m
ay
 m
ak
e 
as
 a
 re
su
lt o

f it
s 

Ye
s 

Page 161



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

en
qu
irie
s. 
 

S1
90
 D
uti
es
 to
 pe
rso
ns
 be
co
mi
ng
 

ho
me
les
sn
es
s i
nte
nti
on
all
y 

Th
e 
se
cti
on
 i
mp
os
es
 a
 d
uty
 t
o 
pro

vid
e 
ad
vic
e 
an
d 

as
sis
tan
ce
 w
he
n a
n a
pp
lica

nt 
is 
ho
me
les
s, 
in 
pri
ori
ty 
ne
ed
, 

bu
t h
as
 be
co
me
 ho
me
les
s i
nte
nti
on
all
y  

Ye
s 

S1
92
 D
uty
 to
 pe
rso
ns
 no
t in
 pr
ior
ity
 ne
ed
 

wh
o a
re 
no
t h
om
ele
ss
 in
ten
tio
na
lly 

Th
is 
se
cti
on
 se
ts 
ou
t th

e d
uti
es
 to
 pe

rso
ns
 w
ho
 ar
e n

ot 
in 

pri
ori
ty 
ne
ed
 an
d a
re 
no
t in
ten
tio
na
lly 
ho
me
les
s. 
 

Ye
s 

S1
93
 D
uty
 to
 pe
rso
ns
 w
ith
 pr
ior
ity
 ne
ed
 

wh
o a
re 
no
t h
om
ele
ss
 in
ten
tio
na
lly 

Un
de
r t
his
 s
ec
tio
n, 
the
 d
uty
 to
wa
rds
 th
e 
un
int
en
tio
na
lly 

ho
me
les
s i
s t
o s
ec
ure

 th
at 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 is
 av
ail
ab
le 
for
 

oc
cu
pa
tio
n 
by
 t
he
 a
pp
lica

nt 
un
til 

the
 d
uty
 c
ea
se
s 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e s
ec
tio
n 

Ye
s 

S1
95
 D
uti
es
 in
 ca
se
 of
 th
rea

ten
ed
 

ho
me
les
sn
es
s 

Se
ts 
ou
t th
e d
uty
 th
at 
wh
ere

 th
e a
uth
ori
ty 
is 
are

 sa
tis
fie
d 

tha
t a
s p
ers
on
 ha
s a
 pr
ior
ity
 ne
ed
, a
nd
 ar
e n
ot 
sa
tis
fie
d 

tha
t h
e b
ec
am
e t
hre

ate
ne
d w

ith
 ho
me
les
sn
es
s 

int
en
tio
na
lly,
 it 
sh
all
 ta
ke
 re
as
on
ab
le 
ste
ps
 to
 se
cu
re 
tha
t 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 do
es
 no
t c
ea
se
 to
 be
 av
ail
ab
le 
for
 hi
s 

oc
cu
pa
tio
n. 

 

Ye
s 

S1
98
 re
fer
ral
 of
 ca
se
 to
 an
oth
er 
loc
al 

ho
us
ing
 au
tho
rity
 

Th
is 
se
cti
on
 g
ov
ern

s 
the
 c
irc
um
sta
nc
es
 in
 w
hic
h 
a 
loc
al 

au
tho
rity
 m
ay
 re
fer
 an
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
to 
an
oth
er 
au
tho
rity
. 

Ye
s 

S2
00
 du
tie
s t
o a
pp
lica

nt 
wh
os
e c
as
e i
s 

co
ns
ide
red

 fo
r re

fer
ral
 or
 re
fer
red

 
Se
ts 
ou
t t
he
 v
ari
ou
s 
du
tie
s 
ow
ed
 to
 a
n 
ap
pli
ca
nt 
by
 a
n 

au
tho
rity
 th
at 
ref
ers
 th
e a
pp
lica

nt 
to 
an
oth
er 
au
tho
rity
  

Ye
s 

S2
01
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
n o
f re

fer
ral
 pr
ov
isio

ns
 to
 

ca
se
s a
ris
ing
 in
 Sc

otl
an
d 

Pr
ov
ide
s t
ha
t S
ec
tio
ns
 19
8 a
nd
 20
0 a
pp
ly 
to 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

ref
err
ed
 by
 a 
loc
al 
au
tho
rity
 in
 Sc

otl
an
d a
nd
 to
 pe
rso
ns
 

wh
os
e a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 ar
e s
o t
ran

sfe
rre
d. 

 

Ye
s 

S2
02
 R
igh
t to
 re
qu
es
t a
 re
vie
w 
of 

de
cis
ion
 

An
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
ha
s t
he
 rig
ht 
to 
req

ue
st 
a r
ev
iew

 of
—
 

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
as
 to
 hi
s 

eli
gib
ility

 fo
r a
ss
ist
an
ce
,  

Ye
s 

Page 162



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
as
 to
 w
ha
t 

du
ty 
(if 
an
y) 
is 
ow
ed
 to
 hi
m 
un
de
r s
ec
tio
ns
 19
0 t
o 

19
3 a
nd
 19
5 [
an
d 1
96
] (d

uti
es
 to
 pe
rso
ns
 fo
un
d t
o 

be
 ho
me
les
s o
r th

rea
ten
ed
 w
ith
 ho
me
les
sn
es
s),
  

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
to 
no
tify
 

an
oth
er 
au
tho
rity
 un
de
r s
ec
tio
n 1
98
(1)
 (re

fer
ral
 of
 

ca
se
s),
  

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n u
nd
er 
se
cti
on
 19
8(5

) w
he
the
r th

e 
co
nd
itio
ns
 ar
e m

et 
for
 th
e r
efe
rra
l o
f h
is 
ca
se
,  

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n u
nd
er 
se
cti
on
 20
0(3

) o
r (4

) (d
ec
isio

n 
as
 to
 du
ty 
ow
ed
 to
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
wh
os
e c
as
e i
s 

co
ns
ide
red

 fo
r re

fer
ral
 or
 re
fer
red

), 
• 

an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
as
 to
 th
e 

su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 of
fer
ed
 to
 hi
m 
in 

dis
ch
arg

e o
f th
eir
 du
ty 
un
de
r a
ny
 of
 th
e p
rov
isio

ns
 

me
nti
on
ed
 in
 pa
rag

rap
h (
b) 
or 
(e)
 or
 as
 to
 th
e 

su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 of
fer
ed
 to
 hi
m 
as
 

me
nti
on
ed
 in
 se
cti
on
 19
3(7

), o
r  

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
as
 to
 th
e 

su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 of
fer
ed
 to
 hi
m 
by
 w
ay
 

of 
a p
riv
ate
 re
nte
d s
ec
tor
 of
fer
 (w
ith
in 
the
 m
ea
nin
g 

of 
se
cti
on
 19
3) 

• 
an
y d
ec
isio

n o
f a
 lo
ca
l h
ou
sin
g a
uth
ori
ty 
as
 to
 th
e 

su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 of
fer
ed
 to
 hi
m 
by
 w
ay
 

of 
a p
riv
ate
 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 of
fer
 (w
ith
in 
the
 

me
an
ing
 of
 se
cti
on
 19
3).
 

• 
 

An
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
wh
o i
s o
ffe
red

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 as
 m
en
tio
ne
d 

in 
se
cti
on
 19
3(5

), (
7) 
or 
(7A

A)
 m
ay
 re
qu
es
t a
 re
vie
w 
of 
the
 

su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 th
e a
cc
om
mo
da
tio
n o
ffe
red

 to
 hi
m 
wh
eth
er 
or 

no
t h
e h
as
 ac
ce
pte
d t
he
 of
fer
. 

 
S2
04
 R
igh
t o
f a
pp
ea
l to
 co
un
ty 
co
urt
 on
 

If a
n a
pp
lica

nt 
wh
o h
as
 re
qu
es
ted
 a 
rev
iew

 un
de
r s
ec
tio
n 

20
2 

Ye
s  

Page 163



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

po
int
 of
 la
w 

is 
dis
sa
tis
fie
d w

ith
 th
e d
ec
isio

n o
n t
he
 re
vie
w,
 or
 is
 no
t 

no
tifi
ed
 of
 th
e d
ec
isio

n o
n t
he
 re
vie
w 
wit
hin
 th
e t
im
e 

pre
sc
rib
ed
 un
de
r s
ec
tio
n 2
03
, 

he
 m
ay
 ap
pe
al 
to 
the
 co
un
ty 
co
urt
 on
 an
y p
oin
t o
f la
w 

ari
sin
g f
rom

 th
e d
ec
isio

n o
r, a

s t
he
 ca
se
 m
ay
 be
, th
e 

ori
gin
al 
de
cis
ion
. 

 

(N
B 
the
 a
pp
ea
ls 
wil
l b
e 
ag
ain
st 

CB
C 
bu
t C

BH
 w
ill 
sti
ll b

e 
ab
le 
to 

giv
e e

vid
en
ce
 on

 C
BC
’s 
be
ha
lf a
s 

the
y d
o n

ow
 fo
r p
os
se
ss
ion
 ca
se
s 

etc
). 

 

S2
04
A S

ec
tio
n 2
04
(4)
 ap
pe
als
 

Au
tho
riti
es
 ha
ve
 po
we
r u
nd
er 
HA
 19
96
 s.
20
4(4

) to
 ho
us
e 

pe
nd
ing
 an
y a
pp
ea
l (a
nd
 an
y s
ub
se
qu
en
t a
pp
ea
l). 
Int
eri
m 

rel
ief
 w
ill n

ot 
be
 ne
ed
ed
 on
 a 
co
un
ty 
co
urt
 ap
pe
al 
if t
he
 

au
tho
rity
 ag
ree

s t
o u
se
 th
is 
po
we
r. 

an
 a
pp
lica

nt 
wit
h 
a 
rig
ht 
to 
ap
pe
al 
to 
the
 c
ou
nty
 c
ou
rt 

ag
ain
st 
a 
loc
al 
au
tho
rity
’s 
de
cis
ion
 o
n 
rev
iew

 (s
.20
4A
(1)
) 

ma
y a
lso
 ap
pe
al 
to 
the
 co
un
ty 
co
urt
 if 
the
 au
tho
rity
 re
fus
es
 

to 
ex
erc
ise
 it
s 
po
we
r t
o 
se
cu
re 

int
eri
m 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

un
de
r s
.20
4(4

) o
r is
 on
ly 
wil
lin
g t
o d
o s
o f
or 
a l
im
ite
d p
eri
od
 

en
din
g b
efo
re 
the
 fin
al 
de
ter
mi
na
tio
n o
f th
e m

ain
 ap
pe
al 
 

Ye
s 

S2
05
 - 2

09
 D
isc
ha
rge

 of
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 

By
 s.
20
6, 
a l
oc
al 
au
tho
rity
 m
ay
 di
sc
ha
rge

 its
 du
ty 
un
de
r 

s.1
93
 in
 on
e o
f th
ree

 w
ay
s: 
 

(i) by
 se
cu
rin
g t
ha
t s
uit
ab
le 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 pr
ov
ide
d b
y i
t is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
for
 th
e a
pp
lica

nt;
 

(ii)
 

by
 se
cu
rin
g t
ha
t th
e a
pp
lica

nt 
ob
tai
ns
 su
ita
ble
 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 fro

m 
so
me
 ot
he
r p
ers
on
; o
r 

(iii
) 

by
 gi
vin
g t
he
 ap
pli
ca
nt 
su
ch
 ad
vic
e a
nd
 as
sis
tan
ce
 as
 w
ill 

se
cu
re 
tha
t s
uit
ab
le 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 is
 av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 

so
me
 ot
he
r p
ers
on
. 

S2
08
 – 
pro

vid
es
 w
he
n a
 pl
ac
em
en
t c
an
 be
 m
ad
e o
ut 
of 
the
 

co
un
cil’
s a
rea

 
 

Ye
s 

Page 164



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 

S2
11
 Pr
ote
cti
on
 of
 pr
op
ert
y o
f h
om
ele
ss
 

pe
rso
n a
nd
 pe
rso
ns
 th
rea

ten
ed
 w
ith
 

ho
me
les
sn
es
s (
S2
12
 su
pp
lem

en
tar
y 

pro
vis
ion
s) 

Th
is 
se
cti
on
, s
up
ple
me
nte
d b

y s
.21
2, 
ma
ke
s p

rov
isio

n f
or 

loc
al 

ho
us
ing
 a
uth
ori
tie
s 
to 

tak
e 
ste
ps
 t
o 
pro

tec
t 
the
 

pro
pe
rty
 of
 ho
me
les
s p
eo
ple
. 

Ye
s 

S2
13
 C
o-o

pe
rat
ion
 be
tw
ee
n r
ele
va
nt 

ho
us
ing
 au
tho
riti
es
 an
d b
od
ies
 

W
he
re 
ho
us
ing
 d
uti
es
 o
f a
ny
 ty
pe
 a
ris
e, 
or 
wh
en
 in
qu
iry
 

du
tie
s a

ris
e, 
the
 au

tho
rity
 m
ay
 se

ek
 co

op
era

tio
n f
rom

 on
e 

of 
the
 s
pe
cif
ied
 b
od
ies
, o

r m
ay
 e
ve
n 
req

ue
st 
a 
so
cia
l 

se
rvi
ce
s 
au
tho
rity
 to
 ta
ke
 o
ve
r t
he
ir 
fun
cti
on
s, 
an
d 
tha
t 

au
tho
rity
 sh
all
 co
-op

era
te 
to 
the
 ex
ten
t “a

s i
s r
ea
so
na
ble
 in
 

the
 ci
rcu
ms
tan
ce
s”.
 

No
 

S2
13
A C

o-o
pe
rat
ion
 in
 ce
rta
in 
ca
se
s 

inv
olv
ing
 ch
ild
ren

  
 

Ye
s  

 

Page 165



Page 166
This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                             

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 
 
CABINET 18 JUNE 2013 
 
HOUSING OPTIONS REPORT 
 
A key decision is being taken at Cabinet on 18 June regarding the transfer of the 
Housing Options Service.   
 
As this decision was not included on the Forward Plan, the 28 days clear notice of a key 
decision required under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 was not given.  
 
Following the general exception procedure in Regulation 10, the Chief Executive advised 
the Chair of the O&S Committee about the decision to be made.  A copy of this 
correspondence is attached overleaf.  
 
The Chief Executive determined that it was impracticable to defer the decision until 28 
days notice could be given which in this case would be the Cabinet meeting on 16 July. 
The reason it could not be deferred was because a decision was required in order to 
meet the project timescales for the transfer.  
 
Accordingly the item is now included in the Cabinet agenda for 18 June and the report is 
included in the papers published for the meeting on Friday 7 June 2013.  
 
Rosalind Reeves 
Democratic Services Manager 
10 June 2013 
 

Page 167



 
Copy of the notification sent to the chair of the O&S committee on behalf of the 
Proper officer, Andrew North, Chief Executive 
 
From: "Rosalind.Reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk" <Rosalind.Reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk> 
To: cllr.duncan.smith@cheltenham.gov.uk  
Sent: Wednesday, 5 June 2013, 12:11 
Subject: Cabinet Key decisions not on the forward plan 
 
There are 2 reports tabled for Cabinet on 18 June which are not on the Forward Plan. As 
they are key decisions and 28 days notice is required in accordance with our constitution 
they need to follow the urgency procedure set out in the council's constitution.  
The Proper Officer (Andrew North) is required to notify the Chair of O&S that the items 
have been added to the Cabinet Agenda and the reasons why 28 days notice cannot be 
given.  
The two reports are  
1. Housing Options Review - part of the Cheltenham Futures Project and a decision is 
needed to meet project timescales.  
…… 
 
If you need any more information please let me know.  
Regards  
Rosalind        
 
 

Rosalind Reeves  
Democratic services manager  
Commissioning division  
Room 132 Municipal Offices  
�:  rosalind. reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk  
�:  01242 774937  
www.cheltenham.gov.uk  
 

 

Page 168



 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 June 2013 

Nominations to outside bodies 
Third Sector Services 
Report of the Leader 

 
Accountable member Leader, Councillor Steve Jordan  
Accountable officer Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected Not applicable 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary Following each Selection Council, and at other times when vacancies arise, 

the Cabinet takes the opportunity to nominate and, in limited cases, appoint 
persons to various roles within bodies external to the Council.   
In June 2012, Councillor Barbara Driver was appointed as an observer on 
the Board of Third Sector Services. She has now been appointed to the 
board in her own right so there is a vacancy for an observer.   
Councillor Regan has put herself forward for the position and all Group 
Leaders are in agreement to her appointment.  

Recommendation Cabinet appoint Councillor Anne Regan as the observer on the Board of 
Third Sector Services in accordance with the following principles: 

• all nominations are made on the basis that the 
nominee/appointee is a representative of Cheltenham 
Borough Council insofar as that is compatible with any 
overriding legal duty to the outside body; and 

• Cabinet reserves the right at any time to withdraw/terminate a 
nomination/appointment which it has made 

• Cabinet should refer a nomination/appointment to Council for 
determination where consensus on that 
nomination/appointment cannot be achieved between all the 
political groups on the Council 

 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 169



 

Financial implications There are no financial implications associated with this report.   
Contact officer:  Paul Jones, Head of Finance  
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Legal implications Two general powers are relevant to nomination/appointment to outside 
bodies, these being the 'Well Being' power found in the Local Government 
Act 2000 and the power of an authority to do anything conducive, 
incidental to or facilitative of the discharge of any of their functions found in 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
Updated guidance for Members appointed to outside bodies can be found 
at Part 5G of the Council Constitution.  
Contact officer:  Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,  

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications associated with this report 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy ,  Human Resources Manager West  
Julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26 4355 

Key risks Members appointed should be aware of their roles and responsibilities.  

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Supports all the community priorities and supports community 
engagement. 
 

1. Background 
1.1  The bodies to which nominations/appointments are made comprise a variety of organisations and 

groups. A traditional distinction can be drawn between incorporated and unincorporated bodies; the 
former being distinct legal entities such as companies, having a legal personality and a framework 
imposing obligations upon those who become involved by appointment; the latter being bodies 
which, albeit without formal legal foundation, play an important role in representing interests within 
the local community. Involvement in these unincorporated organisations will often carry few or no 
legal obligations on those appointed. 

1.2 In the majority of cases Cheltenham Borough Council decides who to nominate to the body 
concerned and it is then for that body to decide on whether to accept the nomination and make the 
appointment.  

1.3 In 2008, it was agreed that all nominations/appointments would be made by Cabinet with the proviso 
that if all political groups on the Council do not agree to a nomination the matter will be referred to 
full Council for determination.  The reason for this change was that all of the bodies referred to 
related to Cabinet rather than Council functions and therefore it was deemed more appropriate for 
Cabinet to make the appointments and simplified the whole process.  

2. Legal issues 
 

Page 170



 

2.1 The power of Cabinet to nominate/appoint is subject to the proviso that if all political groups on the 
Council cannot agree a particular nomination/appointment then it will be referred to full Council for 
determination. 

2.2 Whilst nominations/appointments are made on the general basis that the nominee/appointee is the 
Council’s representative on the outside body, it is important to note that in many cases the overriding 
duty is to the outside body. For example, a company director has a primary duty of care towards the 
company and to act in the best interests of the company as a whole and a trustee must act in 
accordance with the trust deed and uphold the trust’s objectives. 

2.3 The Council is able to indemnify members (and officers) in the course of their activities on outside 
bodies provided they are acting within the scope of their authority as Council representatives. 
Outside bodies, such as companies, that are legal entities in their own right must have their own 
appropriate insurance arrangements in place. It is important that members (and officers) clarify the 
position in each particular case. 

3. Reasons for recommendations 
3.1 Appointments must be made in accordance with the Council’s constitution.  
4. Alternative options considered 
4.1 not applicable 
5. Consultation and feedback 
5.1 Councillors were advised of the vacancy on 23 May 2013.  

6. Performance management –monitoring and review 
6.1 Members are encouraged to give feedback on their attendance at meetings of outside bodies and 

communicate any relevant issues. 

Report author Contact officer:  Rosalind Reeves Democratic Services Manager, 
Rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel: 01242 774937 

Appendices None 
Background information None 
 

Page 171



Page 172
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Annual Performance Report
	2013_06_18_CAB_5_Appendix_2
	2013_06_18_CAB_5_Appendix_3
	2013_06_18_CAB_5_Appendix_4

	6 Cheltenham Plan - Scope Consultation
	7 Cheltenham Plan - Revised Statement of Community Involvement
	8 Community Infrastructure Levy - commencement of preparation of draft Charging Schedule
	9 Food Safety Delivery Plan
	2013_06_18_CAB_10_Food_Safety_Delivery_Plan_Appenidx_2

	10 Health and Safety Delivery Plan
	2013_06_18_CAB_11_Health_and_Safety_Appendix_2

	11 Housing Options
	2013_06_18_CAB_6_Housing_Options_Appendix_2
	2013_06_10_Housing_Options_Public_Notice

	12 Appointment to outside bodies - Third Sector Services

